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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Golden Wheel Tiandi
Holdings Company Limited (“Golden Wheel” or “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), I am pleased to present the annual results
of Golden Wheel for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Year”) to our

shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Although the property market in China has been confronting with severe
challenges since the beginning of 2014, the Group still managed to achieve
a fair result in 2014. Although the Group’s revenue has slightly reduced
by 4.6% from RMB871.3 million in 2013 to RMB831.1 million in 2014,
its gross profit has increased by 0.7% from RMB302.1 million in 2013 to
RMB304.2 million in 2014. Core profit before taxation has increased by 32%
from RMB148 million in 2013 to RMB195.0 million in 2014. Net profit has
reduced by 25.9% to RMB234.4 million over the same period last year. The
main reasons for the reduction in net profit this year were due to the fair value
loss of RMB50.4 million arising from the swap contracts in 2014 as well as the
reversal of LAT of RMB67.3 million which was recorded in 2013 only but not
in 2014.
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Net assets as at 31 December 2014 have increased to RMB3,694.9 million
from RMB3,524.3 million as at 31 December 2013. Net asset value per share
has increased from RMB1.98 as at 31 December 2013 to RMB2.05 as at 31
December 2014.

The net gearing ratio of the Group has increased to 33.7% (2013: 10.0%) as
at 31 December 2014. The increase was mainly due to the settlement of land
premium during the year. Although there was an increase in net gearing ratio,
our liquidity position was at a very healthy level as this net gearing ratio was

still far below from the average debt level of our counterparts.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Property development

Although the overall prices for new homes fell in most of the cities especially
3rd and 4th tier cities, market supply and demand were kept at stable levels
in the cities where the Group’s business was operating in. During the year,
the Group made steady progress and completed two property projects mainly
related to commodity housing for real homebuyers, namely Golden Wheel
Star Plaza and Phase III of Golden Wheel Star City. This was in line with the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) government's policy on encouraging

the development of small and medium real estate.
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Chairman’s Statement

In January 2014, the Group obtained the land use rights of a prime site
located in Wuxi city, Jiangsu Province, China with a total gross floor area
(“GFA”) of approximately 84,379 sq.m.. This is the Group’s first property
development project in Wuxi. Together with this project, the Group currently
has seven projects under development in four cities including Nanjing,
Yangzhou, Zhuzhou and Changsha, that significantly extends the geographic
coverage of our business and taps into new cities with potential growth. All
of these projects have been under construction since 2014. The Group plans
to gradually start the pre-sale of all these 6 projects in the second half of
2015. Up to date, the construction progress of all projects is in line with the

schedule.

As at 31 December 2014, taking into account the 49% interest in a joint
venture company (the “JV Company”) with Powerlong Real Estate Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1238) (the “Powerlong Group”), the Group has a land
bank of a total GFA of approximately 960,494 sq.m. and expects the total
amount of GFA for sale to be approximately RMB7 billion. This can back up
the needs of the Group's sustainable business development in the coming two

to three years.

Property leasing

In 2014, the Group completed another shopping mall, namely Golden
Wheel New Metro which has commenced business in October 2014. As at 31
December 2014, the Group commanded a GFA of more than 101,893 sq.m.
under its shopping mall projects, which include plaza projects like Golden
Wheel International Plaza, Golden Wheel Waltz, Golden Wheel Building,
Golden Wheel New Metro, Golden Wheel Green Garden and Golden Wheel
Time Square. Meanwhile, benefitting from prime geographical locations of the
shopping malls and a quality tenant mix, our shopping malls almost achieved
an average occupancy rate of 90% and maintained a steady year-on-year growth
in terms of rental income, creating favorable conditions for the Company’s

long-term profit gains.

JV business

In April 2014, the Group set up the JV Company with the Powerlong Group
to jointly develop a piece of land parcel which the Group acquired in Yangzhou
city in 2013. This is the Group's first joint venture with another listed
developer. The cooperation was smooth and the experience we obtained during
the joint venture was valuable. Based on the great efforts of both parties, this
project has already started pre-sale in the beginning of 2015, a period which
was only 10 months after we have obtained the land certificate in March 2014.

Delivery is expected to be in 2016.
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Metro leasing and operational management business

Building on our success essence and seasoned experience in commercial
property management project at Nanjing metro station in 2013, the Group
secured commercial property leasing and operational management contracts
of 12 metro stations of three cities namely Suzhou, Wuxi, Changsha. During
2014, several metro station malls have been delivered to us and all of
these metro shopping malls have commenced operations with encouraging
performance in terms of occupancy rate and rental level. The remaining stations
are expected to be delivered within 2015. Since these metro stations were
newly built, we believe the delay of handover of these metro stations would
benefit the Group as visitors flow rate is expected to increase at the time of

delivery.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s total GFA under its operation and
management at metro stations remarkably increased to over 70,000 sq.m.
This reinforced our confidence in the continuing development of the relevant
business, while giving new impetus to the sustained growth of the overall

business.

Investments

In addition to placing surplus funds as time deposits in banks in Hong Kong
and China, the Group also invested in corporate high yield bonds with good
credit rating. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had bond investments
amounted to RMB24 million. These bonds bear coupon rates ranging between
3.6% and 6.75%. These investments could facilitate the Group in preserving

its liquidity while enhancing interest yields.

Financing

In December 2014, the Group made a success in the issuance of senior notes
of RMB300 million in Hong Kong. The new senior notes will be matured in
3 years with a coupon rate of 10.8% which is lower than our first senior notes

which have a coupon rate of 11.25%.
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Chairman’s Statement

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Stabilized growth is the main message delivered by the China leaders during
the 12th National People’s Congress. Premier Li Keqiang said China would
“promote a stable and healthy development of the property market”. Although
home prices in China continued to fall in early 2015, the slowing downtrend
reflected continuing market stability. Together with the expected further
reduction in interest rate, the second-child policy, the rising rigid housing
demand of the 80s and the GDP target of not less than 7% for 2015, the
Group believes the worst has been over and the market will be gradually
improved with a stable growth in the long term. Leveraging on our strong
financial position and low gearing as well as abundant uncompleted GFA for
sale worth of approximately RMB7 billion in our portfolio, we believe we will
be able to fully capture the opportunities in the market and gradually boost the

growth of the Group in the coming two to three years.

For our leasing business, the Group will continue to retain our completed
properties with good location and potential growth for long term leasing purpose
in order to build up our investment property portfolio so as to maintain a stable
return to our shareholders. On the other hand, we will also continue in focusing
on the metro leasing and operational management business and will actively
participate in the tender of projects in our target cities in the future, with an aim
to further expand our geographic reach and market share in the metro station
commercial property leasing and operational management business. The Group
endeavors to become a leading operator in the industry. The Group will continue
to enhance the operational efficiency of its existing commercial property projects
at metro stations in Nanjing, Suzhou, Wuxi and Changsha so as to replicate
this successful model into other cities efficiently and capitalize on the immense
opportunities emerging from the development of urban rail transport network and

the increasing urbanization in China.
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2014 is the Group’s 20th anniversary. 20 years ago, we started our first
project in Nanjing with the motto of “People-oriented (for our staff), steady
and progressive growth (for our business), honest and pragmatic way of
doing things (for our business partners) and to create a better life (for our
community)”. Over the years, we have strictly followed these principles and
completed more than 15 projects with total completed GFA of more than
750,000 sqm. Through these years, we have built up a mature, stable and
professional management team, set up a well-established business and financial
management system model as well as obtained extensive experience in the
investment and development of urban rail transit-linked integrated commercial
and residential property projects. Looking ahead, the Group is committed to
increase the market share of urban rail transit-linked integrated commercial
and residential property sector, in order to stay on the top spot by becoming a

leading developer focused on urban rail transit-linked integrated properties.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to take this opportunity to
express heartfelt appreciation to shareholders and partners for their trust in and
long-lasting support to the Group. I would also like to thank the management
team, the Board of Directors and all the staff for their diligence, dedication and
contribution over the past years. Looking forward, we will strive for taking us
to a higher level of business performance, and rewarding our shareholders in a

higher returns gradually over times.

Wong Yam Yin

Chairman

27 March 2015
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

Projects completed during 2014

Two projects were completed during 2014, namely, Golden Wheel Star
Plaza and Phase III of Golden Wheel Star City, with a saleable total GFA of
approximately 83,000 sq.m.. Golden Wheel Star Plaza is located in Nanjing
within the walking distance to the Nanjing Metro Line No. Three. The average
selling price was approximately RMB26,000, RMB9,900 and RMB11,000
per sq.m. for commercial, office and residential units respectively, with gross
profit margin of approximately 31.8%. Golden Wheel Star City is located in
Yangzhou. The average selling price was approximately RMBS8,500 per sq.m.

with gross profit margin of approximately 35.8%.

As at 31 December 2014, a total GFA of approximately 44,000 sq.m. of these

two newly completed projects were sold and delivered.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

New land acquired during 2014 and land bank of the Group
In January 2014, the Group acquired a piece of land in Wuxi, Jiangsu

Province, China with a total GFA of approximately 84,379 sq.m.. The newly

acquired land is for the development of a residential, office and retail complex.

This is the Group's first property development project in Wuxi. With this

project, the Group currently has six projects under development in four

cities in China, namely, Nanjing, Zhuzhou, Changsha and Wuxi, with a total

undeveloped GFA of approximately 676,641 sq.m..

As at 31 December 2014, all the six projects had commenced construction and

the Group had scheduled to start pre-sale of all these projects starting from the

third quarter of 2015.

The following table sets forth an overview of the Group’s property projects as

at 31 December 2014:

'/ KE HERAT
¥t fhiat MR/ ENILE /8 CIES
HH Wil WREE ERETHY SLHY RLWH AWK 3 S T 2 S T
Actual/ Actual/
estimated estimated
construction construction Total unsold GFA held for Investment
commencement completion  Percentage of GFA/ Company’s properties
Project City Site area date date completion Total GFA own use GFA
Pk %/R ®/R Ik Ik Ik
sq.m. month/year month/year sq.m. sq.m. sq.m.
RFEK/E
Completed properties
S B PR R 5 M FHELA FNE-R
Golden Wheel International Plaza Nanjing 11,341 Jul-04 Jan-09 100% 3,547 2,535 31,672
ERERY [i:0 FNE—H —FEZ)]
Golden Wheel Waltz Nanjing 2,046 Jan-08 Feb-10 100% - - 2,444
£k YN M E-F1J] Py
Golden Wheel Building Nanjing 4,918 May-01 Feb-03 100% - - 1,454
EHAER M F—-HEAR FZHENLA
Golden Wheel Green Garden Nanjing 10,334 Aug-01 Sep-02 100% - - 1,021
EEREW (—1) HiM ZNENH —ZF=A
Golden Wheel Star City (Phase I) Yangzhou 42,803 Aug-08 Mar-12 100% 6,010 - -
SRR (ZH) bl ENEFN —ZHEAH
Golden Wheel Star City (Phase II) Yangzhou 27,423 Oct-09 Aug-12 100% 10,024 - -
B4 it 3t FNERA —ZHFNA
Golden Wheel Time Square Zhuzhou 13,501 May-09 Apr-12 100% 3,588 - 45,105
HRHEAR [i:0 - —ZFt2H
Nanjing Jade Garden Nanjing 7,212 Jan-11 Dec-13 100% 6,541 - -
S E R ——H/ —EZFEFT]
Golden Wheel New Metro Nanjing 9,218 Aug-11 Dec-13 100% - - 18,437
EHELA MR M ——F+-A —MHERA
Golden Wheel Star Plaza Nanjing 29,540 Nov-11 Jun-14 100% 14,660 - -
EHEW (ZH) il FERNA —ME=A
Golden Wheel Star City (Phase III) Yangzhou 11,389 Jun-10 Mar-14 100% 23,139 - 1,760
/Nt
Subtotal 169,725 67,509 2,535 101,893
201448 BEHE
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"W/ K RfERAH
BBt Al il R 3 Ebee ] ELIL B
JH E WREE  ESETHH ST HY S LIA A T s S s S
Actual/ Actual/
estimated estimated
construction construction Total unsold GFA held for Investment
commencement completion  Percentage of GFA/ Company’s properties
Project City Site area date date completion Total GFA own use GFA
Pk %/R %/R RWES RWES RWES
sq.m. month/year month/year sq.m. sq.m. sq.m.
R LRIES
Properties under development
SERE P —PEFZA ARETZA k!
Golden Wheel JinQiao Huafu Nanjing 46,228 Dec-14 Dec-16 Note' 133,857 - 2,500
EWELT [i:08 —ME+=H —AEARN itk
Golden Wheel Star-cube Nanjing 18,300 Dec-14 Jun-16 Note' 35,650 - 9,000
ERETEEY M AETZA AEZNA Mk
Golden Wheel Binary Star Plaza Nanjing 9,588 Dec-14 Mar-16 Note' 22,640 - 41,168
URIER E R 3 —mEFZA AT i
Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Jade Garden Zhuzhou 45,645 Dec-14 Dec-16 Note' 145,927 - 4,000
Rb b4 E i34 —MEFZH —LEFZA itk
Changsha Golden Wheel Star Plaza Changsha 37,152 Dec-14 Dec-17 Note' 185,520 - 12,000
TG awmE AL g TWEFZH AR TN Mk
Wauxi Golden Wheel Star Plaza Wuxi 31,981 Dec-14 Dec-16 Note' 72,379 - 12,000
Nt
Subrtotal 188,894 595,973 - 80,668
At
Total 358,619 663,482 2,535 182,561
M B 4 B 5 490 M2 il —MEFZ AREFZA i
Yangzhou Powerlong Golden Wheel Plaza
(49%) Note? Yangzhou 30,025 Dec-14 Dec-16 Note' 163,001 - 65,400
FEEE: 1) AZE-EF A= —H%%FEAE Notes: 1) As at 31 December 2014, these projects were at their initial construction
AER 5 sk B B o stage.
2) I H AR B 40t 2 BB A% 2) The project is developed by a JV Company which the Group has 49% interest.
B 8% o

14 BER A S YA
Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited
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AL LS
Changsha Golden Wheel Star Plaza

RoE—NFE+ A =Z+—H> KEEF76,641 As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a land bank of 676,641 sq.m. under
7k - G IEAE PR o AR IS S R Y development. Among these lands, approximately 366,073 sq.m., 229,900
366,073°F 15 K > 229,900°F 5 K 5 80,668°FJ5 K43 Al sq.m. and 80,668 sq.m. are for residential, commercial and office and

(EIEEANEE IE YNV T 8-C/E Fiik 7 investment properties purpose respectively.
e [ ) 7y 2 Lk A (S J5K) e R ) 4y 2 LR (PO R)
Land Bank by Location (sq.m.) Land Bank by Property Type (sq.m.)
8=CVES

Investment Properties

80,668 H% Residential
366,073

¥ Changsha
197,520 %% Nanjing
> 244 815

M Zhuzhou
149,927

201448 B b
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Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

As at 31 December 2014, taking into account the 49% interest in the JV
Company, the Group had a land bank of a total GFA of approximately 960,494
sq.m.. These reserves of lands can ensure the Group to have enough sale

revenue for at least the next 2 to 3 years.

Investment properties

As at 31 December 2014, the Group completed investment properties with a
total GFA of approximately 101,893 sq.m., including a new shopping metro,
namely, the Golden Wheel New Metro Mall, which was opened for business
in October 2014. As at 31 December 2014, around 80% of the area in this
shopping mall was leased out with an estimated annual rental income of
approximately RMB20 million. The investment properties held by the Group

maintained an average occupancy rate close to 90% as at 31 December 2014.

Metro leasing and operational management business

Leveraging on its rich experience in the leasing and operational management
of the Nanjing Xinjiekou Metro Mall over the years, strong professional
operation team and extensive client base, the Group obtained leasing and
operational management contracts of metro shopping malls in three more
cities in China, namely, Suzhou, Wuxi and Changsha, in 2013. Including the
Nanjing Xinjiekou Metro Mall, the Group had a total leasable GFA of over
70,000 sq.m. for its metro leasing and operational management business as
at 31 December 2014. It is expected that the metro leasing and operational
management business will substantially increase the Group's recurring leasing

rental income in the coming years.

In view of its potential higher growth, the Group will continue to actively
bid for more leasing and operational management contracts of metro station
shopping malls in different cities and has confidence in obtaining more such

contracts in the future.

Investments

In addition to placing surplus funds as time deposits in banks in Hong Kong
and China, the Group also invested in corporate high yield bonds with good
credit rating. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had bond investments
amounted to approximately RMB24.4 million. These bonds bear coupon rates
ranging between 3.60% and 6.75%. These investments could facilitate the

Group in preserving its liquidity while enhancing interest yields.

Financing

In December 2014, the Group successfully issued senior notes of RMB300.0
million in Hong Kong. The new senior notes will be matured in 3 years with a
coupon rate of 10.8% which is lower than our first senior notes with a coupon
rate of 11.25%.



Bk 4 Dl

R A

Weis

A I A O 4 I DR P
B 5 RGASEI E A  A 2 e o R BT
A A S i T 3 A T L
ik

B B i S B

Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of Operations

Revenue

The Group's revenue consists of revenue derived from (i) sale of the Group’s
developed properties; and (ii) rental income from property leasing. The
following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue and the

percentage of total revenue for the years indicated:

BETZA=Z+—HILEE

For the year ended 31 December

“Fm —Fsg
2014 2013
ARWF ANRWFo
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
[ Hh 7 BH 4% Property development 725,025 87.2 761,851 87.4
S E N Property leasing 106,091 12.8 109,424 12.6
Bt Total 831,116 100.0 871,275 100.0
T TR o 2 Y RS
Property Sales in terms of Property Type
Residential Oliflse Residential
Commercial
Office
e ot B ) 4y 2 W S 6
Property Sales in terms of Location
R
Yangzhou /‘\ Zhuzhou
M 13.1% Nanjing
Zhuzhou
20144F Ji 4%
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Weti HEE —F—=F T A= —HIEFEMN
AR HE871.5H B 4.6 B2 HE —F—NF+
H=1—HI-FEH AR 118 Eot FEHR
AR J b 3 S 1 i i Bk o

o FHER#
[ B A s S R — = A
=t —HIEFEM AR 76190 #onH a8
FoE-NEFZAZF—HIEFERNAR
W725.0H B © 7% D 3 B i H o — 4R
PR LA 45 M TE > B 3% I H B
[ A 7y 3 o g 4 I i > A 42 17
KR ZIEE > R E R E B ETN
AT o

e  YWEHME
PEMEEEN R SEHEE =1+
A=+—HIHEEN AR 10040 BT E
BEZ—NEFT-A=+—HIEEHA
R¥106.1H BT o %I T3 i — 1
PG TE AT H 8 TAR R EGE I 5 D IO

éo

b 4 5 32 4
Zhuzhou Golden Wheel
Jade Garden

26 W R Hb 2 JBE A B A
Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

Revenue decreased by 4.6% from RMB871.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 to RMB831.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2014,
primarily due to a decrease in revenue derived from the property development

business.

. Property development
Revenue derived from property development decreased from RMB761.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB725.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014. The main reason for the decrease
was that one of the projects completed during the year is located in
Yangzhou and since there were substantial discounts offered by other
property developers in the nearby area, the Group did not actively
promote this project but decided to hold it for future sale until the

market condition is recovered.

. Property leasing
Revenue derived from property leasing business decreased from
RMB109.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB106.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The decrease was due to

improvement works which were carried out on a shopping mall resulted

in a loss of a few months of rental income.

¢ ¢ o i s o e )
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Cost of sales

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s cost of sales for the

years indicated:

BETZAZT—H IR

For the year ended 31 December

e S a3 —F-=F
2014 2013
AR T ARET
RMB'000 % RMB000 %
(#51)
(Restated)
7 o B % Property development
i 3 B A Land acquisition costs 126,123 23.9 138,971 24.4
A A Construction costs 285,652 54.2 260,927 45.8
B AL G A Capitalized finance costs 44,248 8.4 40,959 7.2
BiIE B Tax expenses 40,786 7.8 42,650 75
WS B 22 (i A Fair value adjustment on
the Acquisition V<! 7,251 1.4 66,078 11.6
et Subtotal 504,060 95.7 549,585 96.5
WEME RLEEN Property leasing and
operational management 22,882 Nore2 4.3 19,605 Noe? 3.5
At Total 526,942 100.0 569,190 100.0
Wit - Notes:
1. T AN H A NH > AR SR R R 2 R 1. On 18 June 2012, the Group acquired the assets and assumed the liabilities of
F S R R RAE (LR & a property project, Golden Wheel New Metro, through the acquisition of 100%
5 4 7 B35 B2 J 91009 B HE ) (91009 FBEHE » equity interest in Golden Wheel International Corporation Limited, which holds
TAT M S T 4 i 9 REE 1Y) ¥ MR A L £ 100% equity interest in Nanjing Golden Wheel Real Estate Co., Ltd. from the then
(TWCE ) o T A by O 1 £ M O 7 SR 008 A shareholders (the “Acquisition”). This transaction had been accounted for as purchase
AN » T FT A AT R0 S B e L i A of assets and assumption of liabilities and all identifiable assets and liabilities were
B A PEFVHR © RSO0 T+ 5 A R R A stated at their respective fair value at the date of acquisition. Under this Acquisition,
HEZ Y EREATEIE §PE LA TE the properties for sale held by Golden Wheel New Metro were stated at fair value
PANRWT3HE T R T — S B4 with an approximately RMB73 million fair value upward adjustment. During 2013
A E Y A R TR E S BRI and 2014, part of these properties for sale was completed and sold, and accordingly
BN TEFE N e\ Bk NR#73H the related fair value adjustments of RMB66.1 million and RMB7.3 million were
BILIC AN MARE - F—=FE R T —U4F also included as its cost of sales and charged to profit or loss for the years ended 31
T A =4 B 8 A R AR £ o December 2013 and 2014 respectively.
2. FEHAERE - F-ESFE R F—E T A 2. This amount includes rental expenses of RMB5.8 million and RMB10.1 million for

S BRSSO 2 AL A B S A A
BN RS sH Bt R AR 100 H & T

the properties under operating lease for the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2014,

respectively.

20145 JIE i
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AEEPEERAHBE - FT-=F+ - H=1—
ERTREAEN PN STORIER: ST E X e g U
Fr A= —HIEFEN AR S04 H # 0 - 7%
WD e R I AR 2 A TR %
— =AM NR W ec 1 BT E —F—Em AR
L EYER: T

AL B PSS AR BR AT B i 2 T 20 T

M F— 2 AE18.2% N MR —F—U4ER)17.4% ©
EFRIREFF

EAmEE T =F A=A EEEMA
R0 mE ol EEE —F—NFE+ A =1—
HIEAFE R N RW3042H 8ot BRRMEE F
—ZEF T AZ T HIEERB e 2 E
F—AE+ = H =+ —HILFER36.6% 0 FEH
i b B B S 1 B AR T B

L B 2T 2 BRIR —F — = F127.9%
EAE S FEIEMR05% % EFFFEH R E
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Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

The Group's cost of sales decreased from RMB569.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2013 to RMB504.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2014. This decrease was primarily due to the fair value adjustment on the
Acquisition decreased from RMBG66.1 million in 2013 to RMB7.3 million in
2014.

The Group’s percentage of average land acquisition costs over average selling
price decreased from 18.2% in 2013 to 17.4% in 2014.

Gross profir and gross profit margin

Gross profit increased from RMB302.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2013 to RMB304.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. Gross profit
margin increased from 34.7% for the year ended 31 December 2013 to 36.6%
for the year ended 31 December 2014, primarily due to the increase in the

gross profit margin for property development business.

The gross profit margin for property development business increased from
27.9% in 2013 to 30.5% in 2014. The increase was mainly due to the
downward fair value adjustment on the Acquisition by a decrease of RMB58.8
million in 2014.

Gross profit margin for property leasing reduced to 78.4% in 2014 from
82.1% in 2013. The reduction was mainly due to the newly acquired
commercial properties located in the metro stations which only operated for a

few months with lower rental income at the beginning of the lease.

SRR (H )
Golden Wheel
JinQiao Huafu (Nanjing)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other income, expenses, gains and losses

The Group had a net gain of RMB16.1 million for other income, expenses,
gains and losses for the year ended 31 December 2014 as compared to a net
gain of RMB19.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The net gain
was mainly due to the fair value loss of RMB50.4 million of cross currency
rate swap contracts which was partially off set by interest income of RMB27.0
million from bank deposits, bonds and derivative financial instruments and
compensation income of RMB33.3 million receivable from non delivery of land

use rights.

Selling and marketing expenses
Selling and marketing expenses primarily consist of advertising and

promotional expenses.

Selling and marketing expenses for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted
to approximately RMB11.0 million (2013: RMB17.7 million), representing a
reduction of about 38.1%. The decrease was primarily due to the fact that there was

no new project launched for pre-sale activities during the year.

Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses primarily include staff salaries and benefits,
depreciation and amortization, office expenses, traveling expenses, professional

fees, utilities and property tax, land use tax and stamp duty.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
approximately RMB103.3 million (2013: RMB85.4 million), representing
an increase of about 20.9%. This increase was primarily due to the expansion
of business, an increase in staff salaries and benefits in connection with the

continuing growth of the Group’s property development business.

Finance costs

Finance costs consist primarily of interest expenses on borrowings net of
capitalized finance costs. Finance costs increased from RMB43.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB56.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 primarily due to the increase of average bank borrowings.
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total borrowings of RMB2,082.4
million, while as at 31 December 2013, the Group’s total borrowings were
RMB1,823.6 million. The increase of borrowings was mainly attributable to
the funding of the remaining land premium paid for the land which the Group

acquired in 2013.

20144F B i b
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Share of losses of joint ventures
The Group's share of losses of joint ventures of RMB5.0 million represented
mainly the operating costs incurred by the project of Powerlong Golden Wheel

Plaza which the Group has 49% interest.

Changes in fair value of investment properties

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded a fair value gain on
investment properties of RMB271.6 million (2013: RMB246.8 million). The
revaluation gain was resulted from the addition of new investment properties as

well as the increase in average rental value of existing investment properties.

Profit for the year

Mainly due to the fair value loss of RMB50.4 million arising from the cross
currency rate swap contracts and the reversal of LAT of RMB67.3 million
recorded in 2013, profit for the year decreased from RMB316.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB234.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2014, representing a decrease of 25.9%.

Financial guarantees
The face value of the financial guarantees issued by the Group is analysed as

below:

L
2014 2013
ANRH T AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
Mortgage loan guarantees provided by the Group
to banks in favour of its customers 527,343 371,627

A IR SOBIE R A AR
R ATHE AL

B

P e L £ B DL R A T A I ke
) AT IFL 7 ey 4 0 G 24 A )
i TR BE B S L

G R T BT IR T
Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the financial guarantee

contracts at initial recognition is not significant as the default rate is low.

Taxation

Income tax comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax includes PRC enterprise income tax and LAT payable by

the PRC subsidiaries of the Company.
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LI B
PR —

All appreciation arising from the sale or transfer of land use rights, and
buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject to LAT at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation value as
determined in accordance with the relevant tax laws. Certain exemptions are
available for the sales of ordinary residential properties if the appreciation
value does not exceed 20% of the total deductible items, but this exemption
does not extend to sales of commercial properties. Under PRC tax laws and
regulations, the properties of the Group in the PRC are subject to LAT on the
appraised value of the land and the improvements on the land upon the sales of
such properties. The Group is required to pay 1% to 4% of our sales and pre-
sales proceeds as prepaid LAT. Tax expense increased from RMB103.7 million
in 2013 to RMB182.2 million in 2014. The increase was primarily due to the
fact that there was an one off reversal of LAT of RMB67.3 million in 2013.
Due to the same reason, the Group's effective tax rate increased from 24.7% for
the year ended 31 December 2013 to 43.7%, for the year ended 31 December
2014.

20145 JIE iy
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Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Position

The Group had bank deposits and cash of approximately RMB837.1 million as
of 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB1,472.3 million), including restricted cash
of RMB503.0 million (2013: RMB466.6 million) and structured bank deposit
of RMBS83.5 million (2013: RMB215.0 million). The decrease in cash and bank

balances was mainly due to the payment of land premium during the year.

Bank and Other Borrowings
The Group had outstanding bank and other borrowings (including senior

notes) of approximately RMB2,082.4 million as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB1,823.6 million).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s net gearing ratio was 33.7% (2013:
10.0%). The net gearing ratio of the Group is calculated by the interest-

bearing liabilities net of bank deposits and cash and then divided by total

equity attributable to the owners of the Company.

730 o R A
B Zhuzhou Golden Wheel
Jade Garden
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Cost of Borrowings

The Group's average cost of borrowings (calculated by dividing total interest
expenses paid and payable by the average total bank and other borrowings

during the relevant year) was 7.0% in 2014 as compared with 8.2% in 2013,

The following table sets forth the net cash flow of the Group for the years

indicated:

BEFZHAZ+—HIREE
For the year ended 31 December

BekRBEE&EEY (WD) /j]ﬂ T4 Net (decrease)/increase in cash and

=2
2014 2013

AR WFr AR BT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Net cash used in operating activities (693,000) (252,354)
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 85,141 (791,298)
Net cash from financing activities 67,821 1,735,608
cash equivalents (540,038) 691,956

KEmBRBESRE
RGBSR TR AEE REECHED
SR B 5 TR B B B (R B ) 3¢
(BB A ~ R LM AR B B R TR I
R A R A BLIE L o

WEFE—TE+FH =+ — B IR KR EE
BE R A AR 308 &t FEHRGOE
TR EYERD NR B4 55 870 afEldlse
B R M2 9/ BT MR FFI TSN - 6)PH %S
RS IR I A R ¥ 01.9H BT s ik A E
WIS 4 S TR D AR WE304.9H BT 5 K
GiiyFR B 5 UL B B A R B 1 8 i N R W 6935
EE VWS

Cash Flows used in Operating Activities

Cash generated from operating activities resulted primarily from pre-sales and
sales of developed properties and rental income; while cash used in operating
activities resulted from our cash costs for the development of properties, costs
of land purchases and costs of operating completed properties held for sale and

taxes paid.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, net cash outflow from operating
activities was RMBG693.0 million, which was mainly attributable to (i) a
decrease in completed properties for sale of RMB441.5 million, (ii) an increase
in rental received in advance of RMB25.9 million offset by (i) an increase in
properties under development for sale of RMB91.9 million; (ii) a decrease in
deposits and prepayments received from pre-sale of properties of RMB394.9
million; and (iii) an increase in leasehold land held for development for sale of
RMBG693.5 million.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, net cash outflow from operating
activities was RMB252.4 million, which was mainly attributable to (i) an
increase in deposits and prepayments received from pre-sale of properties of
RMB174.5 million; (ii) a decrease of properties under development for sale of
RMB205.3 million offset by (i) an increase in prepayment for acquisition of
leasehold land held for development for sale of RMB375.1 million; and (ii) an
increase in leasehold land held for development for sale of RMB348.5 million.

Cash Flows from (used in) Investing Activities

Cash generated from investing activities resulted primarily from disposal
of available-for-sale investments, interest received from available-for-sale
investments, derivative financial instruments and bank deposits while cash
used in investing activities have been primarily driven by additions of property,
plant and equipment, investment in investment properties, investments and

structured and restricted deposits.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, net cash from investing activities was
RMBS85.1 million, which was primarily attributable to (i) net decrease of
structured and restricted deposits of RMB95.1 million; (ii) interest income
from deposits and investments of RMB27.0 million; (iii) net deposit of
investment of RMB23.3 million, partially offset by (i) net investment in a
joint venture of RMB41.9 million; (ii) an increase in investment properties of
RMB13.0 million; and (iii) net purchase of property, plant and equipment of
RMB7.3 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, net cash used in investing activities
was RMB791.3 million, which was primarily attributable to (i) an increase in
structured bank deposits of RMB215.0 million, (ii) an increase in investment
properties of RMB211.3 million, (iii) purchase of financial investments of
RMB47.7 million, (iv) an increase in restricted bank deposits of RMB338.0
million, partially offset by cash inflow of RMB22.6 million resulting form the

acquisition of a subsidiary.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

For the year ended 31 December 2014, net cash from financing activities was
RMBG67.8 million, which was primarily attributable to (i) repayment of bank
loans of RMB516.5 million; (ii) interest payment of RMB130.9 million; and
(iii) dividends payment of RMBG64.0 million partially offset by (i) proceeds
from new bank loans of RMB478.2 million; and (ii) proceeds from issued senior
notes of RMB300.0 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group had net cash outflow from financing activities of RMB1,735.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2013, which was primarily
attributable to (i) repayment of bank loans of RMB777.9 million; (ii) interest
payment of RMB75.9 million; and (iii) dividends payment of RMB100.0
million partially offset by (i) proceeds from new bank loans of RMB1,537.6
million; (ii) proceeds from issue of shares of RMB615.2 million; and (iii)

proceeds from issued senior notes of RMB600.0 million.

Net Current Assets

The Group had net current assets of RMB1,105.3 million as of 31 December
2014, and net current assets of RMB1,491.6 million as of 31 December 2013.

Gearing Ratio

The Group had outstanding bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB2,082.4 million as of 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB1,823.6 million).

As of 31 December 2014, the Group's net gearing ratio was 33.7% (2013:
10.0%). The net gearing ratio of the Group is calculated by the interest-
bearing liabilities net of bank deposits and cash and divided by total owners’

equity.

A portion of its bank deposits are pledged to banks as security for certain
banking facilities granted to the Group, in which case the use of the restricted
bank deposits, subject to the banks’ approval, is restricted to the purposes as
set out in the relevant loan agreements, or as security for certain mortgage
loans granted to our customers, in which case the restricted bank deposits will
be released upon receiving the building ownership certificates of the respective
properties by the banks from the customers as security for the mortgage loans
granted. As of 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group's restricted bank
deposits were RMB503.0 million and RMB466.6 million, respectively.

Working Capital

As of 31 December 2014 and 2013, The Group's cash and cash equivalents,
excluding restricted bank deposits, amounted to RMB334.1 million and
RMB1,005.6 million respectively. The Group receives cash inflows from pre-
sales of its properties and project-specific bank loans. The Group is permitted
to pre-sell its properties under development when it obtains the relevant pre-
sale permits. In addition to cash inflows from pre-sales, the Group typically
obtains project-specific bank loans once it receives the work commencement
permits for its projects or project phases, using the relevant land use rights and

properties as security.
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Indebtedness

Property developments require substantial capital investment for land
acquisition and construction and may take months or years before positive cash
flow can be generated. The Group principally funds its property developments
from internal funds, borrowings from banks and other parties, proceeds from
sales and pre-sale of its developed properties and proceeds from issuance of both
debt and equity securities. As of 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had

the following outstanding bank and other borrowings:

mt+=HA=+—H

As of 31 December
“R-mE %k
2014 2013
AR FIL AR BT

T SR AT i 3K Unsecured bank borrowings RMB’000 RMB'000
AN —4 Within one year 336,711 -
—4EDL BHOR 2 W4 After one year but within two years 99,525 -
436,236 -
A TGP SR AT B 3k Secured bank borrowings
AR (HsF) Within one year (note) 765,818 475,187
— 4R FEAR R WA After one year but within two years - 513,840
AR DL EAHR R B4R After two years but within five years - 251,365
At Total 1,202,054 1,240,392
e (REEEMSFE) Senior notes (Exclude interest payables) 880,382 583,241

g

Total

2,082,436 1,823,633
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Note: Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “Within one year”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to RMB725.8 million (2013:
RMB427.3 million). The Group believes that such bank borrowings will be repaid

after one year in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates.

The Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in RMB, US$ and HKS.
Details of the assets pledged and guarantees for the secured bank borrowings
are set out in the notes 15, 16, 20, 24 and 38 of the consolidated financial

statements.
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Golden Wheel Star-cube
(Nanjing)
B AR Capital Commitments
TRES B R H A5 B 5 ) K - The following table sets forth the Group’s contractual commitments as of the

dates indicated:

RYZA=+—H
As of 31 December
e Sl K2 —R— AR
2014 2013
ARWT X ANRWFT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
T 54 35 O 5T AE AR R 8 Commitments contracted for but not
B B S R R A P RN provided in the audited consolidated financial
statements in respect of:
BB B ¥ Construction of properties under development
for sale 36,314 20,531
ot 4= Rtk kS Construction of properties for own use - 1,026
5 15 B 8% DL AL 8 65 i AL st Leaschold land held for development for sale - 622,326
MU THEHHCHMMERTAMAYE :  Commitments authorized but not contracted in
respect of:
5 15 B 2% DAL 8 65 i AL st Leasehold land held for development for sale - 60,000
36,314 703,883

AR [ ) A 7R R A 42 gl HCIE H RO e e 5 The Group’s contractual commitments represented its commitments to third
=TSR R R party construction companies with respect to the construction of its projects.
p p proj
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Capital Expenditures

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s capital
expenditures were primarily related to the acquisition of land use rights, the
construction of properties, and purchase of property, plant and equipment. The
following table sets forth a breakdown of its capital expenditures for the years

indicated:

BETZA=1T—HILEE

For the year ended 31 December

—F-mE -k

2014 2013

ARH T ANRHTT

RMB’000 RMB 000

W i 1 45 Acquisition of land use rights 693,520 723,601

Y ¥ Construction of properties 91,856 205,293
WEYE (BFEBACART Purchase of property, (including transfer

FELEWE) B Kk from completed properties held for sale)
plant and equipment 11,619 16,225
st Total 796,995 945,119
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Off-balance Sheet Commitments and Arrangements

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group has not entered into
any off-balance sheet guarantees or other commitments to guarantee the
payment obligations of any third parties. It does not have any interest in any
unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit
support to it or engages in leasing or hedging or research and development or

other services with it.

Market Risks

The Group is exposed to various types of market risks, including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk
in the normal course of our business. It manages and monitors these exposures
on a regular basis to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.



A REE Ja e

FRAF A0 4 5 I o ) 4 BT AE 1Y o AR R
5 Ry P T HL SRR B A N R o AR SR T TR B A
WEE LG 2[R 2 DA 36 e S s e B 2 (85 S
B LLAMNE (T35 36 0) SHEZ AT R
e S TR Y Qe Sl o i & e el = R~
R AR UM B E R A
mr :

B B i B 23 A

Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

The primary economic environment which most of our principal subsidiaries
operate is the PRC and their functional currency is RMB. The Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk is principally due to its US$ and HK$
denominated debts and investments and bank deposits in foreign currencies,
mainly US$. As of 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at each reporting date are

as follows:

TR Y4 TE =
2014 2013
AREFT A RIEF T
RMB’000 RMB 000
B Assets

£70 Us$ 51,825 28,016
VESTH HK$ 2,106 5,865
53,931 33,881

= Liabilicies
E US$ 480,954 506,043
ESTH HK$ 335,953 121,866
816,907 627,909

N RS TT S TuTHE — e i AR SE B L 56
e R e HEL I RS E A i - H 58 0 Rl oA T
AR BCE A th Bl - AR TR
L S A AR R AICR,

A1 REE T2 5 0 3l L S 0 A A A £ I 25~ A5
AR B A5 SEREE B B o AR 52 ) I 5
A » A TP S/ O J P B A A 55 [
e A B R o

Appreciation of the RMB against the US$ and HK$ generally results in a gain
arising from the Group’s US$ and HK$ denominated debt and a loss arising
from its bank deposits and investments in US$ and HK$. A depreciation of the
RMB against the US$ and HK$ would have the opposite effect.

Fluctuations in the foreign exchange rate have had and will continue to have
an impact on the business, financial condition and results of operations of the
Group. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
but the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider

hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to the variable rate
bank borrowings, structured bank deposit and bank balance of the Group. Its
fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its fixed rate restricted bank
deposits, bank borrowings and senior notes. The Group currently does not have
a specific policy to manage its interest rate risk, but will closely monitor the

interest rate risk exposure in the future.

Credit Risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to it due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising

from:

(a)  the carrying amount of the respective recognized financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statements of financial position at the end of

each reporting period; and

(b)  the amounts of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantee

issued by the Group.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in respect of trade

receivables, with exposure spread over a large number of customers in the PRC.

The Group typically provides guarantees to banks in connection with its
customers’ mortgage loans to finance their purchases of the properties. If
a purchaser defaults on the payment of its mortgage during the term of
guarantee, the bank may demand the Group to repay the outstanding amount
of the loan and any accrued interest thereon. Under such circumstance, the
Group is able to forfeit the customer’s deposit and re-sell the property to
recover any amounts payable by it as to the bank. In this regard, the Group

considers that its credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of bank balances. As
of 31 December 2014 and 2013, approximately 67% and 68% of its bank
balances were deposited at three banks, representing deposits at each bank with
a balance exceeding 10% of total restricted bank deposits and bank balances.
The credit risk of these liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are state-owned banks located in the PRC or banks with high credit ratings

assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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Yangzhou Powerlong
Golden Wheel Plaza

B 4R B Liquidity Risk

AEBOCHEHME R ESEHTRELA The Group has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework
SR 1) L P PR 2 o AR B IR A R SR AT for short-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group
Al AR A e TR B PR B U AR LB manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities and by continuously

B4 A monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows.
A BPE— 7 > T2 B A5 S B R M 3E6B For further details, please refer to note 6B to the consolidated financial
statements.

B BASE B MG LR AE R > 5520 Please refer to notes 15, 16, 20, 24, 33 and 38 to the consolidated financial
SR AR RS ~ 16020 ~ 24~ 33438 statements for details of the pledges on the assets of, and guarantees provided
by the Group.
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Wheel Tiandi Community Care
Fund”

Golden Wheel adheres to an ingrained culture of fulfilling its corporate citizen
responsibilities by playing an active role in a wide array of activities, and believes in

caring about and giving to the community at all-out endeavors.

Golden Wheel has been unwaveringly upholding its philosophy of “the essentiality of the

performance of social responsibilities to the achievement of notable business success”.

Our history of corporate development is based on both “vision and mission”. We
remain committed to achieving five strategic goals in respect of our corporate
social responsibilities which are related to the horizons of: “the responsibilities for
corporate development, the responsibilities for shareholders, the responsibilities
for consumers, the responsibilities for charity events in the community, the
responsibilities for environmental protection”. With a great breadth of pioneering
spirit and innovation, we have been striving to create greater value for stakeholders,
to capture business opportunities in joint forces with partners and to share the
fruits of our development with investors. Efforts are spent by us on promoting the
harmony between the nature and the community, giving a much needed boost to
the environment of our community. Specifically, we will extend endeavors on the

following aspects:
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Corporate Social Responsibilities

FLOURISHING BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT OF
THE COMPANY AND CREATING DEVELOPMENT
OPPORTUNITIES FOR THE PLACES IN WHICH OUR
OPERATIONS ARE LOCATED

With adherence to its mission of “creating better tomorrows” and its corporate
value of “quality, integrity and excellence”, Golden Wheel's corporate visions
are to establish a pivotal niche in the spectrums of property development and
management in the transport hubs of the second and third tier cities in China, to
offer the community access to premium products, and to provide customers with
service excellence. These visions are the most fundamental social responsibilities
and obligations. Along with the sustainable development of the subway systems
in the second and third tier cities in China, Golden Wheel helps present a wider
flurry of opportunities for the development and operation of metro malls in those
cities, making the part of its contribution to the responsibilities and obligations of

urbanization construction.

LEADING CAPABILITY

Mr. Wong Yam Yin, the Chairman of Golden Wheel, has a strong determination
to repay to the society and contribute to the Overseas Chinese in Hong Kong,
while making success and creating wealth with his unique vision and unswerving

dedication over the years.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR SHAREHOLDERS

As a listed company, Golden Wheel is more focused than ever on sticking to
a business philosophy that is aimed at fuelling long-term business growth
through well-established strategies. Based on a prudent financial management

strategy, we take full advantage of the international capital market as a

[ S KB % 2 4
W) e
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platform for tapping more funds and reinforcing stronger confidence for
our long-term corporate development. We are more determined than ever
to innovate our business model relating to the real estate development and
leasing and management. We also spare great efforts on training an internal
team of elite management. Strategically, we retain the long-term ownership of
shopping malls on a selected basis, in order to generate recurring rental income
for us and consolidate our long-term financial strength. Also, through the
disposal of development projects, we attain capital growth, while maintaining
a reasonable rate of revenue from our real estate development business as well
as operational management business by retaining mall assets and operational
management, so as to drive long-term corporate growth. Meanwhile, in praise

of the enduring support of investors, we endeavour to share the fruitful results

of our business development by reaping prominent performance.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR CONSUMERS

Leveraging on its proven track record in the aspects of commercial and
residential real estate development and operation in China, and thanks to
its values of quality, integrity and excellence, Golden Wheel focuses on the
development and operation of shopping malls and integrated commercial
projects in Jiangsu Province and Hunan Province. With the successive
development of over a dozen of projects in a number of cities including
Nanjing, Yangzhou, Wuxi, Changsha and Zhuzhou, the Company has paved
a solid path for its development. With adherence to its concept of social
justice, Golden Wheel is well aware of the interdependence between itself
and its stakeholders. Thanks to its dedication to the building of high quality
properties for consumers, the provision of superb services and the protection
of the interests of consumers, consumers have cast a vote of the strongest

confidence in the Company.
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Presenting
“Golden Wheel Tiandi’s
Scholarships”

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR CHARITY EVENTS IN THE
COMMUNITY

While fostering steady development, Golden Wheel is committed to repaying
the community and taking a vigorous part in love spread charity events. We
(FEMBXAL
J&%5) in Nanjing, and made donations for the building of the “Golden Wheel
(&8 {&.0/N2) in Hunan Province,

receiving much praises from the people in the region.

financed the construction of the “Overseas Chinese Cultural Plaza”

Overseas Chinese Heart Primary School”

In December 2014, the Company set up a charity fund, namely Golden Wheel
Tiandi Community Care Fund (E#g K MHEHE) | which mainly caring for

people live in backward areas in mainland China.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

Golden Wheel recognizes the importance of both business development and
environmental harmony. In view of the increasing urbanization along with
the country’s modernization process, we endeavour to meet the needs of
social development, while gradually exemplifying our green competitiveness.
In line with its dedication to the protection of urban environment, Golden
Wheel takes concrete actions for environmental protection by participating

(FEAG AL B

%5) in Nanjing and financing the establishment of green belts and sculpture

in the construction of the “Overseas Chinese Cultural Plaza”

landscape. The plaza has become a preferred place for entertainment as well

as morning and evening fitness exercises among the public. Golden Wheel’s
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development goal is to achieve more organic growth. On the basis of the
development of green features, we constantly improve people’s living quality
and standards and accelerate the pace of green construction, in an effort to
bolster the prosperity of the society and the beauty of the environment. As
such, each of the buildings becomes a part of the nature, giving a higher touch
of harmony between human beings and the nature. With our commitment to
the harmony between urban areas and the nature, together with our responsible
approach of urban development, we witness the development of urban areas as a

city builder.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR SPREADING LOVE AND CARE
AMONG OUR EMPLOYEES

Our employees are the most valuable assets for Golden Wheel, and are the
very essence of its business development. Our present success rests in large
part on the diligence and dedication of our employees. With Golden Wheel’s
development and growth, we will provide our employees with better working
platforms and greater training and development opportunities. In addition, we
value and accept all feasible recommendations from our employees. Through
our efforts to create a positive environment and amiable working atmosphere
that encourages entrepreneurial spirit among our employees, we achieve win-
win benefits among individual employees and team members by joining hands

with our employees intensively.



A R B HERFRKT- R AR SR W > DURRRE I
WA EE > R A B AR B - EHE AR
P RCE RSN A DR E R A A
e > fETT 7 FB SR A A EELAR 9 o

fER—RA TR > AL R Z BFEEIRIE
HERRIL A ISL ~ PR B I iR 2 S

(A) MEEFHRWH

AN R BODRHERE R 3R -
BERE LB AR T ETT AL SR
ST R AR SRR WA A S R
AR IR GR A0 23 =] 2 BRAN LTI B Bk
DU R A A IR SR (TR 36 R
SFAIL) ST RSO 2 AR B < I LUK
HASEE G HHRL

HERRL RERE_F-NE+ A=
H 1k BABUAE > AN R E SR AN~ HEF K P
A A E I B 2 <F RG ST R T
i BEE BRAD o

HRIESTRISE A 671 s T Ay ot A 1 B
HALE S A R sl 2 EFE R B
A R BCROK B SR > PRHCA SE S 2
WL IR A e I A
A ZZ U A8 B BT AR
o

EHGEAR KEEALFNER &
FEMERS SO B KB A SR H R -

SEFHRE Y
Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and enhance
the performance of the Group. The Board of Directors reviews and improves
the corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure that the

Company is under the leadership of an effective board to optimize return for

the shareholders.

As a responsible business enterprise, the corporate governance standards of
the Company are built on the principles of independence, accountability,

transparency and honesty.

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Board firmly believes that conducting the Group's
business in an transparent and responsible manner and following good
corporate governance practices serve its long-term interests and those of
shareholders. The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “Corporate Governance
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code to

govern its corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company during the financial year
ended 31 December 2014, has adopted, applied and complied with most
of the provisions contained in the Corporate Governance Code, except for

the following deviation.

Under Code A.6.7, the independent non-executive Directors, as equal
Board members, should attend the general meeting of the Company.
However, due to other business commitment, Mr. Lie Tak Sen, the
independent non-executive Director, did not attend the annual general

meeting of the Company held on 16 May 2014.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintain and improve its high standard of

corporate governance practices.
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(B)

©

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Upon specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2014 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yam Yin (Chairman),

Mr. Wong Kam Fai (Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer),
Mr. Wong Kam Keung, Barry (Standing Vice President),

Mzr. Tjie Tjin Fung (Vice Chairman),

Mr. Janata David

Non-executive Directors
Mzr. Suwita Janata (Vice-Chairman),
Mr. Gunawan Kiky

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Moon,

Mr. Wong Ying Loi,

Ms. Howe Sau Man,

Mr. Lie Tak Sen

The Board currently comprises a total of 11 Directors, being 5 Executive
Directors, 2 Non-executive Directors, and 4 Independent Non-executive
Directors. The number of Independent Non-executive Directors
represents more than one-third of the Board as required by Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules. The biographies of the Directors are set out from

pages 49 to 58 of this Annual Report.

All Directors entered into formal letters of appointment with the
Company for a term of two years, subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles

of Association”).
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The Articles of Association provides that at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Also, pursuant to the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
is subject to re-election at the next following general meeting or next

following annual general meeting of the Company respectively.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

NON-

The Company has four independent non-executive Directors (‘'INEDs”),
at least one of whom has appropriate financial management expertise in

compliance with the Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all
the INEDs in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
is of the view that all the INEDs are independent in accordance with the

Listing Rules.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the Company
in a responsible and effective manner. It is responsible for formulating
strategies and management policies of the Company, approving the
strategic objectives of the Company and ensuring the availability of
necessary financial and other resources to meet such objectives. The
Board also constantly supervises and reviews the Company’s regulations
and rules. The Directors perform their duties in a faithful and diligent
manner and act in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders

as a whole.

Moreover, the Board is also responsible for presenting a clear and
balanced assessment of the Company’s performance and prospects,
preparing accounts that give a true and fair view of the Company’s
financial position on a going concern basis and disclosing other price-

sensitive information.

The management is responsible for implementing the policies and
strategies as determined by the Board, and is delegated with the daily

management, operations and administration of the Company.
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(F)

G

(H)

@

DIRECTOR TRAINING

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities
under the relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The Company
Secretary and our legal advisors also provide the Directors with updates
on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules and other

relevant legal and regulatory requirement from time to time.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged in-house trainings for the Directors to update and

refresh their relevant knowledge.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged for liability insurance to indemnify its

Directors for their liabilities arising out of its.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman, Mr. Wong Yam Yin, has executive responsibilities and
provides leadership to the Board in terms of establishing policies and
business directions. He ensures that the Board works effectively and
discharges its responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issue
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. He also ensures that
all Directors are properly briefed on issues to be discussed at Board
meetings. Mr. Wong Kam Fai, the Chief Executive Officer, is responsible

for overseeing the day-to-day management of the Group’s business.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company currently has established three committees with respective
responsibilities, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). All Board
committees are empowered by the Board under their terms of reference
which have been posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year. Special
meeting of the Board will be convened whenever necessary. The Board

convened a total of five meetings for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Details of the directors’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board
committee meetings and the annual general meeting during the year

were as follows:

W /BT R R
Meeting Attended/Held

S oSk
2013
FEHEET  FWMEHE REZEE RAESKRE

Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee AGM
A b 11 11
N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
A 212 b 1/1
N/A 2/2 N/A 1/1
AT b b 1/1
N/A N/A N/A 1/1
AT b b 1/1
N/A N/A N/A 1/1
AT b b 1/1
N/A N/A N/A 1/1
AT A b 1/1
N/A N/A N/A 1/1
AT b b 1/1
N/A N/A N/A 1/1
3/3 212 AT 11
3/3 2/2 N/A 1/1
A b 11 11
N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
3/3 AT 11 11
3/3 N/A 1/1 1/1
3/3 212 AT 0/1
3/3 2/2 N/A 0/1
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(K)

L)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was established with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
Company'’s financial reporting process, half-yearly and annual results and
internal control system and provide advice and comments to the Board.
The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Howe Sau Man, Mr. Hui Yan Moon and Mr. Lie
Tak Sen. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Ms. Howe Sau Man,

an Independent Non-executive Director.

During the year, the Audit Committee held the meetings to review the
interim results and annual results and recommended the Company's
internal control system. The Chief Financial Officer and representatives
of the external auditor of the Company attended the meetings. Prior to
the commencement of 2014 final audit, the Audit Committee held a
pre-audit meeting with the external auditor to discuss the nature and
scope of the audit, together with its reporting obligation and other audit

matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Directors on the Company’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policies on such remuneration; to assess performance of each Executive
Director; to determine the terms of the specific remuneration package
of each Executive Director and senior management; and to review and
approve performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate
goals and objectives resolved by Directors from time to time. The
Remuneration Committee consists of two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Hui Yan Moon, Mr. Lie Tak Sen and an Executive
Director, Mr. Wong Kam Fai. The Chairman of the Remuneration

Committee is Mr. Hui Yan Moon.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held the meetings
to review the remuneration terms of executive directors service
contracts and the remuneration policies of the Company, and made its

recommendations to the Board.
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(M) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

N)

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis; to make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes; to
identify, select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; to assess the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors; and make recommendations
to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors. The
Nomination Committee consists of an Executive Director, Mr. Wong
Yam Yin, and two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Ying Loi and Ms. Howe Sau Man. The Chairman of the

Nomination Committee is Mr. Wong Yam Yin.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has assessed the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors and reviewed the

re-appointment of Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a board diversity policy, setting
out the approach to diversity on the Board. It is believed that a truly
diverse Board will include and make good use of differences in the skills,
regional and industrial experience, background, race, gender and other

qualities of members of the Board.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced and clear assessment
of the Group’'s performance and prospects. The Directors acknowledged
that their responsibility for preparing the accounts that give a true
and fair view on the Group’s financial position on a going-concern
basis and other financial disclosures. Management of the Company
provides all relevant information to the Board, giving its members
sufficient explanation and information that it needs to discharge their
responsibilities. A statement by the auditor of the Company in respect
of their reporting responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditors’

Report section contained in this annual report.
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(0)

(P)

The fees for audit services provided by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the
Company's auditor, for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted
to RMB1,150,000. Non-audit services fees RMB400,000 was paid
by the Company during the year under review. The Audit Committee
considered that the non-audit services will not impair their audit

independence or objectivity.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition, the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication and the

compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year, the Company has engaged an external consultancy firm
to conduct assessment on the effectiveness of the internal control. The

assessment results was positive.

The internal control are reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis by
the Executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed at

least once each year by the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company
Secretary reports to the Board and is responsible for advising the Board
on governance matters. Ms. Ng Yee Man, Fiona has been appointed as
the Company Secretary in August 2013. Ms. Ng has confirmed that for
the year under review, she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training. The biographical details of Ms. Ng is set out on

page 56 of this Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Report

(Q SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2012
Revision). However, pursuant to the Articles of Association, it provides

that:

Procedure for shareholders to convene an extraordinary

general meeting

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the

Company.

Procedure for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director at a general meeting

If a shareholder intends to propose a person for election as a Director
at any general meeting, he must sign a notice (the “Notice”) stating
his intention to propose such person for election. The Notice must
include the personal information of the proposed person as required by
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and the proposed person must sign a
letter of consent stating his willingness to be elected shall have lodged
with the Company’s principal place of business in the Hong Kong
located at Unit A, 18 Floor, @Convoy, 169 Electric Road, Fortress Hill,
Hong Kong; or the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, located at Shops
1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, with at least (7) days notice period is given. If the Notices
are submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed such election, the period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall
commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7) days

prior to the date of such general meeting.
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Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper
investor relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing market
confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent internal
control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure
of information in order to ensure all shareholders as well as the public
are equal access to information. The management of the Company has
proactively taken and will continue to take the following measures to

ensure effective shareholders’ communication and transparency:

. Maintain frequent contacts with shareholders and investors

through various channels such as meetings, telephone and emails;

. Regularly update the Company’s news and developments through

the investor relations section of the Company's website;

. Arrange on-site visits to the Group's projects for potential

investors and research analysts.

Through the above measures, the Company endeavors to communicate
with the investment community and provide them with the latest

development of the Group and the PRC real estate industry.

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public
in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary
focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors

as well as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

In addition, shareholders and investors are welcome to write their
enquires directly to the Board a) by mail to the Company’s principal
place of business, b) by fax on (852) 2566 3070 or ¢) by email at
IR@gwtd.com.hk.
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Below are biographies of the current Directors and senior management of the

Group.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yam Yin (E8KE) , aged 73, is an Executive Director, the
Chairman of our Board and Nomination Committee. Mr. Wong is one of the
founders of our Group and our controlling shareholders. He is responsible
for our overall strategy, business and investment planning. Mr. Wong was

appointed as a Director on 26 April 2012.

Mr. Wong has over 30 years of experience in business management. He
established Golden Wheel Trading Company Limited (4 ¥ & 5 A R 2
A]) in 1983 in Hong Kong to engage in hardware trading business. He,
together with his wife Ms. Hung So Ling and his elder son Mr. Wong Kam Fai,

established our Group in 1994 to engage in real estate development business.

Besides his role in our Group, Mr. Wong is involved in various associations,

including being:

o a consultant of All China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese (1

3 2 o0 B 0 2 A T R )

. a standing committee executive of China Oversea Exchange Association

(I it A 5 i S L)

. a standing vice president of Oversea Chinese Merchant Association ( 7

HEHEaaEERER) ;

. a Life-time Honorary Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Hong
Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese Association (7 5 ff At 45 B i &
KIEABGRAE TR ;

U a Standing Director of Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations

(FEmEHEBaRTeE);

o a Standing Director of Hong Kong Federation of Guangdong
Community Organizations (HFWEAMEEGEHGE); and

o the Honorary Principal of Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Qiaoxin School (
M 1 O AL A LR )
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Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

Mr. Wong received various awards in recognition of his contribution to the
society, including the “Chief Executive’'s Commendation for Community
Service (TTELR HALEMRHEHK) ” by Hong Kong government in 2004,
the “Prize for Outstanding Contribution to Beichuan Middle School (4% %
e A B4R R B B 88) » by All China Federation of Returned Overseas
Chinese (3 4> [ fiif B 4 {& 85 5 &) | the “Manufacturer with Honesty and
Integrity of 2010 (20107 {5 # & ) " by All China Federation of Industry
and Commerce, Hardware and Electromechanical Chamber ( RS T
W MR &) in 2010, the “Award of Outstanding Chinese ( 22 ER{E H
# \#%) jointly held by Global Outstanding Chinese Association (4 3RHE i}
# N1 € ) and Chinese Literature Publishing House ( o B SRR L R )
in 2014, and the Honor of Serving Chinese Society (IR #E 4t 488 A f1) by
Overseas’ Chinese Office of the State Council (B %5 Be f&H HEA %) in 2014.

Mr. Wong received his bachelor’s degree in physics from Huaqgiao University

(HEFEKRE) in 1967.

Mr. Wong Yam Yin is the husband of Ms. Hung So Ling, the father of Mr.
Wong Kam Fai (an Executive Director) and Mr. Wong Kam Keung, Barry (an
Executive Director), and the brother of Ms. Julia Oscar (the wife of Mr. Suwita

Janata, a Non-executive Director).

Mr. Wong Kam Fai (TS aged 44, is an Executive Director, a Vice
Chairman of our Board, the Chief Executive Officer of our Group and a
member of our remuneration committee. Mr. Wong is one of the founders of
our Group and our controlling shareholders. Mr. Wong held several positions
within our Group immediately after completion of his bachelor’s degree. He
has been the General Manager of Nanjing Golden Wheel Real Estate since 1
May 1994, Nanjing Jade Golden Wheel since 1 July 2002, respectively. Mr.
Wong is responsible for our overall business operation and management. Mr.
Wong was appointed as a Director on 26 April 2012. Mr. Wong has 20 years of

experience in the real estate industry.
Mr. Wong is involved in various associations, including being:

o a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee of

Hunan Province ( 1B A R Mé%ﬁ@%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁé%éﬁﬁ) ;

o a member of All China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese

Association Youth Committee ( FHER B HHEEH A EHFFLREE
ZH),



o IIHELWEBGEEE;

. T#E LR LEN e F e Fale
=

o IERHESMORHERER X

o MAMEHNECKHERHERER.

FIAE IR TR [ HRERIEREAY] &
F R [ HEE R AR -

R — UL P U M Ak
S R B o

EES A AT SR e
1R B AT ¥ 5 S 0B S A A O o

AR+

EHBAA > 405 PATE B AL A A
o BTN B BAIBE IR R - B B FATBO AT E
TR T B 0T 8 A JE E BREE o E SRR IR — JUILNAE
AL - F e 0l B —FFWEAA—H K
TR T — B RN w5 A R
N ) VRN 4 i SR A PR A I AR A - B
AR CF :EEH‘+#H%§E%E$oﬁT
J5 AT S 184 K

TS R AR BT

o WERNENEGHSETFEEZAGRER:

o RARHEREGHAERE:

o R R R AR B il A

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

o a standing committee member of All China Federation of Industry &
Commerce of Jiangsu Province (VLWd LHEBRAEEZR)

U a Standing Deputy Chairman of the Executive Committee of All China

Federation of Industry & Commerce Real Estate Commission, Jiangsu

province LA LHEFHERGHEGRHERGR) ;

N

J a Deputy Chairman of Jiangsu Overseas Exchange Association (TLER &

W e R g R)

J a Standing Deputy Chairman of Nanjing Overseas Chinese Chamber of
Commerce (B R TG EREHGTHFHEGTR)

Mr. Wong was awarded as an “Outstanding Young Entrepreneur ( 7 7 £l 26 J&
FE AW 7 of Jiangsu province and a “Top Ten Outstanding Entrepreneur (1
HEREARER)

" of Qinhuai, Nanjing, respectively.

Mr. Wong received his bachelor’s degree in computer science from The
(TR 7 P SR - K2R ) in June

University of New South Wales of Australia
1994.

Mr. Wong Kam Fai is the elder son of Mr. Wong Yam Yin (an Executive
Director) and Ms. Hung So Ling, and the elder brother of Mr. Wong Kam

Keung, Barry (an Executive Director).

Mr. Wong Kam Keung, Barry(ff%gﬁ), aged 41, is an Executive
Director and the Standing Vice President of our Group. He is also our
controlling shareholder. He is responsible for administration, human resoutces
management and projects development in Hunan province. Mr. Wong joined
our Group in 1996. Mr. Wong has been the General Manager of Zhuzhou
Golden Wheel Real Estate Limited since 1 August 2004 and Zhuzhou Golden
Wheel Business Management Limited since 1 February 2010, respectively.
Mr. Wong was appointed as a Director on 26 April 2012. He has 18 years of

experience in the real estate industry.
Mr. Wong is involved in various associations, including being:

. a member of All China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese Youth

(h#E2NENERHATFLAGLA)

Committee

J a standing committee member of the Overseas Chinese Association of

Guangdong Province ( (ERERHEGHAEEE)
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Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

. a standing committee member of Returned Overseas Chinese Association

of Shenzhen (TR I TH7 § B %2 (& 16 5 & ¥ %)

. a Deputy Chairman of China Federation of Overseas Chinese
Entrepreneurs of Hunan Province (15 & & #i it & G Bl & &) ;

. a Director of Hong Kong Overseas Chinese Social Association ( 7 5 &
FAtEBEESR)

. a member of the Hunan Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese (it ¥
HIEREEGHAEZA)
. a standing committee executive of Changsha Overseas Friendship

Association (V0T IMNE GH & % %)

. a standing committee executive of Nanjing Overseas Friendship

Association (5% T W AN GH & % %)

Mr. Wong completed the Foundation Studies Certificate Course of Unisearch
Limited (now known as NewSouth Innovations Pty Limited, an entity

controlled by the University of New South Wales) in 1993.

Mr. Wong Kam Keung, Barry is the younger son of Mr. Wong Yam Yin (an
Executive Director) and Ms. Hung So Ling, and the younger brother of Mr.

Wong Kam Fai (an Executive Director).

Mr. Tjie Tjin Fung, aged 65, is an Executive Director and a Vice Chairman
of our Board. Mr. Tjie is responsible for overseeing our operation, and
formulating our investment strategies. He joined our Group in 2002. Mr. Tjie

was appointed as a Director on 26 April 2012.

Mr. Tjie is an Indonesian Chinese. Being an entrepreneur, he established his

own manufacturing business in Indonesia in the 1970s.
Mzr. Tjie is involved in various associations, including being:

. a Vice Chairman of Indonesia Kota Bandung Social Welfare Fund ( E[lJ&
HRE R LR ESER )

. a Deputy Chairman of Indonesia Bandung Hakka Chinese Association

(EDJE b @ B & R £ %)
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. a Charter President of Indonesia Bandung Lions Clubs International ( Efl

JeE R BT R eeR)

. an Honorary Chairman of Guangdong Province Federation of Indonesian

Social Institutes ( E[1 JE J& H 4L H A e 4 =) ;

. an Honorary Chairman of Indonesia Hakka Chinese Association (Ee%&
B A G LR ; and

D an Honorary Chairman of Indonesia Mei Zhou Club | B[ Je g N € fiF 4
IR

Mr. Janata David, aged 33, is an Executive Director. He is responsible for
managing our investors’ relationship. He joined our Group in 2005. Mr. Janata

was appointed as a Director on 26 April 2012.

Mzr. Janata David is an Indonesia Chinese. He also served as a general manager
of The Royal Beach Seminyak Bali, a company running a resort hotel in Bali,
Indonesia, from 2010 to 2011. He and his family members established PT
Golden and Mitra Property in Indonesia in August 2009 to engage in property

development business in Indonesia.

Mr. Janata David received his bachelor’s degree in business from Monash
University in Australia in December 2002 and his master’s degree in business

systems from the same university in December 2004.

Mr. Janata David is the son of Mr. Suwita Janata (an Non-executive Director)
and Ms. Julia Oscar who is the sister of Mr. Wong Yam Yin (an Executive
Director). Therefore, Mr. Janata is also a nephew of Mr. Wong Yam Yin (an

Executive Director).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Suwita Janata, aged 64, is a Non-executive Director and a Vice Chairman
of our Board. He joined our Group in 2002. Mr. Suwita was appointed as a
Director on 26 April 2012.

Mr. Suwita Janata is an Indonesian Chinese. He commenced his career as an
entrepreneur by establishing his own trading company in the 1970s. Mr.
Suwita Janata and his family members established PT Golden and Mitra
Property in Indonesia in August 2009 to engage in property development

business in Indonesia.
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Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

Mr. Suwita Janata has been involved in various associations, including being:

the former Executive Chairman of Chinese Committee of Indonesia

Chamber of Commerce (West Java) (EpJE Lo & fif v B & B & P
SEHEAERATER)

the former head of the Indonesia Chamber of Commerce (West Java),

Commerce Division ( E[/J& T8 JICH: T 5% & £ 7 2530 iy £4T)

an advisory council member of Indonesia Bandung Yayasan Dana Welfare

Foundation ( EVJE B B i B 4 48 A1 5 4 g ) )

o The Vice Chairman of Indonesia Bandung Minnan Gonghui ( EJE & &
MR AEEgR)

Mr. Suwita Janata is the father of Mr. Janata David (an Executive Director) and
the husband of Ms. Julia Oscar. Ms. Julia Oscar is the sister of Mr. Wong Yam

Yin (an Executive Director).

Mr. Gunawan Kiky, aged 67, is a Non-executive Director. He joined our

Group in 2002. Mr. Gunawan was appointed as a Director on 26 April 2012.

Mr. Gunawan is an Indonesian Chinese. In the 1980s, he established his own

trading business.

Mr. Gunawan joined Indonesia Bandung Lions Clubs International ( EJJE #
W B P 48 S M 1 &) in 1989, In 2000, Mr. Gunawan founded Indonesia
Bandung Hakka Chinese Association ( ElJ& & [ % J& W 3 ) and has been a

financial supervisor of the association.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hui Yan Moon (#F123#) , aged 44, is an Independent Non-executive
Director appointed on 10 December 2012 and a member of our Audit
Committee and the Chairman of our Remuneration Committee. Mr. Hui
has over 10 years of experience in finance and management. He has held the
position of the Chief Executive Officer of Swing Media Technology Group Ltd.,
a company listed on Singapore Stock Exchange, since May 2003.

Mr. Hui obtained his bachelor’s degree in business administration from Baruch
College, the City University of New York in the United States ( 3% B 4f £ T 37,
REEEER) in June 1995 and his EMBA from Tsinghua University (1%
# KB ) in Beijing, China in January 2007.
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Mr. Wong Ying Loi (#2K) | aged 70, is an Independent Non-executive
Director appointed on 10 December 2012 and a member of nomination
committee. Mr. Wong has over 20 years of experience in business management.
He has been operating his own trading and manufacturing business since the

1980s.
Mr. Wong is involved in various associations, including being:
. the Chairman of Chiao Yao Association Limited (% #{& 4L & &)

J a member of the Ninth and Tenth sessions of the Chinese People’s

(B A BB )

Political Consultative Committee of, Hubei province

HERMILEZEEEIL TEZR) ;

o a member of All China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese ( 1 %
2EEHEGRHATEER)

Mr. Wong obtained a diploma in English from Huaqiao University ( &K
£) in July 1968.

Ms. Howe Sau Man (fif7532) | aged 43, is an Independent Non-executive
Director appointed on 10 December 2012 and the Chairman of our Audit

Committee and a member of Nomination Committee.

Ms. Howe obtained her bachelor’s degree in commerce from University of
T2 JE T K& ) in December 1997. She is a

practicing member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Tasmania, Australia B

since January 2012 and a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA of Australia
since July 2003.

Ms. Howe has 10 years of experience in auditing, accounting and taxation.
Ms. Howe worked with a number of Hong Kong CPA firms for over 10 years,
including Ernst & Young from March 2000 to October 2001.

Mr. Lie Tak Sen (ZE#E ) | aged 66, is an Independent Non-executive
Director appointed on 10 December 2012 and a member of Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Lie has over 20 years of experience in
business management. He has been operating his own trading business since

1990.
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Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

Mr. Lie is involved in various associations, including being:

o a member of All China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese ( /1 %
2EEHEGHAEEER)

o a consultant of Beijing Returned Overseas Chinese Federation (L3 i
S A GG )
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yiu Chi Man (k% 3C) is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
M. Yiu is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial management and
regulatory compliance. He has approximately 20 years’ experience of providing
audit and advisory services to listed companies and multinational companies

with a focus on properties and financial services industries.

Mzr. Yiu joined the Group in 2013. Before joining the Group, Mr. Yiu was a
partner of KPMG China.

Mzr. Yiu obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree in accountancy from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 1993. Mr. Yiu is a fellow member of Chartered
Association of Certified Public Accountants, and an associate member of the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Ng Yee Man, Fiona (%%152) is the Company Secretary of the Group.
Ms. Ng is responsible for overseeing corporate governance, regulatory
compliance and investor relation. She has approximately more than 20 years’

experience in finance, accounting and corporate secretarial functions.

Ms. Ng joined the Group in 2013. Before joining the Group, Ms. Ng was a
financial controller and company secretary of a company listed on the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Ms. Ng is a fellow member of Chartered Association of Certified Public
Accountants, and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators,

and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Tao Kang (M) is the Standing Deputy General Manager of the Group.
Mzr. Tao is responsible for overseeing our project management. Mr. Tao joined
the Group in 2006 and was the Standing Deputy General Manager of Zhuzhou
Golden Wheel Real Estate. Before joining the Group, Mr. Tao worked at

various companies, including being the Deputy Director of Nanjing Science

and Technology Hall (I BHE & %) .

Mzr. Tao obtained his diploma degree in industrial and civil construction from
the Southeast University ( B K2) in 1994. Mr. Tao obtained his senior
% LFE Bli) qualification in 2007 and is a Registered Supervision
Engineer ( B %55 fit 3 TRERW ) and a Certified Constructor ( [ B — # it
g i)

engineer (

Mr. Chen Gang ( Bfi#l) is the Deputy Financial Manager of the Group. He is
responsible for the financial management. Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2012.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Chen worked at various companies, including

being the Financial Controller of Jiangsu Joyque Information Industry Co., Ltd

(VTEFSERE4E ) and che financial manager of Intech Group (MEZR £ [H]) |

He obtained his diploma degree in economic management from Hohai
University (711 K£) in 1999. In 2000, he obtained his middle level

accountant qualification.

Mr. Sun Yang (&%) is the Sales Director of the Group and Deputy General
Manager in Yangzhou. Mr. Sun is responsible for overseeing our sales and
marketing. Mr. Sun joined the Group in 2008. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Sun worked in various companies including being the Sales Supervisor and Vice

President of Nanjing Haoliyi Real Property Consultancy Company Limited
(B IR R AR A A

Mr. Sun holds the Real Estate Sales Qualification (5 #1854 A B) by
Training Center of National Real Estate Trade (2B AT 2E R )
Mr. Sun obtained his diploma in real estate operation and property
management from Yangzhou Polytechnic College (%5 M T BkZE K EE) in June
2002.
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Ms. Gu Xiaofang (BBEF) is the General Manager of Golden Wheel Time
Square. Ms. Gu is responsible for overseeing the operation of Golden Wheel
Time Square. Ms. Gu joined the Group in 2010. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Gu worked at various companies, including being the assistant to the
general manager and marketing manager of Zhuzhou Dajiang Property Service
Management Company Limited (BRI T R I B A R B AL A 7)) and
a deputy general manager of Jindi Property Management Company ( EXitES
HEAE)

Ms. Gu is a member of Hunan Province Apparel Industry Association Ladies

Apparel Commitcee (W1 FE & IREETEN G UREXEZRY) .

Ms. Gu obtained her diploma degree in business management from Hubei

Radio and TV University (1L B 4% BHLKEE) in July 1996.

Ms. Jiang Jian (J#§f8) is the Standing Deputy General Manager of Golden
Wheel Xintiandi Mall. Ms. Jiang is responsible for overseeing the operation of
Golden Wheel Xintiandi Mall. Ms. Jiang joined the Group in 2006. She has
over 15 years of experience in the management of large scale shopping mall.
Before joining the Group, Ms. Jiang worked at various companies, including
being the Vice General Manager of Nanjing Shangmao Shopping Center (i
MEAR)
Limited (subsidiary commercial company)

*nA) )

and the general supervisor of Zhongnan Holdings Group Company

(e P FBCSE A R ) O e 7
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Directors’ Report

The Board is pleased to present the Annual Report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC are primarily engaged in property development and
property leasing. The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries
are shown under note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis
of the Group’s revenue and operating profit for the year by principal activities
is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this

Annual Report and note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

on page 74 of this Annual Report.

PAYMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB1.95 cents
per share (the “Proposed Final Dividend”) for the year 2014. Subject to the
approval of the Proposed Final Dividend by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on Friday, 15 May 2015. It is
expected and, if approved, that the Proposed Final Dividend will be payable
on or before 31 May 2015 to the shareholders whose names are listed on the

register of members of the Company on Friday, 22 May 2015.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(a)

(b)

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
13 May 2015 to Friday, 15 May 2015 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In
order to determine the identity of members who are entitled to attend
and vote at the AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 12 May 2015.

For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final
Dividend

The register of members will be closed from Thursday, 21 May 2015
to Friday, 22 May 2015, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the Proposed
Final Dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for

Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,

registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 20 May 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group

during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are

set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

ISSUANCE OF SENIOR NOTES

The Company has issued RMB300 million senior notes bearing interest at a

rate of 10.8% per annum and due in December 2017.
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SET UP AND ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has set up and/or acquired
a total of 28 subsidiaries, the details of which are set out in notes 37 and 40 of

the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of the distributable reserves of
the Company was RMB800.1 million.

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and

note 39, respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this Annual Report and notes 26 and 27 to the

consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities since the listing date and up to

the date hereof.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated under which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Relevant Period and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yam Yin (E3KB) (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Kam Fai ( T #i#f) (Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Kam Keung, Barry ( X85 ) (Standing Vice President)

Mzr. Tjie Tjin Fung (Vice Chairman)

Mzr. Janata David

Non-executive Directors

Mzr. Suwita Janata (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Gunawan Kiky
Mr. Chan Wai Kin ( BEfEf#) (Note)

Note: Mr. Chan resigned as Non-executive director on 28 February 2014.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hui Yan Moon ( %11 )
Mr. Wong Ying Loi ( # #25)
Ms. Howe Sau Man ({7 5£)
M. Lie Tak Sen (24 4)

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors shall retire from office by rotation at AGM and be eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, Mr. Wong Yam Yin ( E2KE ) , Mr. Tjie Tjin Fung, Mr.
Suwita Janata, and Mr. Wong Ying Loi (FHE7R ) shall retire from office at the
AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence confirmation
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our Executive Directors has entered into a service contract. The
principal particulars of these service agreements are for a term of two years
commencing from listing date, and may be renewed for a term of two years
by agreement between the parties and in accordance with our Articles of

Association and the applicable rules.

Each of the Non-executive Directors has signed an appointment letter with our
Company. The principal particulars of these appointment letters are for a term
of two years commencing from listing date and may be renewed for a term of
two years in accordance with our Articles of Association and the applicable

rules.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has signed an appointment
letter with our Company. The principal particulars of these appointment letters
are for a term of two years commencing from listing date and may be renewed
for a term of one year in accordance with our Articles of Association and the

applicable rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors who are proposed for election or
re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company

which is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration (including fees, salaries and other benefits, retirement
benefit scheme contribution) paid to our Directors in aggregate for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 were approximately RMB15.4 million and
RMB16.3 million, respectively.

The remuneration (including salaries and other benefits, retirement benefit
scheme contribution) paid to our Group’s five highest paid individuals in
aggregate for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 were approximately
RMB16.4 million and RMB15.4 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, no emoluments were paid by our Group
to any Director of the Company or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining our Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the Directors has waived any emoluments for the year ended 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

Save as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are payable, for
the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, by our Group to or
on behalf of any of the Directors.
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LOAN OR GUARANTEE FOR LOAN GRANTED TO THE
DIRECTORS

During the year, the Group had not made any loan or provided any guarantee
for any loan, directly or indirectly, to the Directors, senior management, its

controlling shareholders or their respective connected persons.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief profiles of the current Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management”of this Annual Report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) adopted by
the Company on 10 December 2012, the Directors may invite participants to
take up options at a price determined by the Board provided that it shall be
at least the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which an offer is made by the
Company to the grantee (which date must be a business day, “Offer Date”); (b)
a price being the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the nominal value of a share of

the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue as of the date of this Annual Report unless the Company obtains

a fresh approval from the shareholders to refresh the limit.

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that the total number of
the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue unless otherwise approved by the shareholders at a

general meeting of the Company.

The option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during the option period which may be determined and
notified by the Board of Directors to the grantee at the time of making an offer

which shall not expire later than 10 years from the grant date.
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The Company has subsequently granted a total of 8,700,000 share options
under the Share Option Scheme on 23 July, 2014 to a number of senior

management.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the

Listing Rules, were as follows:

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company:

AR AT

B¢y A B C B AT R ACHE 2

HHAW W4 SRt B 48 9 WA 2 b

Aggregate Approximate %

number of of interest in

shares or the issued

underlying share capital

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest shares of the Company

EHEY XA T 592,543,600 32.87%
Wong Yam Yin® Interest of a controlled corporation

B o) O ZAE P 592,543,600 32.87%
Wong Kam Fai® Interest of a controlled corporation

ES L 153 W i 592,543,600 32.87%
Wong Kam Keung, Barry" Interest of a controlled corporation

Tjie Tjin Fung®? 52V R i 80,268,950 4.45%
Tjie Tjin Fung? Interest of a controlled corporation

Suwita Janata® TP ENE R R & 128,539,400 7.13%
Suwita Janata® Interest of a controlled corporation/

Interest of Spouse

Gunawan Kiky® VR R i 80,268,950 4.45%

Gunawan Kiky? Interest of a controlled corporation
201448 BEHE
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Note:

1)

(2)

(3)

“4)

Shares owned by Mr. Wong Yam Yin, Ms. Hung So Ling, Mr. Wong Kam Fai and Mr.
Wong Kam Keung, Barry consist of 592,543,600 shares held by Golden Wheel Realty
Company Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Wong and his family (the “Wong
Family”). Mr. Wong Yam Yin and Ms. Hung So Ling are husband and wife. Mr. Wong
Kam Fai and Mr. Wong Kam Keung, Barry are sons of Mr. Wong Yam Yin and Ms.
Hung So Ling.

Shares owned by Mr. Tjie Tjin Fung consist of 80,268,950 shares held by Chun Hung

Investments Limited, a company owned by Mr. Tjie and his family.

Shares owned by Mr. Suwita Janata consist of (i) 80,268,950 shares held by Golden
Era Forever Holding Company Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Suwita
Janata, and (ii) 48,270,450 shares held by Golden Joy Forever Holding Company
Limited, a company wholly owned by Ms. Julia Oscar. Mr. Suwita Janata is the

husband of Ms. Julia Oscar and a brother-in-law of Mr. Wong Yam Yin.

Shares owned by Mr. Gunawan Kiky consist of 80,268,950 shares held by Fire Spark

Holdings Limited, a company owned by Mr. Gunawan and his family.

INTERESTS IN DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY:

T T — 4

CEM ST BT

FHEA By HE 45 2B T RE W B W R b R W H

Aggregate Amount of

amount of debentures

Currency of debentures in same class

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest debentures bought in issue

FEE (BE) LN ES NI £ N 9,000,000 600,000,000
Wong Yam Yin (note) Interests held jointly with another person ~ CNY

F B (B aE) B Aty N B [6] 5 A 0 B 4 NG 9,000,000 600,000,000
Wong Kam Fai (note) Interests held jointly with another person ~ CNY

| (M5 B At N SR (R HF A HOHE 43 NG 9,000,000 600,000,000
Wong Kam Keung, Barry (note) Interests held jointly with another person ~ CNY

ZES P T N 5,000,000 600,000,000
Lie Tak Sen Interest of a controlled corporation CNY

B 5 - Note:

AN TR W RB L T ERT
S S AR LR B > A I AR 9,000,000 ©

26 W R Hb 2 JBE A B A
Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

These debentures are jointly owned by Mr. Wong Yam Yin, Ms. Hung So Ling, Mr. Wong
Kam Fai and Mr. Wong Kam Keung, Barry in a sum of RMB9,000,000.
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Directors’ Report

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31
December 2014, none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
had registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as of the date hereof, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of its interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO are

as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares

A

JBe 4y s A B O AT IR ACHE 2

[ & T2 Ve %4 Eg/Vg t i JBe Ay 4 0 WA 2 b

Aggregate Approximate

anumber of percentage of

shares or interest in the

underlying issued share capital

Name of Shareholder(s) Capacity/Nature of Interest shares of the Company

FHE ZAE P 592,543,600 32.87%
Wong Yam Yin" Interest of a controlled corporation

HERH®O 15 W 592,543,600 32.87%
Hung So Ling™ Interest of a controlled corporation

B} B XA T 592,543,600 32.87%
Wong Kam Fai® Interest of a controlled corporation

FHmo Z 1k W HE 4 592,543,600 32.87%
Wong Kam Keung, Barry” Interest of a controlled corporation

Suwita Janata® Pk B AR 0 BE AR 128,539,400 7.13%
Suwita Janata? Interest of a controlled corporation/

Interest of spouse
201448 BEHE
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ek

Name of Shareholder(s)

Oscar Julia®

Oscar Julia®

S B EARA A

i Fyi

Capacity/Nature of Interest

X MR 4T 16 R £

Interest of a controlled corporation/

Interest of spouse

&l B0

Golden Wheel Realty Company Limited

Golden Wheel Realty”

1

(2)

3)

EEE AR WRR L TMEUEE R TMEE
FEBEAT Y B 03 645 o T TR R A 14 2 )
FEAT R R FF AT [9592,543,600 8 fBE £ o T 8K B 5
PEELER IS b Sy R E S SR R E SRR
RSB R L

Suwita Janata 64 HEAT (¥ 47 .35 (i) HI Suwita Janata
Stk A B A T IR AR ACE 2 IRCA BR A A
T4 180,268,950 B > K (ii)Julia Oscark + %
AT 10 2 ) A T K FE B AT BRS R R I
48,270,450 B 1 > Suwita JanataEE % Julia Oscar
2 SR e T SR SR A K o

Julia Oscar® +HEH 1 B3 (245 () Julia Oscark
T AREHA A B RBK A BB RA /A
1748,270,450/% & £ > J (i) H Suwita JanatasE 4 4
B WA R A AR B R A A
80,268,950 L7 © Julia OscarZ +: % Suwita Janata
FErE 0 FE T R T SR A B Bk Bk

G R T BT IR T
Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

Ha A A

Beneficial owner

Notes:

1)

(2)

(3)

A AT

JBE 7 A Bl BT R ACHE 2
JBE A 48 WA A b
Aggregate Approximate
number of percentage of
shares or interest in the
underlying  issued share capital
shares of the Company
128,539,400 7.13%
592,543,600 32.87%

Shares owned by Mr. Wong Yam Yin, Ms. Hung So Ling, Mr. Wong Kam Fai and Mr.
Wong Kam Keung, Barry consist of 592,543,600 shares held by Golden Wheel Realty
Company Limited, a company controlled by the Wong Family. Mr. Wong Yam Yin
and Ms. Hung So Ling are husband and wife. Mr. Wong Kam Fai and Mr. Wong Kam
Keung, Barry are sons of Mr. Wong Yam Yin and Ms. Hung So Ling.

Shares owned by Mr. Suwita Janata consist of (i) 80,268,950 shares held by Golden
Era Forever Holding Company Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Suwita
Janata, and (ii) 48,270,450 shares held by Golden Joy Forever Holding Company
Limited, a company wholly owned by Ms. Julia Oscar. Mr. Suwita Janata is the

husband of Ms. Julia Oscar and a brother-in-law of Mr. Wong Yam Yin.

Shares owned by Ms. Julia Oscar consist of (i) 48,270,450 shares held by Golden Joy
Forever Holding Company Limited, a company wholly owned by Ms. Julia Oscar,
and (ii) 80,268,950 shares held by Golden Era Forever Holding Company Limited,
a company wholly owned by Mr. Suwita Janata. Ms. Julia Oscar is the wife of Mr.

Suwita Janata and the younger sister of Mr. Wong Yam Yin.
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Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as of the
date hereof, no person had an interest or a short position in the shares or the
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of the Part XV of the
SFO and no person was, directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company, or of any other company
which is a member of the Group, or in any options in respect of such share

capital.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
DEBENTURES

OR

Other than the Share Option Scheme as adopted on 10 December 2012, at no
time during the year under review was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities

including debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
SIGNIFICANCE

OF

No contract of significance (as defined under note 15.2 of Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rule) to which the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2014.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, purchases from the Group's single largest supplier accounted
for approximately 35.9% of the Group’s total purchases, and the percentage
of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers combined was
52% of the Group's total purchases. The percentage of turnover attributable
to the Group's five largest customers combined was less than 11% of the
Group’s total turnover. To the Director’s best knowledge and belief, none of
the Directors nor his connected persons and none of the shareholders possessing
over 5% of the interest in the capital of the Company possessed any interest in

the above-mentioned suppliers and customers.

20145 JIE iy
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EMPLOYEES

As of 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of approximately 400 (2013:
300) full-time employees in Hong Kong and China. The Group enters into
employment contracts with its employees to cover matters such as position,
term of employment, wage, employee benefits and liabilities for breaches and
grounds for termination. Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes
basic salaries, allowances, pensions, performance bonus, share options and
other employee benefits. Remuneration is determined with reference to the
performance, skills, qualifications, and experience of the employee concerned

and the prevailing industry practice.

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, working
experience and the prevailing market wage level. The total remuneration of the

employees consisted of basic salary, cash bonus and share-based incentives.

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by the Board

on the basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Group are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s

operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2014, none of related party entered into
any connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which should be

disclosed pursuant to the requirements of rule 14A.45 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS” stated in note 38 of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, no contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Group was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the year ended 31
December 2014.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the public float as required by the Listing Rules

during the Relevant Period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board and management of the Company are committed to maintaining
high standards of corporate governance. The Board firmly believes that
conducting the Group’s business in an transparent and responsible manner and
following good corporate governance practices serve its long-term interests
and those of shareholders. The Company has adopted the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing

Rules as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as auditor of the Company since
listing and will retire at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the

auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Yam Yin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35/F One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GOLDEN WHEEL TIANDI HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
S R IR BRA R

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Golden Wheel Tiandi
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 183, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

27 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or LLoss and Other Comprehensive Income

BE F—WNF+ —H =1 — H 1E4FJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

74

e ol —EF-=F
2014 2013
B 71 AW T ANRET T
NOTES RMB’000 RMB 000
BERA Revenue 7 831,116 871,275
o B A Cost of sales (526,942) (569,190)
EF Gross profit 304,174 302,085
oA ~ BH S ks Sk Other income, expenses, gains and losses 8 16,144 19,263
5 R BB Selling and marketing expenses (10,990) (17,744)
A7 BB X Administrative expenses (103,309) (85,437)
B A Finance costs 9 (56,041) (43,795)
JRE A — R W& A 7 1 s 18 Share of loss of an associate - (1,307)
JEAG A BN R Share of losses of joint ventures 18 (4,969) =
REWENFHES Changes in fair value of
investment properties 16 271,585 246,814

s o L 2 Profit before tax 10 416,594 419,879
Fi 16 Taxation 12 (182,199) (103,738)
A B ¥ ) % 2 T W i A A Profit and total comprehensive income

A0S v AN AR i A1) for the year and attributable

4T W 25 AR to owners of the Company 234,395 316,141
5 Jie 2 A1 EARNINGS PER SHARE

— A (BRARYT) — Basic (RMB per share) 13 0.130 0.177

— B (FRAR®T) — Diluted (RMB per share) 13 0.130 0.177

i R T BT IR W

Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AT E—DUE+ " H =+—H At 31 December 2014

—EemE %k
2014 2013
Wt 3 ANR¥ T ANRWT T
NOTES RMB’000 RMB 000
FE B & Non-current assets
W3~ R B Property, plant and equipment 15 98,093 125,035
BEYE Investment properties 16 4,159,500 3,699,850
W — F W 5% N 7 1 HE 25 Interest in an associate 17 - -
NEESE R Interest in joint ventures 18 183,825 6,000
R SE B JH A Deferred tax assets 19 24,880 12,569
i HE 4 V& Derivative financial assets 22,34 _ 12,984
SRATH Bank deposits:
— S BR A RAT A7 K — Restricted bank deposits 24(2) - 298,185
4,466,298 4,154,623
RE G E Current assets
B 2% rp {3 B 0 2 Properties under development for sale 1,272,163 554,862
B LipEyE Completed properties for sale 20 394,683 208,944
FrEB s DIt E & + i Leasehold land held for development for
sale - 325,875
B b Ko oAt JE i 35 TE Trade and other receivables 21 145,983 92,652
B — &8 AR TE Amount due from a joint venture 247 -
FRVEBA B DAL RO FH & T Hh A7 Prepayments for leasehold land held for
e development for sale _ 487 347
Ve At B E B L TR Land appreciation tax and income tax
prepaid 2,099 28,766
i mEE Derivative financial assets 22, 34 12,351 11,448
AL E G Available-for-sale investments 23,34 24,420 47,697
WITHE R B4 Bank deposits and cash:
— BT SRAT 7K = Structured bank deposits 24(1) 83,476 215,000
— 5 PR SR AT 77 3K — Restricted bank deposits 24(2) 503,032 168,436
—RITE B A A — Bank balances and cash 24(3) 250,597 790,635
2,689,051 2,931,662
A Current liabilities
& b Ko HoAth JE AT 5 TE Trade and other payables 25 202,518 356,671
AU AR 4 Rental received in advance 26,846 14,405
TEEY H B %4 S E A2 TE  Deposits and prepayments received from
pre-sale of properties 1,062 395,951
JEAT— &8 ERIE Amount due to a joint venture 13,064 _
+ iy 39 (Al A BT AR B AR Land appreciation tax and income tax
liabilities 237,711 197,884
WATHE S —— N B Bank borrowings — due within one year 26 1,102,529 475,187
1,583,730 1,440,098
VLB W 3 Net current assets 1,105,321 1,491,564
A8 R WO ) B S Total assets less current liabilities 5,571,619 5,646,187
20145 JBE i
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
T E—D4E+ — H =+—H At 31 December 2014

e itk —EF-=F
2014 2013
Wf &1 AR FL AR ¥F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Fe U B A Non-current liabilities
firtE 4 T A 1R Derivative financial liabilities 22,34 38,338 -
MATHE R ——E KRB Bank borrowings — due after one year 26 99,525 765,205
TE R 4 Rental received in advance 33,439 20,000
B Senior notes 27, 34 880,382 583,241
1R ST TH £ Deferred tax liabilities 19 825,017 753,408
1,876,701 2,121,854
R Net assets 3,694,918 3,524,333
B AR T ik Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 28 113,099 113,099
e 53 Vi 158 e i Share premium and reserves 29, 30 3,581,819 3,411,234
AN E A N EAGHE 45 Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 3,694,918 3,524,333
K 52 Total equity 3,694,918 3,524,333

FHERFUNR-F—HF=ZA L HHES4%
183 H AR B BB R o DA R A AR

i R LT BT IR

EF
DIRECTOR

Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

#H
DIRECTOR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 183 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 27 March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE EZ—WH+ = H =1 —H L4 E For the year ended 31 December 2014

A F A AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
/&S B A i RERIGERE MM T4 A REREA At
Share Share Special ~ Share Option Surplus Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
ARETT AR¥TFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARKTT
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB'000
(Hirzk29) (Hf5E29) (FifzE30) (FifzE29)
(note 29) (note 29) (note 30) (note 29)
RZE—-=ZF—-H—H At 1 January 2013 128 = 554,601 = 52,679 2,111,670 2,719,078
0 1R ) T 2 T W 4 R Profit and total comprehensive income
for the period = = = = = 316,141 316,141
Jief i E AL 84T (H5E28)  Capitalization Tssue of shares (note 28) 84,580 (84,580) - = - - =
B (HaEL4) Dividends (note 14) - - (100,000) - - - (100,000)
LT (F 3 R E28) New issue of shares on the Listing Date
BiTHR (as defined in note 28) 28,237 583,625 - - - - 611,862
TP 4 A P 3 47 T New issue of shares from partial exercise
BB (Hats) of over-allotment option (note 28) 154 3,193 = = = = 3,347
B 03 5 47 LA Share issue costs - (26,095) - - - = (26,095)
B BR b A K Surplus reserve appropriation - - - - 15,882 (15,882) -
BEF—=F+ZA=+—H Ac31 December 2013 113,099 476,143 454,601 - 68,561 2,411,929 3,524,333
90 9 ) 2 T o R Profit and total comprehensive income
for the period = = = = - 234,395 234395
JBe B (HEE14) Dividends (note 14) - - (63,987) - - - (63,987)
BB fof A8 K Surplus reserve appropriation - - - - 12,867 (12,867) -
TERR DA A 55 B I 03 A 3K Recognition of equity-settled
(FftzE30) share-based payments (note 30) - - - 177 - - 177
MEF—MEFZA=+—H  Ac31 December 2014 113,099 476,143 390,614 177 81,428 2,633,457 3,694,918
201445 BEHE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

#HE Z—W4FE+ = H =+ —HIE4FE For the year ended 31 December 2014

“RemE oS
2014 2013
AR¥ T ARWT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
AEWLH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
I B0 i v ) Profit before tax 416,594 419,879
HPAT S IEME SR Adjustments for:
L ERY &R Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 7,915 5,045
REMERTHEHED Changes in fair value of investment
properties (271,585) (246,814)
EERERE /ABRATHEED Changes in fair value of derivative financial
assets/liabilities 50,419 (24,432)
A & %/E B2 F B A Interest income from derivative financial
assets/liabilities (10,884) (3,301)
Al B A B A Interest income from available-for-sale
investments (2,274) =
DA A 4% B8 W M P Equity-settled share option expenses 177 -
Y3 R R < I R Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 3,394 826
HEREEEREZEHE Loss on disposal of held for trading
investments - 32
SRATAF A Bl A Interest income from bank deposits (13,804) (10,402)
il B A Finance costs 56,041 43,795
L & i 31 e 1R Share of loss of joint ventures 4,969 -
JREAG — R B 5 s ) 11 s 48 Share of loss of an associate - 1,307
AR At 5 BB A ) e R Wi 4 Gain recognised on deemed disposal of
subsidiaries (391) =
BEESHYNEEHENE Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital 240,571 185,935
B B YK (3 B (Increase) decrease in properties under
development for sale (91,856) 205,293
ERLAEEWERD (i) Decrease (increase) in completed properties for
sale 441,455 (12,130)
FRfE B3 DI85 A FHL & LN Increase in leasehold land held for development
for sale (693,520) (348,522)
B 5 B H A E Qi SR Increase in trade and other receivables (13,331) (63,765)
Fi 4 A SO e Decrease in deposit and prepayment - 4,000
W FSE BB DI S & 1AL TS 1M Increase in prepayment for acquisition of
110 A5} 3 T #8 m leasehold land held for development for sale - (375,079)
REEERERD Decrease in held for trading investments - 8,189
B 5 B HAbREAT ZIE (3570 ) 84 (Decrease) increase in trade and other payables (150,656) 76,539
B W) SR Y $2 4 % TR A B0E (Dectrease) increase in deposits and
(3 >) prepayments received from pre-sale of
properties (394,889) 174,520
JRE Wi — %% Wi /A ) ERE B Increase in amount due from an associate (247) -
T 23 m () Increase (decrease) in rental received in advance 25,880 (11,042)
& HE 4 Cash used in operations (636,593) (156,062)
BT BT A5 B0 S - b 3 (B Income tax and land appreciation tax paid (56,407) (96,292)
ALE B B B 4 NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES (693,000) (252,354)
i R T BT IR W
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BEZF M4+ H =1—H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

R LT S =
2014 2013
B &E ARWF ANBR¥F T
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
R EEE) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
AT A E IR B Interest received from bank deposits 13,804 10,402
REBECENRE Investment in joint ventures (182,794) -
MM 4 BB A ) 1Y Net cash inflow of deemed disposal of
HAemAGH subsidiaries 36 142,875 -
B e Purchase of available-for-sale investments (24,420) (47,697)
A E R E B R B Interest received from available-for-sale
investments 2,274 =
8 R ik o B A TR OR Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments 47,697 =
fik&MERE /BB WRFE Interest received from derivative financial
assets/liabilities 10,884 3,301
g s — TD I 2 ) Acquisition of a subsidiary 37 - 22,647
BN L Purchases of property, plant and equipment (11,619) (16,225)
Eia-L/EX | Increase in investment properties (12,989) (211,262)
& BB sk T A SR Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 4,316 504
PRI FR 4R 17 17 7K Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits 388,395 841,012
1A 5% BR i SR AT 47 3K Placement of restricted bank deposits (424,806) (1,178,980)
1] 45 W T SR AT 7 K Redemption of structured bank deposits 215,000 172,000
TGS SRAT A A G Investments in structured bank deposits (83,476) (387,000)
REFEB IR (BT Bl 8 NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES 85,141 (791,298)
R B FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BATIRM T 15 30H Proceeds from issue of shares - 615,209
SO EEAT 0 M M A B 2 Payment of expense attributable to issue of
new shares - (26,095)
AT R TS SR Proceeds from issue of senior notes 300,000 600,000
SCATEE AT 0 S AR IR A B 3 Payments of expense attributable to issue of
senior notes (8,180) (20,000)
I SRAT 1 K New bank borrowings raised 478,196 1,537,633
AT ERAT A A B S Payments of expense attributable to bank
borrowings (3,811) (17,455)
BRI E K Repayments of bank borrowings (516,534) (777,872)
JRE A5 — [ & 78 i 3 BRTE 3 Increase in amount due to a joint venture 13,064 -
EfTALE Interest paid (130,880) (75,859)
E TR Dividends paid (64,034) (99,953)
A Y A B NET CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES 67,821 1,735,608
Bl R B&F M (WD) % m NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
8 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (540,038) 691,956
R—H—HMEE KB EEFEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY 790,635 98,679
REZH=+—HEB & CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
KB S AT 31 DECEMBER,
TERATA B KB & represented by bank balances and cash 250,597 790,635
201445 JE il

Annual Report 2014

79



55 0 W 5 e ik
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE F—WNF+ —H =1 — H 1E4FJE For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands on 26 April 2012 and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P-O. Box 2681, Cayman Islands and principal place of
business of the Company is Unit A, 18th Floor, @Convoy, 169 Electric
Road, Fortress Hill, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding Company and its shares have
been listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange with effect from 16
January 2013. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 40.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the principal subsidiaries of the Company operate (same as the functional
currency of the Company).

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(a) New and revised IFRSs adopted during the year

The Groups has applied for the first time in the current year the
following amendments to IFRSs and a new Interpretation.

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 27

Investment Entities

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets

Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

IFRIC-Int 21 Levies

The application of the amendments to IFRSs and a new
Interpretation in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosure set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BMEZE M4+ = H =+ —H IL4FBE For the year ended 31 December 2014

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS”) (Continued)

(b)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9

IFRS 14

IFRS 15

Amendments to [FRS 11

Amendments to [AS 1
Amendments to IAS 16
and TAS 38
Amendments to IAS 16
and TAS 41
Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 27

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Financial Instruments'

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations’

Disclosure Initiative’

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture’

Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2010-2012
Cycle®

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle*

Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2012-2014
Cycle’

Investment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception’

201445 BEHE
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Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS”) (Continued)

(b)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements beginning on or

after 1 January 2016.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

limited exceptions.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was
amended in 2010 to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition,
and further amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
hedge accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in
2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through
other comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for

certain simple debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF -4+ ZH =1—H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (Continued)

(b)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective

(Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regards to financial assets, IFRS 9 requires all recognised
financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only

dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of IFRS 9 in the
future may have an impact on the amounts reported in respect
of the Group’s financial assets. The Group is still in the process
of assessing the impact and such impact will be disclosed in the
future consolidated financial statements upon the completion of a

detailed review.

Other than disclosed above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations will have no material

impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.
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Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRS. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32) in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements
for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622),
“Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule

11 to that Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each

reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of IAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of

Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF -4+ ZH =1—H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described

as follows:

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or

liabilities.

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)

or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are

not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and

its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the

three elements of control listed above.

20144 B i i
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights

in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the

size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

. potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or

other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
;

. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,

including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to

control the subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this

results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized

directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognized
in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on

initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Acquisition of assets

When the Group acquires a subsidiary, a group of assets or net assets
that does not constitute a business, the cost of the acquisition is
allocated between the individual identifiable assets and liabilities in
the group based on their relative fair values at the acquisition date.
No goodwill will be recognized for acquisition of a subsidiary that is

accounted for as acquisition of assets.

Investments in an associate and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant

activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion
thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group's share of
losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in
that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognized only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF -4+ ZH =1—H IL4 F For the year ended 31 December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Investments in an associate and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognized as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognized immediately in

profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognized forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized in accordance with
IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.
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Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Investments in an associate and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when
the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or joint venture and the retained interest
is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with IAS 39. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for
all amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity

method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no

remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint
venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognized in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to

profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognized in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or

joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF M4+ H =1—H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates

and other similar allowances.

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognized when the respective properties have been completed
and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and prepayments received from
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position under

current liabilities.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable
that economic benefits will flow to Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the

financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income
The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is

described in the accounting policy for leasing.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognized as an income in the period

in which they are incurred.
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Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognized
as liabilities and as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance lease or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease is classified
as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building element of

the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortized over the lease term on a straight-line
basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as land

and buildings under property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than that entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms

of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the translation of monetary items, are recognized in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF M4+ H =1—H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme in the PRC and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong are recognized
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying specified
vesting conditions, the fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a

corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share options

reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share

options reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.
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Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition

of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF M4+ H =1—H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realized, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflect the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model in accordance with IAS 40 Investment Property, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model of the Group whose business objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such investment properties are
measured in accordance with the above general principles set out in IAS
12 (that is, based on the expected manner as to how the properties will

be recovered).

Current and deferred tax of the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including land and buildings (classified
as finance lease) held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress), are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognized
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended

use.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment (other than properties under construction) less
their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect

of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognized in profit or loss.
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BEZF M4+ H =1—H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including property under construction for such
purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit

or loss in the period in which they arise.

Leaschold land held for development into investment property,
representing leasehold land located in the PRC for development into

investment properties, is stated initially at cost.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
development and leasehold land held for development into investment
properties are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the

investment properties under development.

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognized.

Leasehold land held for development for sale

Leasehold land held for development for sale, representing leasehold land
located in the PRC for development for future sale in the ordinary course
of business, are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
comprises the costs of land use rights and other directly attributable
costs. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price based
on prevailing market conditions less estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. Leasehold land held for development for sale is transferred
to properties under development for sale upon commencement of

development.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale, representing leasehold land and
buildings located in the PRC under development for future sale in
the ordinary course of business, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost comprises the costs of land use rights, construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalized and other direct development
expenditure. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Properties under
development for sale are transferred to completed properties for sale

upon completion of development.

Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost comprises the costs of land use rights, construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalized and other direct development
expenditure. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to

make the sale.

When a completed property for sale is transferred to property, plant
and equipment as evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation,
the carrying amount of such property is the deemed costs at the date of

transfer.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is recognized as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognized as income immediately.
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BEZF M4+ ZH =1—H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized

immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ (“FVTPL"), loans
and receivables and available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt
instrument, other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of

which interest income is included in net gains or losses.
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Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is
either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. A financial asset

is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the

near term; or

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘other gains
and losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in

note 6.

AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS
or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity

investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Debt securities held by the Group that are traded in an active market
are classified as AFS and are stated at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary
financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates (see below)
and interest income calculated using the effective interest method are
recognized in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of
AFS financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments

revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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BEZF M4+ ZH =1—H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

The fair value of AFS monetary financial assets denominated in a foreign
currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the
spot rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period. The foreign
exchange gains and losses that are recognized in profit or loss are
determined based on the amortised cost of the monetary asset. Other
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive

income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables, structured bank
deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any

impairment.

Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables when the effect of discounting is

immaterial.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets

have been affected.

For an AFS investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of that investment below its costs is considered to be objective

evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

- default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties.

For an AFS investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of that investment below its costs is considered to be objective

evidence of impairment.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivable and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, observable changes in national or local economic conditions that

correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognized is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the accounting policy
below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognized in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent

recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss in the period

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognized.

In respect of AFS investments, impairment losses previously recognised
in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase
in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investment

revaluation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the proceeds received,

net of direct issue cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to

the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognized on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (including senior notes, borrowings and trade and
other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group and not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss are recognized initially at their
fair value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of:
(i) the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined
in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognized less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with the

revenue recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognize the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognizes an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized

borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been

recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss.

The Group derecognized financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and

the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to
manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks,
including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and

Cross currency rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date the derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognized in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the

hedge relationship.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, as well as source of estimate
uncertainty thereof, that the directors of the Company have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated

financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
directors have reviewed the Group’s investment properties and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore,
in determining the Group's deferred taxation on investment properties,
the directors have determined that the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered through

sale is rebutted.

Accordingly, the Group recognizes deferred tax in respect of the
changes in fair value of the investment properties based on directors’
best estimate assuming future tax consequences through usage of such
properties for rental purpose, rather than through sale. The final tax
outcome could be different from the deferred tax liabilities recognized in
the consolidated financial statements should the investment properties
are subsequently disposed by the Group, rather than consumed
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties by leasing over time. In the event the investment properties
are being disposed, the Group may be liable to higher tax upon disposal
considering the impact of enterprise income tax and land appreciation

tax.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumption concerning the future, and other
key source of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Net realizable value of leasehold land held for development

for sale, properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale

Leasehold land held for development for sale, properties under
development for sale and completed properties for sale are stated at
the lower of the cost and net realizable value. The net realizable value
of leasehold land held for development for sale, properties under
development for sale is determined by reference to the estimated selling
price less estimated selling expenses and estimated cost of completion,
which are estimated based on directors’ best available information and

the prevailing market conditions.

Where there is any decrease in the estimated selling price arising from
any changes to the property market conditions, the leasehold land held
for development for sale, properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale may be written down. There is no write-
down of leasehold land held for development for sale, properties under

development for sale or completed properties for sale in current year.

Fair value of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value as at the
end of the reporting period based on the valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional valuers. For completed investment
properties, valuation was arrived at by making reference to the market
transactions of comparable properties and on the basis of capitalization of
the rental income derived from existing tenancies with due allowance for
reversionary income potential of the properties, where appropriate. The
valuation of investment properties under development has been arrived
at by making reference to market transactions of comparable properties
to determine the value the properties as if they were completed as at the
dates of valuation, and taking into account the construction and other
related costs that would be expended to complete the development, the

developer’s profit and percentage of completion of the properties.

In determining the fair value of investment properties, the valuers have
based on methods of valuation which involves, inter alia, certain estimates
including current market transaction prices for comparable properties,
appropriate discount rates and expected future market rents. Favorable
or unfavorable changes to the assumptions would result in changes in
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. In relying
on the valuation carried out by the valuers, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgment and are satisfied that the methods of

valuation are reflective of the current market condition.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC. However,
the implementation and settlement of the tax varies amongst different
tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC and certain projects of the
Group have not finalized their land appreciation tax calculations and
payments with local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant
judgment is required in determining the amount of land appreciation
tax and its related income tax provisions. The Group recognized the land
appreciation tax based on directors’ best estimates. The final tax outcome
could be different from the amounts that were initially recorded, and
these differences will impact the income tax expense and the related
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such tax

is finalized with local tax authorities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to
shareholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged in current year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes the borrowings and senior notes as disclosed in note 26 and
27, net of bank deposits and cash, and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained

earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure regularly. The
Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure through
issuance of new shares, the payment of dividends, as well as raising of

borrowings and redemption of borrowings.
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6. ZWMIH
6A. &Rt T HAH

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6A. Categories of financial instruments

TR “E -4
2014 2013
AR EFIL AR #Fir
RMB’000 RMB’000
ZHEE Financial assets
B B AR (R SR AT Loans and receivables (including bank
1 BB 4 ) deposits and cash) 974,532 1,539,730
A Available-for-sale investments 24,420 47,697
i He 4 i Derivative financial assets 12,351 24,432
1,011,303 1,611,859
EHA Financial liabilities
A 4 & Derivative financial liabilities 38,338 -
0 55 A Amortized cost 2,279,235 2,126,421
2,317,573 2,126,421
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L R Ly LA R A 2K
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Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

6B. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other

receivables, trade and other payables, derivative financial assets/

liabilities, AFS investments, bank borrowings, senior notes,

structured bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank

balances. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in

respective notes.

The risk associated with these financial instruments and the

policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The

management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure

appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6B.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The primary economic environment which most of the principal
subsidiaries of the Company operate is in the PRC and their
functional currency is RMB. However, certain bank balances, AFS
investments and bank borrowings are denominated in United
States Dollars (“US$”) and Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which
are currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant

group entities and expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at each reporting date are

as follows:

TRy SE =
2014 2013
AREFT NR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB 000
B Assets

EH Us$ 51,825 28,016
ESTH HKS$ 2,106 5,865
53,931 33,881

EBfE Liabilities
EH Us$ 480,954 506,043
ESTH HK$ 335,953 121,866
816,907 627,909

BRASERRT L2 A T AR/ o
B e 50 D A £ R DA S e
e A SRAT i K D T I 2 1 BEE J g &1 >
7RG ) [ I S e ph R < SRTT
AL 2 e & A A B S 5
B BRI R -

Except for certain RMB/USD cross currency rate swaps the Group
entered in order to mitigate the foreign currency risk of the
Group’s US$ denominated bank borrowings exposed, the Group
cutrently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in place.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.
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6. ﬁﬁmi E\‘ (#5) 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
6B. 47l Ja B4 B H B R BUR (4 6B. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
SR B () Foreign currency risk (Continued)
R 7T (%) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
TR AL BB AR EET The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
T e R R 58 ) 5 9 ) BIURR FE © 59 (= change in RMB against US$ and HKS$. 5% (2013: 5%) represents
T4 5%) RERBHERTRS management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
SREEB) AL o MU AT EAHE D foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
HNEFIE I B M IE B4R K 1 1 i outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
MER S #S50% (T — =4 :5%) ik adjusts their translation at the end of year for a 5% (2013: 5%)
BN o RPN A EFRRE N i FITE change in foreign currency rates. A negative number below
FREBRANE S NREETHES % (—F—= indicates a decrease in profit for the year where the relevant
4 259 ) IR A o M AR BR AN 5 foreign currencies strengthen 5% (2013: 5%) against RMB. For
R (A% (ZF—=45%) > FFR a 5% (2013: 5%) weakening of the relevant foreign currencies
i ) 52 30 S R ) 22 o against RMB, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit for the year.
e e 1ES SR
2014 2013
AR T AR W#T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RTT Us$ (16,092) (17,926)
%It HK$ (12,519) (4,350)
(28,611) (22,276)
A BB A B S A AR B AR R [ A The sensitivity analysis above only analyzed the Group’s year end
A W JR Bt HE 47 40 A - S AR AE AR inherent foreign exchange risk exposure and does not represent the
R © exposure during the year.
i R LT BT IR W

Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited



6.

HWTI
68, %Eﬂ)ﬁtl‘ﬁ%@ﬁ%&ﬂtﬁ% )

ES 4

ARG 2 B W AR By T
Hﬁ%ﬁﬁ T R R SRAT A iR
FTAGER - AR E A EA R AR
ﬁ&%uxﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ T RITHE
RS o FA > AN G2 T 0 A 2
SRR LR R B > (R A AR
k- Eapa kS

R E 7T

AREBE GRSy SRR
JERAT R BRI S BB A K o (A >
Sl 48 52 S 5 M SR A T A K AR A TG
ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁo?iﬂ%ﬁ@ﬁ
ST TIARTE TR R RATIE 2 H’J%'Jiﬂh
FEE F%:%Mﬁﬂ%m?x R R
RIS RAT %?—kﬁé%ﬁl@fi
BARMER o EFHECFRESofAEE A
iz 34 1) 22 T R A BB B 1) A

2 ETE R RSO EEES > i HAh i
HH RS AEmEE T —
b= A = LA B
Uﬂ%ﬁ’l\/i*ﬂﬂz’]AE”%l 805,0007C
TR -ZAE D NRH1,696,0007T) ©

HE

6.

A B 2 i R B
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

— 4+ = H =+ —H IL 4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6B.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to its
variable rate bank borrowings, structured bank deposits and bank
balances. The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to fixed rate restricted bank deposits, bank borrowings and senior
notes. Currently, the Group does not have a specific policy to
manage its interest rate risk, but will closely monitor the interest

rate risk exposure in the future.

Sensitivity analysis

The management of the Group considers the fluctuation in
interest rates of structured bank deposits and bank balances is
insignificant. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis on interest rates
for structured bank deposits and bank balances is presented.
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable rate bank borrowings. The
analysis is prepared assuming the variable rate bank borrowings
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible

change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for
the years ended 31 December 2014 would decrease/increase by
approximately RMB1,805,000 (2013: RMB1,696,000).
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6B.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an

obligation by the counterparties is arising from:

(a)  the carrying amount of the respective recognized financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position at the end of the reporting period; and

(b)  the amounts of contingent liabilities in relation to financial

guarantees issued by the Group as disclosed in note 33.

After obtaining a minimum of 30% to 70% down payment from
its customers for property sale business, the Group would usually
provide guarantees to banks in connection with its customers’
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the properties, for
the period before property certificates are issued to the relevant
customers. If a customer defaults on the payment of his mortgage
during the term of guarantee, the bank may demand the Group
to repay the outstanding amount of the loan and any accrued
interest thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to
forfeit the customer’s deposit and re-sell the property to recover
any amounts payable by the Group to the bank. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is

significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
respect of trade receivable, with exposure spread over a large
number of customers in the PRC. In order to minimize the credit
risk, the management of the Group continuously monitors the
level of exposure by frequent review of the credit evaluation
of the financial condition and credit quality of its customers
to ensure that follow-up actions and/or corrective actions are
taken promptly to lower the risk exposure or to recover overdue

balances.



6.

SWTH )
6B. 4l b B H B X BUR (47)

17 B i ()

A% [ Y SRAT A5 B A MR SRAT AR K
5% R 8R4 T A7 3CF {5 R B 4 o 1
Wt = F—lEFZA=+—H 4
67% (—F—=14F 1 68% ) MR THE R -
A M BRAT A7 R B 2 BRI SR AT A7 3 AR
BN IAEHOR 3 (=% — =4 1 3H])
SRAT » B A [ SR AT 19 77 2K 45 i R R
SRATHE B - S5 MR SR AT 47 3K I 32 BR A
AT RN 10% - S RBIE S
R B E b R B &8T5 A
180 1) B A 4R T PR AR
JE By e B BT o

B 1

A S T 2L L O A A 1
o A PHLHE 2 > B £F 300 7l B O B A
B BREEOR o AR S A R A R T
PR < L R R e LR

T RFEIIASE BRI B A AR
I BB ER T & A BIE L - 2%
R T A B2 I T RE 2R A R B L H A
MEeEMBRZRERBE SR EHN -
H > WA 1% 2R G 1k i
TG AR R R B T AN SR AT 2
FRAT (A FCHER 1Y A B o HLA AT A
SR A BN E TSR E Y R
Fi - R E AR SR E -
i F1LE i B B B L H S R B
ARG A R A 3R

£ B 2 i R B
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF -4+ ZH =1—H IL4 F For the year ended 31 December 2014

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6B.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credirt risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of bank
balances, structured bank deposits and restricted bank deposits.
At 31 December 2014, approximately 67% (2013: 68%) of the
total bank balances, structured bank deposits and restricted
bank deposits were deposited at 3 (2013: 3) banks, representing
deposits at each bank with a balance exceeding 10% of total bank
balances, structured bank deposits and restricted bank deposits.
The credit risk of these liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are state-owned banks located in the PRC or banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies.

Liquidity risk

The management of the Group has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for short-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by

continuously monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for
other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are for floating rate
instruments, the undiscounted amount is derived based on interest

rate outstanding at the end of each reporting period.
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6. ZWIH 4 6.

6B. 4l L B4 BE H B R BUR ()

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6B. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
T ) PR i () Liquidity risk (Continued)
RIGBB 4
Undiscounted cash flows
MREEy  RERESE AEANE —EDEA KEBRBES
HHEAE  ARAMEA HARE—F AR T4 i A G T
Weighted Over six Over one
average  Ondemand  months but year but Total
effective  or less than less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate six months one year five years cash flow amount
ANRBTr AREFLT AREFL ARETT ARETI
% RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
W= F— AR At 31 December 2014
+ZA=1t—H
5 T H At e 5 3R Trade and other payables - 183,092 - - 183,092 183,092
RATHE Bank borrowings 436 1,046,337 108,843 131,579 1,286,759 1,202,054
B (B Senior notes
HEA ) (including interest payables) 11.24 49,950 49,950 998,550 1,098,450 894,089
MBEREH Financial guarantee contracts - 527,343 - - 527,343 =
1,806,722 158,793 1,130,129 3,095,644 2,279,235
R-E—=4 At 31 December 2013
+ZHA=+—H
B 5 RIMBEM I Trade and other payables - 289,986 - - 289,986 289,986
RATH X Bank borrowings 5.11 467,871 54,921 811,926 1,334,718 1,240,392
B g Senior notes
(A5 RERTALE) (including interest payables) 12.62 33,750 33,750 701,250 768,750 596,043
HBERAE L Financial guarantee contracts = 371,627 = = 371,627 =
1,163,234 88,671 1,513,176 2,765,081 2,126,421

B A 4 SR AR AR Y SR AT B SRR
BB H 2 A e TR BRSO 2
ANEA B A~ F— U 4E+ A
=t — B EERITE R R B A
SR NR¥725,818,0007C (%
— =4 NR#422,279,00070) & 5F
Be A SE T A B AR L 3 SRR 4% 0 4R
FTANIAT REAT (o HL ¥ 6 R o R IR £
2 HBEME  ZEFRITHAERIEE
A W BT B AR AR R I
WA WUAE R o Jm Ry A% AL S
i M B N R 774,987,000 70
(ZF— =4 NR¥499,760,0007C) °

i R LT BT IR W
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Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “on demand or less than six months” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank borrowings
amounted to RMB725,818,000 (2013: RMB422,279,000).
Taking into account the Group's financial position, the directors
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid within
four years after the end of the reporting period in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At
that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will
amount to RMB774,987,000 (2013: RMB499,760,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF -4+ ZH =1—H IL4 F For the year ended 31 December 2014

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6B.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The total undiscounted cash flows of financial guarantee contracts
disclosed above was the maximum amount the Group could be
required to settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed
amount if that amount was claimed by the counterparties to the
guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely than not that
no amount will be payable under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function
of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the

counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of

interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
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7. WA KA R 7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
BN AT 8 B 3E 2 B SRR S Bl Revenue represents the gross proceeds from sale of properties and gross
T AR 4 Wi A K5 o rental income received and receivable.
AL B T BRI AN R AT The Group’s chief operating decision maker has been identified as the
o ] EELSE PR E TEH A & T4 i executive directors of the Company. The information reported to the
B R B FAR A R G T Eh A A ) 5 T chief operating decision maker for purposes of resource allocation and
B o AR SE B K8 KA T BHATHINT - performance assessment focuses specifically on respective businesses
of the Group. The Group's operating and reportable segments are as
follows:
FHERE - HERHENE Property development —  Development and sale of properties
FHEfE - WENE (GRERAENERS Property leasing —  Property leasing (including lease of self-owned
HAHENE) properties and sub-lease of rented properties)
Vin: L &Y E 3 Segment revenue and results
FHERSE  EHEME At
Property Property
development leasing Total
ARWTE  ARWTET ARWTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BREZR N4 For the year ended
A=t HIEEE 31 December 2014
o3 U 45 Segment revenue 725,025 106,091 831,116
o3 b E A Segment gross profit 220,965 83,209 304,174
E /A A B 2 Allocated corporate expenses (40,846) (44,470) (85,316)
e S Segment results 180,119 38,739 218,858
HAA ~ B Other income, expenses,
€W Fi gains and losses 16,144
il A Finance costs (56,041)
N WAL B Unallocated corporate expenses (28,983)
M EE A ENERE Share of losses of joint ventures (4,969)
BREMENTHES Changes in fair value of
investment properties 271,585
& B AT v ) Profit before tax 416,594

15 BEAES S e T
Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited
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BEZF -4+ ZH =1—H IL4 F For the year ended 31 December 2014

7. Wt B iR ) 7.
Vgl & YES YE Y

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

FEHEMRE @ FHERS Hat
Property Property
development leasing Total
ARBTF ANRETE AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REZF =4 For the year ended

+ZH=+—HILEE 31 December 2013
S Vg Segment revenue 761,851 109,424 871,275
5 #EF Segment gross profit 212,266 89,819 302,085
B4 e | B S Allocated corporate expenses (37,994) (33,350) (71,344)
oy Hh A Segment results 174,272 56,469 230,741
HA WA~ B 32 Other income, expenses,

45 K s 18 gains and losses 19,263
il A Finance costs (43,795)
A WAL Unallocated corporate expenses (31,837)
A4 — Z Tk A w Y s 18 Share of loss of an associate (1,307)
BEWENFHES Changes in fair value of

investment properties 246,814
B ol i Ve ) Profit before tax 419,879

bSO 53 F kg 4 AR H AR A i
i o R 5 47 PRS0 20 0 R B 4

AL RIRT B30 T AR A R BUR SL E
3T 2 AR B RHBCR AR - iR SEAUE &
G BB 8 0 i AT BUSAS » 8K
WIS T-ESEE » FABIROA ~ B S s Mok
B — R E A R R G A e A
S0 e 1R Bl A A i A o M8 2 1) G
DR MER A B TR L B b TR B AT A
PN

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales during the

reporting year.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
information are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. Segment results represent the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, changes in fair value
of investment properties, other income, expenses, gains and losses,
share of loss of an associate, share of losses of joint ventures and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.

20144 BE i i
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7. WeER B R () 7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
G AR Segment assets and liabilities

FHEMSE  BHREME A5t

Property Property
development leasing Total
ANR#ETT ARFETT ARETIL
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000

/A 11 22 As at 31 December 2014

+ZA=+—H
oG Segment assets 1,776,666 4,243,186 6,019,852
I EN NG ] Property, plant and equipment 16,962
At R Wi KT Other receivables,

e R A FOR deposits and prepayments 33,007
AT B & Bank deposits and cash 837,105
Hit kA& E Other unallocated assets 248,423
A Total assets 7,155,349
Vi Segment liabilities 135,259 60,927 196,186

I b 8 (B AN T 45 B B AR Land appreciation tax and

income tax liabilities 237,711
|ATH Bank borrowings 1,202,054
BT Senior notes 880,382
EALHITE A E Deferred tax liabilities 825,017
HoAth & A i A Other unallocated liabilities 119,081
=Lk Total liabilities 3,460,431
R_Fz—= As at 31 December 2013

+oAZ+—H
a3 B A Segment assets 1,630,725 3,805,042 5,435,767
ENY G ET Property, plant and equipment 21,083
L A R o BRI Other receivables,

e s B E A ROR deposits and prepayments 37,714
SRATAE I X B 4 Bank deposits and cash 1,472,256
HAth R & & Other unallocated assets 119,465
B ABE Total assets 7,086,285

& iy % b P R AT P2 ]
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e iz B o 08 B R (42)
g3l B o S B ()

FHEME  BHEHRE 5t

Property Property
development leasing Total
ANREFIL AR¥TFIT AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N Segment liabilities 614,750 90,156 704,906

T 3 (BB AN I A5 B A R Land appreciation tax and

income tax liabilities 197,884
PRATE 3K Bank borrowings 1,240,392
B Senior notes 583,241
E 28 TE B 1R Deferred tax liabilities 753,408
HoAth o i B 1R Other unallocated liabilities 82,121
=Kk Total liabilities 3,561,952

7

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

SR 2 R B R AE 7 3 ] 70 i UL I 5

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating

resources between segments:

o BREEWE CRITIEFHY RERE .
Y (AFER Y% Bs Kafin) -
FROE B8 DU B 45 (O L B o B3R
FREEY - CR B oMk
WK IR % 55 41 B 2 D (B 4 AL B
AT BRSNS > B A HA B A
MBI EEE s I

Other than investment properties, completed carparks and
carparks under construction (included in property, plant and
equipment), leasehold land held for development for sale,
properties under development for sale, completed properties for
sale, trade receivables and prepayment for leasehold land held for
development for sale, all other assets are not allocated to segment

assets; and

o BREZMEAEIE B E Y BOR .
14 R B AT BOA L) R B 450 B
A A BB AR DR R 2 F A

Other than trade payables, deposits and prepayments received
from pre-sale of properties and rental received in advance, all

other liabilities are not allocated to segment liabilities.

BE_Z-NEF+_A=1+—HILFE #
e 4 [ B — 7% 5 B R A SR I 1096 AL i
W (CE AR -

No single customer of the Group contributed 10% or more to the
Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

AR [ B AN A s 2 IR B H
IR SE S » T A 4 O ) L 8 A AL A o
° substantially located in the PRC.

The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived solely from

its operations in the PRC, and non-current assets of the Group are

20144 BE i i

Annual Report 2014



122

fr A B S R P RE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF—MF+H =1 — H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

8. JLABWCA ~ BH 3K~ W4k K 8.
1 b A (1)

OTHER INCOME, EXPENSES, GAINS AND LOSSES

Other income

SEemE %k

2014 2013

AR #F ANRETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

SRATAE A B A Interest income from bank deposits 13,804 10,402

MESRERE Ak Interest income from derivative financial

A A assets/liabilities 10,884 3,301

A4 B E A B A Interest income from available-for-sale investments 2,274 =
KA L H A HE 2 Compensation income from not delivery of

YA (FEEE) land use rights (note) 33,270 =

HoAty Others 6,939 -

67,171 13,703

WRE R RR A CRERE 2K 1 BUR R AR
45 - s (7 T HE U 080 o T 2
5 A R A Aok o o {7 P REE T S A+ 2 A
B o % 4 3 79 AR AR ot 1) 4
ST PA S CCR PN Y e
—WEF A=+ — B2 H LBk

Note: The amount represents compensation income recognized from the
government as a result of failure to delivery of land use rights
according to the agreed period as specified in the land use rights
purchase agreement. The amount is calculated in accordance with the
terms of the land use rights purchase agreement and recorded as other

receivables at 31 December 2014, details of which are set out in note

FIHIET - A7 B oF 15 O B 321 21.

) HAhlEs K

(2) Other gains and losses

= A

2014 2013

AR T T AR H#T T

RMB’000 RMB 000
HEY - MR KA BIR Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (3,394) (826)
HEREEREREER Loss on disposal of held for trading investments - (32)
BEH BB /A 72Utk Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries 391 -

ik smEE Al Changes in fair value of derivative

N FE S financial assets/liabilities (50,419) 24,432
WE S i 4 (s 1R T3 AR Net foreign exchange gains (losses) 13,686 (11,571)
(39,736) 12,003

46 W R Hb 2 JBE A B A W
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OTHER INCOME, EXPENSES, GAINS AND LOSSES
(Continued)

(3) Other expenses

“EemeE CFoSF

2014 2013

A BT AR T

RMB’000 RMB'000

ETTR X Listing expenses - (4,400)
BT EREEZ Compensation expense incurred

BB 3 (BiFE) on late delivery of properties (Note) (4,816) -

HAth Others (6,475) (2,043)

(11,291) (6,443)

WERE o2 B o A T R M T B 2
fih e MR AR S AP e E B &
SN B o % W AR

Note: The amount represents compensation paid to customers as a result of
delivery of properties after the agreed period as specified in the sales

and purchase agreements. The amounts are calculated in accordance

i MG with the terms of the sales and purchase agreements.
5T Total 16,144 19,263
YA 9.  FINANCE COSTS
e S kd ZE—-ZA
2014 2013
ANR¥ T ANRHT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR 2 TRE R Interests on bank loans wholly repayable
SRAT B A S within five years 61,341 44,317
IR FLAE N 2 ER A AR 1Y Interests on senior notes wholly repayable
(% ikl s within five years 75,221 49,793
B BEAML Z BB R E Less: Amount capitalized to properties
EY TR Likid<y under development for sale and
L E R investment properties under development (80,521) (50,315)
56,041 43,795
201445 FEHE

Annual Report 2014

123



B B S R P RE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEZE D4+ ZH =+ —H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

10.  BRBE i & A 10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
FRBLHT G A TD &8 H0BR (FEA) T 5145 HE S Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging (crediting):
i ¢
L
2014 2013
A BT AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
#HAEM 4 (M) Directors’ remunerations (note 11) 15,351 16,294
Hoft B THA - Other staff costs:
— ¥4 K H A 4E A — Salaries and other benefits 33,546 33,264
— IR RAR A EEH 4 3R — Retirement benefit scheme contributions 5,529 5,017
e T A Total staff costs 54,426 54,575
B BEALERETEEWER  Less: Amount capitalized to properties
B R W & under development for sale and
investment properties under development (10,2806) (9,086)
44,140 45,489
BEWEMSIA Rental income in respect of investment properties (92,329) (99,057)
W EATHSRANBEWMERN  Less: Direct operating expenses of investment
HEKEH X properties that generated rental income 12,807 13,804
(79,522) (85,253)
A E YA S WA Rental income from sub-lease of rented properties (13,762) (10,367)
I KCE TH B S A A 6 B S Less: Rental expenses of properties
under operating lease 10,075 5,801
(3,687) (4,5606)
CEWEBA Cost of properties sold 463,274 506,935
1% BT Auditor’s remuneration 1,150 1,000
EN NG R Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7,915 5,045
i R T BT IR W
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1. EF-EEITBABEBEAM4 11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

EAT SR AL Rl R R AT BON B2

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the directors and the chief

RREF T - executive of the Company wete as follows:
#3
Faek  MEMHK  BAKREAN
e HEHEA (Wke)  ahEIft At
Performance  Retirement
Salaries, related benefit
and other payments scheme
Fees benefits (note ¢) contributions Total
ARWTE ARETE ARKTE ARETT ARKTE
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
REZZ—4 For the year ended
+ZAZ+—HIEEE 31 December 2014
HIiTEF Executive directors
EHEEE Mr. Wong Yam Yin 238 - 6,469 - 6,707
LA (Hata) Mr. Wong Kam Fai (note a) 95 2,334 1,548 13 3,990
FHwEE Mr. Wong Kam Keung Barry 95 1,254 1,548 13 2,910
Tjie Tjin Fung 5k M. Tjie Tjin Fung 190 - 186 - 376
David Janatad Mr. David Janata 158 - 140 - 298
FHHITHE Non-executive directors
Kiky Gunawan /i Mr. Kiky Gunawan 190 - 186 - 376
Janata Suwita7C/E Mr. Janata Suwita 158 - 140 - 298
BRAEMR A (B aED) M. Chan Wai Kin (note b) 16 - - - 16
B HHITEE Independent non-executive directors
A S Mr. Hui Yan Moon 95 - - - 95
HIR e Mr. Wong Ying Loi 95 - - - 95
fil %% 4+ Ms. Howe Sau Man 95 - - - 95
FRAERE Mr. Lie Tak Sen 95 - - - 95
1,520 3,588 10,217 26 15,351
20 144F B
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BEZE—MF+H =+ — H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

E4 PN

A R AT N HOR B B 4

1.

DIRECTORS’,

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

(%) EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
B
ek  MEMZ RAEER
e HAbER (Bske) AR A5t
Performance Retirement
Salaries, related benefit
and other payments scheme
Fees benefits (note ¢)  contributions Total
ARBTE ARWTE ARMTE ARETT ARKTT
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000
WEZZ-=& For the year ended
+-H=+—HILEE 31 December 2013
HiTEH Executive directors
EHEEE Mr. Wong Yam Yin 235 = 5,964 = 6,199
T LA (M5Ea) Mr. Wong Kam Fai (note a) 94 2,118 1,427 12 3,651
FwEE Mr. Wong Kam Keung Barry 94 971 1,427 12 2,504
B fafeese 2k (Hfstp) Mt. Chan Wai Kin (note b) 62 837 1,346 9 2,254
Tjie Tjin Fung /4 M. Tjie Tjin Fung 188 - 171 - 359
David JanataJG 4 M. David Janata 156 - 128 - 284
FHITEF Non-executive directors
Kiky Gunawan/t 4 Mr. Kiky Gunawan 188 - 171 - 359
Janata Suwita G £ Mr. Janata Suwita 156 - 128 - 284
B e se 2k (HfsED) M. Chan Wai Kin (note b) 32 = = - 32
B FHTEE Independent non-executive directors
ER Y Mr. Hui Yan Moon 92 - - = 92
AR Mr. Wong Ying Loi 92 - - - 92
M#EE4a+ Ms. Howe Sau Man 92 = = = 92
BEESE Mr. Lie Tak Sen 92 - - ~ 92
1,573 3,926 10,762 33 16,294
W 5E Notes:

A ESMESRAIR R AR A
T b ST 5 TN 6 6L 4 HLAR B B
BRI TS (B 4 o

HATBAR > K
AT B

by BEEEAER-E-=ZFAA ST EHR
ERTEREERELFNTES TR
F—4EZ ] A N BHE AT E

o REMEME

HuFE A R 7

KIS E R NRBUEE -

Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

a)

b)

9]

Mr. Wong Kam Fai is also the Chief Executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the

Chief Executive.

Mr. Chan Wai Kin resigned as executive director and appointed as non-
executive director on 27 September 2013, and resigned as non-executive

director on 28 February 2014.

The performance related payment is determined by reference to the individual

performance of the directors.
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DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The five highest paid individuals included three (2013: four) directors
for the year ended 31 December 2014, whose emoluments are included
in the above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2013: one)

individual are as follows:

ZRAE SE—ZAF
2014 2013
ARTIT AR¥F
RMB’000 RMB’000
& : Employees:

— ¥4 K H A 4E A — Salaries and other benefits 1,993 413
— AL — Performance related bonuses 735 384
— B IRAE A5 B — Retirement benefit scheme contributions 80 33
— DA A 85 B3 1By S Ak — Equity-settled share-based payments 30 -
2,838 830

0568 B <52 B T T 91 - Their emoluments were within the following bands:
R4 —E—=AF
2014 2013
AIL#A AT#HH
No. of No. of
employees employees
1,000,001%5 7T £1,500,000%5 JT HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 1
2,000,001 7T %2,500,000% TG HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 =
2 1

AR IR > A MR 1) A W AT ] 3 2 AT A
T2 e M SR T4 > 1
o S AP L A s ) P < 1 7 G
A o 7R o M2 R SRS AP 4 -

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors
of the Company or any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors has waived any emoluments during

the year.

20144 FEH
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12. BiH 12. TAXATION
e LAY S
2014 2013
AR T T AR ¥ T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Bl A IH - Current tax:
— ) 4 2 T 15 — PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”)
EGE SEC ) 65,005 53,505
— L EB — Land appreciation tax 57,896 28,020
— B T S EB B EEEM - Over provision of land appreciation
(Bt &) tax in prior years (Note) - (67,324)
122,901 14,201
R S T Deferred tax 59,298 89,537
182,199 103,738
WA BT 20 1 4 B R R i R Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
Bl FH%16.5% w15 o H A 4R B 7E A vk I assessable profit for both years. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
o A AT o] PE AL 0 ) - O 7 AT TR has been made in the consolidated financial statements as the Group had
Slf SR 7 Vs A A L 4B A no assessable profit in Hong Kong.
Mg e N RIEFB A ERRE (¥ Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Fifgmie: ) KA BE BRG] > A4 Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
V) v [ B A W) B R 25 % the tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is 25%.
4R E — UL — A — B4R (e According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of the
N RS B b (B AT ) DL R A PRC on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) ( R N o 1 o
—UILEAE—H L RS (FEA W EBEFT0R M) effective from 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
RILANE £ s (A0 AT I B B B A R 7 Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on
HERE > T v I i 5 e A T I LAT (3 A RFEANE £ s (LG AT R B B RE A ) effeccive from
BEFEA R RTA WA (B &Y 2415 30A 27 January 1995, all income from the sale or transfer of state-owned
AT FIR B S > ARG B AR B i B g land use rights and buildings in the PRC (being the proceeds of sales of
BH 3 ZE AR A F 1 3 (B 309 2609 1) 2 HE L properties less deductible expenditures including borrowing costs and
AL, T e B ; i AR R (E property development expenditures) is subject to LAT at progressive
R T TR E AR 9209 o I8 B R4 5 rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation of land value;
EEYE T B - with an exemption provided for property sales of ordinary residential

properties (L HEE 22 ) if their appreciation values do not exceed

20% of the sum of the total deductible items.

i R LT BT IR
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12. BLYEH (4) 12.

AR AR AR AR B o BB B s R
OB E At 0 (BB I A o A - SR L
MK ER R AT 5 U B B 0H 3R TAR Bt
B MR 12 - T 5 1 B S - (B
BB T (A58 (I AR Y S A R
AN o A FE PR BE S L s (0 B B A 55
BRBIRE L [ T ER R AR AR -

TAXATION (Continued)

During the year, the Group estimated and made provision for LAT
according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination
by the tax authorities upon completion of the property development
projects, and the LAT determined by the tax authorities might be
different from the basis on which the provision for LAT is calculated.
The EIT and LAT liabilities are recorded in the “land appreciation tax
and income tax liabilities” of the consolidated financial statements.
WMat: B2 —F-Z4F+ " A=Z+—HILEE,
A% S T £5% [ 8 0 30 [ st R 10 55 3 28 O Y BT
T4 N R 867,324,00078 3 48 (B0 1) 48 4
B AR AR R = -2
A=Zt—HILEERGERAR BCHEH
BRI BB R ([ Iy BB AR |) [ 2 o
R S5 7 B 7 P R ] BB [
9 H AR5 3 1 6 75 1 4 HL At T b
HEFHE > WO SR 0 A AR TE R i
o (B[]

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group reversed LAT provision
of approximately RMB67,324,000 overprovided in previous periods in relation
to two property projects and credited the same amount to profit or loss in the
year ended 31 December 2013, which has been agreed by the respective local
tax bureau (the “Local Tax Bureau”). As it is not certain whether such basis
would be acceptable to the Local Tax Bureau for other projects or to other

tax bureau in different tax justifications, the Group has not reversed LAT

provision for other projects.

bl {1 A A St B PR

The tax charge for the both years can be reconciled to the accounting

LUNNE profit as follows:
ZR YA SRS
2014 2013
ARWT T AR¥T
RMB’000 RMB’000
bk o i s ) Profit before tax 416,594 419,879
259 1 b B AR SE T A5 R Tax at PRC EIT rate of 25%
E SN bk R 104,149 104,970
AN R A1 BH S B S i Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 5,383 24,140
e A ONOE R A Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (9,667) (8,640)
o T SR TE e 48 1 g 2 Effect of tax losses not recognized 35,198 11,973
) 8 A R W RR 2 B T R 1 Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognized - (1,034)
+ 4t B4 (B LAT 57,896 (39,304)
o b 8 (R A BTS2 Tax effect of LAT (14,474) 9,826
s v B0 B A ) R 4 i Uk ) Withholding tax on undistributed
B0 1 TE B profit of PRC subsidiaries 3,714 1,807
182,199 103,738
201445 JEE e il
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BEZE D4+ ZH =+ —H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

13.

&R
Golden

T JBe 4 A

AR FIHEA N A A S A T 1K
L e S

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable

to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

“F-mE SRSk
2014 2013
A BT ANRWT T
B A Earnings RMB’000 RMB 000
FIVERI A IS A R Z R Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted
BA (AR RHA A earnings per share (profit for the year
JRE 1k 4F B2 i 1 ) attributable to owners of the Company) 234,395 316,141
=
2014 2013
TH TH
JBe A 8 H Number of shares ‘000 000
AR R e B A 28 R Y Weighted average number of ordinary shares
- 308 P o R - 34 for the purpose of basic earnings per share 1,802,456 1,783,660
TR T 5 B A 7 i v Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
A fi 1 2 to over-allotment option - 60
PR 5t 58 T 4 v 2 ) 1) Weighted average number of ordinary shares
58 i R T 5 B for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 1,802,456 1,783,720

BEF=F+"HA=1t—HILFE A
VTR LA Z8 P - 48 A T2 8T
BEREEANABRE_F—=FT2H
= — BR300
FEZEABENTER -F—=4F—H—H
AT A -

BE_FZ—WFEF A= T—HILFEZH
JRe A 2 ) 2 R I AR AN A F 2 R
70 B PR AT TR 5 o S5 W PO 2 A7 i
B RERTBTE F 8% =%
AT A = — B R 2 I g A s
T I A 8 AR o

HuFE A R 7]
Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the calculation of the weighted
average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic earnings per
share has taken into account the assumption that the Capitalization Issue
as defined in note 30 to the Company’s audited financial statements for

the year ended 31 December 2013 had been effective on 1 January 2013.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2014 did not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options as the exercise price of those options was
higher than the average market price during the year. Accordingly, the
diluted earnings per share was same as the basic earnings per share for

the year ended 31 December 2014.



14.

A B 2 i 3 B
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEZF M4+ H =1—H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

B B 14. DIVIDENDS
e S UK —R—ZAF
2014 2013
ARWT X ANRWTT
RMB’000 RMB 000
AN RERR AR Z R - Dividends recognised as distribution during the
year:
BE-Z—=41+=1 Final dividend for the year ended
=t —HIEFEEZRMRE 31 December 2013 of RMB0.0355
A R %0.035570 (2013: final dividend for the year ended
(ZF = HEZEF—"4 31 December 2012: RMB0.0555) per share
ToAZt—HIEFEEZ
ARSI R #o0.05557T) 63,987 100,000
AZEF—NET+ A=t —HKE - EFE Subsequent to 31 December 2014, a final dividend of RMB0.0195 in
wREE —F—ET A=+ —H L respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 per share has been proposed
FE R A R 0 i B N R ¥ 0.0195 78 - M by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
JE o JR SRS B J P SR 4F K g R HEUEAR forthcoming annual general meeting.
T AR o
201448 BEHE
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BEZE—D4E+ZH =+ —H IL4FE For the year ended 31 December 2014

SRR VY Ta

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

K iN
B Y2 S5 L WO B ES 3 vig MR it
Computers
Land and Motor and office Leasehold  Construction
Buildings vehicles equipment improvements  in progress Total

ANRETT AR¥TT ARETT ARETT ARKTT AR¥ETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

A Cost
RZF—=#E—H—H At 1 January 2013 76,296 3,136 1,662 11,146 36,224 128,464
WE Additions = 1,428 1,944 78 12,775 16,225
HHRACRIGEWE Transfer from completed
properties for sale 1,905 - - - - 1,905
ks Disposals (1,272) = (346) = = (1,618)
Wo_Z—-=%#+"H=+—H At 31 December 2013 76,929 4,564 3,260 11,224 48,999 144,976
P (FaE) Adjustment (Note) = = = = (22,936) (22,936)
WE Additions = 4,122 1,627 3,438 2,432 11,619
¢ Transfer 28,495 - - - (28,495) -
& Disposals (7,688) - 477) - - (8,165)
RZF—NEFZA=+—H At 31 December 2014 97,736 8,686 4,410 14,662 - 125,494
b Depreciation
ZEZ—-=F—H—H At 1 January 2013 6,241 2,675 1,100 5,168 = 15,184
A A Provided for the year 1,990 218 448 2,389 = 5,045
2 B Eliminated on disposals (98) = (190) = = (288)
“E-ZFTZA=+—H At 31 December 2013 8,133 2,893 1,358 7,557 = 19,941
$ NEA Provided for the year 3,530 1,212 1,510 1,663 = 7,915
i FE B Eliminated on disposals = = (455) = = (455)
RoF—NEF-A=+—H At 31 December 2014 11,663 4,105 2,413 9,220 = 27,401
MR T Carrying Value
REF—=H+"H=1—H At 31 December 2013 68,796 1,671 1,902 3,667 48,999 125,035
RZF—NE+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2014 86,073 4,581 1,997 5,442 - 98,093
BEFRE - 08 7 4 B > A R L R T O A R Note: In prior years, the Group allocated the cost of the properties under

SR (WAL ) M AE B W) 2EA o B
Y W B - PR B E
B WA B TERYECR T
[IE-%:E/EFa:{ 3= ki )TN
LB R A% B 43 T 5% 55 0 3 10 B

(TRLATARE |) o A ACAF BE » WA 38 4 b
M A 2E N R ¥22,936,00070 1 A R
11,373,00078 & A B #11,563,00078 43 7l &
o B B B R R Y R S B Y
B

i R LT JBEAT IR

132 Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

construction between property, plant and equipment, investment properties
under development and properties under development using the estimated
gross floor areas (“GFA") before completion. During the year, certain
properties under construction are completed and the actual GFA of each
type of properties are different with the estimation, which resulted in a
relocation of development cost on these properties upon completion (the
“Cost Adjustment”). The Cost Adjustment reallocated RMB22,936,000
of properties under construction to cost of investment properties under
development by RMB11,373,000 and to cost of properties under development
by RMB11,563,000 during this year.



HE

. WE- W RS () 15.

RS TG 3 S AT G4 o TR A
T 58 M [ 7 A o 0 o P RE B o £
M P RE R AR T b S
(B B0 7 204F 22 3647 3 ] 79 7 LA S8 8 %
k-

U ] 6 AR5 s A 3%
BB -

HEB0F
BMRIATE - 3%

M (DB A )

AZF—EFZH =+ — B RIEEA
N R #510,484,0007C ( & — =4 ANRE
11,280,0007C ) 19 1 H1 ] 47 L HE 47 T 4R 47 >
AR A SR B 1 T SRAT R TR 1R -

AF—EF A= —H g (2%
— AR R (E A A R ¥31,472,00000) 15 B
TR E A TR T - A AR R 2 T
SRATREE MR IR -

T3t BT A B ) L A B

£ B 2 i R B
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

— 4+ = H =+ —H IL 4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The land and buildings of the Group comprising land use rights and
buildings in the PRC where the cost of land use rights cannot be
separated reliably. The land use rights is classified as a finance lease, and
the land and buildings are amortized and depreciated between 20 to 36

years using straight-line method.

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation of

other property, plant and equipment:

Motor vehicles —  4or 10 years

Computers and - 3 years
office equipment

Leaschold improvements -  over the lease petiod or 5 years, whichever is

shorter

As at 31 December 2014, land and buildings with carrying amount of
approximately RMB10,484,000 (2013: RMB11,280,000) were pledged

to banks to secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, no construction in progress (2013: with
carrying amount of approximately RMB31,472,000) was pledged to

banks to secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group.

The land and buildings are held under medium-term land leases in the
PRC.

20144 BE i i
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16. #¥EWE 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
R B B R
[BY EN MEh BREMEZ
REM*E REM*E gL ot
Leasehold
land held for
Investment  development
Completed properties into
investment under investment
properties  development properties Total
ANBEFL  ARBFTE ARKFLZ ARKFTEL
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AT Fair Value
R=ZF—=4F—H—H At 1 January 2013 2,970,600 260,000 - 3,230,600
A Additions = 89,409 121,853 211,262
BRACR LHEDE Transfer from completed
properties for sale 11,174 - - 11,174
A FEE Increase in fair value 115,426 57,591 73,797 246,814
MEZF—=FTZH=1—H  Ac31 December 2013 3,097,200 407,000 195,650 3,699,850
JAR (R Adjustment (Note) - 11,373 - 11,373
nE Additions = 154,267 = 154,267
HERHCRIFEYE Transfer from completed properties
for sale 22,425 = = 22,425
LX) Transfer 439,933 (244,283) (195,650) -
NEEREM Increase in fair value 209,942 61,643 - 271,585
MZF—MEFZA=+—H  Ac31 December 2014 3,769,500 390,000 - 4,159,500

WL A% S AR I R s BT 2 RS R 2

Note: The amount represents the Cost Adjustment as set out in note 15.

AR H BB ISR (T R B 0 2
(i) Akl s A A PR 7] (ZF— =4 o i

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties were arrived at on

the basis of a valuation carried out at the end of the reporting by Crowe

FRRRHAA R ) R B ACE T I A (E
1122 250 A [ 90 8 (o 7 288 S A LR T

BT TV TR AR 6 & B G o AR
R8BS T 432 IR T (A Y o S il

MER TREYRN S > GEIESE T E
P SE R T 28 5 VB AL IR B BLA T
AR O S 2R YE - S5 R SRR
BROATE S (I ) 5 BB BUE I
BFpfl B At B sE 2 A L G A (T
eI  ES IR L

i R T BT IR W
Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

Horwath (HK) Consulting & Valuation Limited (2013: CBRE HK
Limited), who is a firm of independent valuer, who have qualifications
such as members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The Group's
investment properties have been valued individually, on market value

basis.

For completed investment properties, valuation was arrived at by making
reference to the market transactions of comparable properties and on
the basis of capitalization of the rental income derived from existing
tenancies with due allowance for reversionary income potential of the
properties, where appropriate. The valuation of investment properties
under development and leasehold land held for development into
investment properties was carried at by making reference to the market

transactions of comparable properties.



16. EWE )

TEREMA -Z—EF =T —A R
F—=F+ A =+ A ERREA TER
PR AR 1 T BB e R E % S A
B AT-E CRERILE BT B A (E T &
WA BIR) » DL RATEF R T E 5 2 AT
EHER B—2HE =) W&k -

REWH# ATEER
Fair value
Investment property hierarchy
St I 5 F 35 £
Golden Wheel Level 3

International Plaza

fo 1 T 255 A M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF M4+ H =1—H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these investment properties are determined at 31 December 2014 and
31 December 2013 (in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs
used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value

measurements are categorized (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to

which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

B YEXT NS

Valuation technique(s)

and key input(s)

HELBSERRA L AR
A combination of direct
comparison approach and

income method

HELBE I ER AR
5 8B 2 ERERT
Direct comparison approach
which is based on prices

realized on actual transactions

HRBBBEREZWAR

TEMARGEA
(DEARAL 2R

Q¥ HHE: K

O Yl

Income method based on
discounted cash flows with
the following key input:

(1) Capitalization rate

(2) Daily unit rent; and

(3) Level adjustment

A B AR
ST (B 1 B R
Relationship of

BRI

unobservable

inputs to fair value

BEAL R AR - T (A -

The higher the capitalization rate,

Significant unobservable input(s)

Lt AR A AES
WEWE R R I EA L R
F5.5% (ZF—=4F16%) o

Capitalisation rate, taking into account

the lower the fair value.

B0 H A AT -
The higher the daily unit rent, the

of the capitalisation of rental income
potential, nature of the property,
prevailing market condition of 5.5% higher the fair value.
(2013: 6%).

A AT A o
B0 H ARG A BT 0 The higher the level adjustment,
AR I I~ o B B AR R A
- WER RS R £
e By H AP 0ok AR 27 e
(CE-ZF:BHETHRARY
257C)

Daily unit rent, using direct market

the higher the fair value.

comparables and taking into account
of time, location and individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and facilities, of RMB27/sq.m./day
(2013: RMB25/sq.m/day) for the base

level.

WAL 19 R F
BN %E5% (ZF =4
40%%£95%) °

Level adjustment on individual floors of
the property range from 45% to 75%
(2013: from 40% to 95%) on specific

levels.

20144 BE i i
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BEZE D4+ ZH =+ —H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

16. BEWE 4)

REWE WNFHEES
Fair value
Investment property hierarchy
i 45 g £ 05 =
Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Level 3

Time Square

46 W R Hb 2 JBE A B A W
Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

B UEXT VNG 3

Valuation technique(s)

and key input(s)

BB KA 2
A combination of direct
comparison approach and

income method

BB TR B 5 B
BB EIEST

Direct comparison approach which
is based on prices realized on

actual transactions

FERAB B SR Z WA
TEGAYIS

LERL

Q¥R AT &

)%

Income method based on
discounted cash flows with the
following key input:

(1) Capitalization rate

(2) Daily unit rent; and

(3) Level adjustment

BB 0L

Significant unobservable input(s)

r*&%%mﬁﬁkﬁﬁ&mmﬁﬁ
EAMLI R A5 25% (2% — =4
5.5%) °

Capitalisation rate, taking into account of
the capitalisation nature of the property
prevailing market condition of 5.25%

(2013:5.5%).

S FRELE R e 5 M

S A e IRy ] ~ i 7 S A PR R
TG BT B ~ W05 B Bt RS
2o AR AE BT HRARY
7 (ZF =4 BRI K
ARH#16.77E)

Daily unit rent, using direct market
comparable and taking into account of
time, location and individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and facilities, of RMB27/sq.m./day
(2013: RMB16.7/sq.m./day) for the

base level.

WS M R A R 2 2
T 5 1935 9% % 60%
(ZF— =4 40%%200%)

Level adjustment on individual floors of
the property range from 35% to 60%
(2013: 40% to 200%) on specific levels.

A A B
S8 1Y I R
Relationship of
unobservable

inputs to fair value

BEAL H A - T (AR -
The higher the capitalization rate,

the lower the fair value.

S0 E R AP B -
The higher the daily unit rent, the

higher the fair value.

AR50 2 G A
The higher the level adjustment,

the higher the fair value.
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REE

Investment property

T 45 i 97 4
Golden Wheel New

Metro in Nanjing

AT

Fair value

hierarchy

% E ")&
Level 3
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

B UEXT VNG 3

Valuation technique(s)

and key input(s)

BB KA 2
A combination of direct
comparison approach and

income method

BB TR B 5 B
BB EIEST

Direct comparison approach
which is based on prices

realized on actual transactions

FERAB B SR Z WA
TEGAYIS

LERL

Q¥R AT &

)%

Income method based on
discounted cash flows with the
following key input:

(1) Capitalization rate

(2) Daily unit rent; and

(3) Level adjustment

BB 0L

Significant unobservable input(s)

BAt RWENEACLE R
ﬁ%mﬁ BRI S5.5%
“E-EEORER)
Capltallsatlon rate, taking into account of
the capitalisation nature of the property
prevailing market condition of 5.5%
(2013: N/A).

S FRELE R e 5 M
sl 48 5t B R ] ~ 6 2 % AR 9 1R K A
B W R EHR

%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ*k%%nn
SRS ORER) -

Daily unit rent, using direct market
comparable and taking into account of
time, location and individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and facilities, of RMB7/sq.m./day
(2013: N/A).

WS A M T 0 A R S AR Y
S0%E75% (ZF— =4 AR
Level adjustment on individual floors of
the property range from 50% to 75%

(2013: N/A) on specific levels.

A A B
S8 1Y I R
Relationship of
unobservable

inputs to fair value

BEAL H A - T (AR -
The higher the capitalization rate,

the lower the fair value.

S0 E R AP B -
The higher the daily unit rent, the
higher the fair value.

AR50 2 G A
The higher the level adjustment,

the higher the fair value.

201445 BEHE
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16. BEWE &)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

A E L 0 A\ B b
i degiES AFEER NG PELT YN € BB 0L S (819 B 47
Relationship of
Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable
Investment property hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
MR HME R T =M BB KA 2 RS R G AT R AR HAE - AP -
Other properties completed Level 3 A combination of direct Ml EAM R E5.25%%5.75%  The higher the capitalization rate,
in Nanjing comparison approach and income (ZF—=46%) the lower the fair value.
method Capitalisation rate, taking into account
of the capitalisation of nature of the
AR TR E IR 5 B properties, prevailing market condition
BB 2 FARELT of 5.25% t0 5.75% (2013: 6%).
Direct comparison approach which
is based on prices realized on
actual transactions
ERRMBB SR EZRA
o TEMABIES
EARfL R
Income method based on
discounted cash flows with the
following key input:
Capitalization rate
Hiu b b R B0 HELBE TENHEMER PR R R i B e AP -
BRI Level 3 B2 [ L) 2 M AT HEASIIOL i 5 A F10% £20% The higher the locations

(ZF =4 10%520%)

Locations adjustment on individual value.

Other properties under Direct comparison approach adjustment, the higher the fair

development development into which is based on asking prices
locations of the properties range from
10% to 20% (2013: 10% to 20%) on

special locations

investment properties of comparable properties with

location adjustments.

BB YISETE B A A

The investment properties are held under medium-term leases in the
PRC.

WoE—NE+ A =+—H  AERIKRHT

{EA N R ¥52,479,000,0000C ( —F— =41 4

N\ E#52,360,000,0007C) 4% 4 2E 15 £ HEH

TERAT » LA A BRI 25 T 4R AT L A
aﬁ °

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's investment properties with
a carrying amount of approximately RMB2,479,000,000 (2013:
approximately RMB2,360,000,000) were pledged to banks to secure

certain banking facilities granted to the Group.

i R T BT IR W
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BMEZE M4+ = H =+ —H IL4FBE For the year ended 31 December 2014

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

e S UK —R—ZAF
2014 2013
ARWT X AR #T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
N ARG A —JE BT Cost of investment in an associate — unlisted 3,000 3,000
A ST 45 s 4R Share of post — acquisition losses (3,000) (3,000)
AL E AR The Group's associate is as follows:
AR,/ #HZ REBHHZ
[y 22 HER BilA%K FEEEN R B A A e A L FEEH
Country of Proportion of
incorporation Principal place Class of Registered ownership interest
Name of entity Form of entity Iregistration of operation shares held capital held by the Group Principal activity
ARKTT —EF-NE “F-ZF
RMB 000 2014 2013
FRHR RS A AR BlARAR il HR (E) il 10,000 30% 0% BEER
([ERAE])
Nanjing Pocui Jiudian Domestic limited PRC Nanjing, PRC Ordinary Restaurant operations
Guanli Co., Ltd. liability company
(FRHREEE AR AR)
(“Nanjing Pocui”)
T 8 A S B R 18. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES
=
2014 2013
ANR¥ T ANRWT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REESENE LTTHRERA Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures 188,794 6,000
0 A6 WS 4% s 1R Share of post-acquisition losses (4,969) -
183,825 6,000
20 144F B
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18. MEBMEXEMRER 2 18.

TR IR A B & B D SERE IR AT

Al eV

i AH HER Hill%

Country of
incorporation

Name of entity Form of entity [registration

HASRKEREERARAR  ARARFELA i
(T8kED (k)

Nanjing Golden Wheel Coast Domestic limited PRC
Business Management Co., Ltd. liability company
R ERKRFEEEARAR
(“Golden Wheel Coast”) (note 1)

HREHMHARA A ARFEAR KRELHE

(THEEHME]) (k) (THEBRLHE])

Powerlong Golden Wheel Coral Limited liability company  British Virgin Islands
Company Limited ¥ # 4: 9 5 (‘BVI)

H AT (“Powerlong Golden
Wheel Coral”) (note 2)

HEeREBARARAR HRFEAR Eit
(MHEERAE]) (W)

Powerlong Golden Wheel International  Limited liability company ~ Hong Kong
Famous Limited T 24 6 B P A1
H BT (“Powerlong Golden
Wheel Famous”) (note 2)

B REREEEARA B A REEAR HH
(THMERTTERSR]) (W)

Yangzhou Golden Wheel Domestic limited PRC
Powerlong Realty Co., Ltd. liability company
BNEREEEEARAR
(“Yangzhou Golden Wheel
Powerlong Realty”) (note 2)

Mk AoF-—MHEFA=+—-HEZZF

—EFT AT H AR AE
Wi K 7 60% 2 IR HE 5  « SR T > R &
B ﬁﬁ’ﬁkiﬂ A S —
AHTBAEN ARV B2 B
TK 7 265 [l i 2 AR @ﬁ(ﬁ@]aﬁ%ﬂiﬁ E1)3
5~ AT 97 2~ B WL Sk
BT ARSI By A S 2 B 4
REGELER R BT AELE
A NMEA — I B H bl B
3 A AT B AR 4 [t
AR R - PR T
AL D R BE > S 40 B e i 58 TR B
¥ o
i R T BT IR W

Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Details of the Group’s joint ventures at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

E 3¢5

Principal place
of operation

R

Nanjing, PRC

Fit

Hong Kong

Ei

Hong Kong

HEGH

Yangzhou, PRC

Note 1:

HHZ REMIEHZ
e 0 kYA BV B FEEH
Proportion of
Class of Registered effective interest
shares held capital held by the Group Principal activity
Fr  ZE-NE ZF-=F
000 2014 2013
i NG 60% 6%  FRERE
10,0007C
Ordinary RMB10,000 Property Development
il ST 49% 009  fEER
Ordinary USD50 Investment holding
¢! 10,0004 72 49% 0% HEER
Ordinary HKD10,000 Investment holding
i 61,000% ¢ 49% 100%  FEHENE
Ordinary USD61,000 Property Development

At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the Group holds 60% of
the equity investments of Golden Wheel Coast. However under the joint
venture agreement, Golden Wheel Coast is jointly controlled by the Group
and the other party because the relevant activity affecting its returns from
its involvement with Golden Wheel Coast requires the unanimous consent
of the Group and other party sharing the control. Therefore Golden Wheel

Coast is accounted for as a joint venture of the Group.

Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreement, the joint venture
partner will contribute the land on which a commercial, office and
residential property will be built on, while the Group will be responsible
for the construction of the property. At the end of the reporting period,
the entity was still in start-up period and no construction or operation

commenced.
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18.

Note 2:

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, the Group holds 100% of the equity investments
of Powerlong Golden Wheel Coral (formerly known as Golden Wheel
Coral Company Limited), which holds 100% interests in Powerlong
Golden Wheel Famous (formerly known as Golden Wheel International
Famous Limited) and which in turn holds 100% equity interests in
Yangzhou Golden Wheel Powerlong Realty (formerly known as Yangzhou
Jade Golden Wheel Realty Co., Led. (3R G lw & EFRAH) )
(the “Coral Group”). During the reporting period, the Group's equity
interests in the Coral Group were reduced from 100% to 49% as a result of

a deemed disposal, details of which are set out in note 36.

Under the joint venture agreement, the Coral Group is jointly controlled
by the Group and the other party because the relevant activity affecting its
returns from its involvement with the Coral Group requires the unanimous
consent of the Group and other party sharing the control. Therefore the

Coral Group is accounted for as a joint venture of the Group.

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material

joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial information

below represents amounts shown in the joint ventures financial

o statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs.
BERENALE S MR BRI R 5 A The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these
IRo consolidated financial statements.
LimK R Golden Wheel Coast
R L
2014 2013
ARWFr AR WT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
B E Current assets 10,247 10,000
I B Non-current assets - =
B AR Current liabilities 247 -
bl g E R A AR The above amounts of assets and
AL T £ TA liabilities include the following:
RERAEEED Cash and cash equivalents 5,692 5,584
20144F J& i
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18.
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18. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Yangzhou Golden Wheel & Powerlong Realty

Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

e Sl uifea

2014

ARWT L

RMB’000

T G E Current assets 361,901

R A& Non-current assets 1,484

B A Current liabilities 782
b EERABEEEAREDT&HE: The above amounts of assets and

liabilities include the following:

HaRBHEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 346

e

2014

ANRH T

RMB’000

I fi Revenue -

R B XN 1R Loss from continuing operations (10,141)

FENERE Loss for the year (10,141)

AF 1A 42 TH) B SRR Total comprehensive expense for the year (10,141)

i R LT BT IR W
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REBAENRELE 2 18. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Coninued)
BN iR E ¥ ) Yangzhou Golden Wheel & Powerlong Realty (Continued)
AR A R LS DL I The above loss for the year include the following:
e Ik
2014
ANBFTL
RMB’000
I8 S Depreciation and amortisation 208
F B A Interest income 1,286
2B 2 Interest expense 2,080
At BB R B R A R R TN R Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
Z KR B 4 e HE SN R R T (E carrying amount of the interest in Golden Wheel Coast and Yangzhou
ZH R Golden Wheel & Powerlong Realty recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:
“EF N “EF-=F
2014 2013
PR
SRR T E8KF
Yangzhou
Golden Wheel
Golden & Powerlong Golden
Wheel Coast Realty Wheel Coast
AR T AR T I ANBET
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000
AECEEEFHE Net assets of the joint venture 10,000 362,603 10,000
AEERGEREZ Proportion of the Group’s ownership
A RERE 45 LL 41 interest in joint ventures 60% 49% 60%
AEBRGEMEZ Carrying amount of the Group's
HE 4 i T ( interest in joint ventures 6,000 177,675 6,000
3 A Bl R 2 s R SR E R Information of joint ventures that is not individually material
W oE—NE+_H=+—H AmMH (= As at 31 December 2014, there are two (2013: nil) joint ventures that
F— SR ) B R 4 BT 3 A are not individually material to the Group, the carrying amount of the
KRG ERE AEARZFERELELE Group’s interest in these joint ventures is RMB150,000 and the profit or
st BRI 2 A BRI 150,00000 » 4F N R% 55 A8 loss of these joint ventures is insignificant during the year.
PEZBHEABEK
20 144F B
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19. EBHEEBIE 19.

BEIEGE MBI & T RERIAEE
&E RE FHEH - DUT 2 s i AR Y
TSEBLIALG BRI 74T -

DEFERRED TAX

For the purpose of consolidated statement of financial position
presentation, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset.
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

reporting purposes:

—E 4 S

2014 2013

AR¥TIL AR T T

RMB’000 RMB'000

R AL T B Deferred tax assets 24,880 12,569
ELRTE AR Deferred tax liabilities (825,017) (753,408)
(800,137) (740,839)

A S T e R P AR AT B R E (R R

The deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognized by the Group and

Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

RAAE B 5 ) - movements thereon during the year:

B o 1

REME AR
14 fE B ARSI M B s 4 Mt

Withholding

Changes in tax on

fair value of  undistributed

investment  profits of PRC
LAT properties subsidiaries Tax loss Total
ANBEFT ANREFE ARBEFLT  AREFT  ARETFT
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
RZF—=F—-J—H At 1 January 2013 38,595 (678,088) (11,809) = (651,302)
i EEES Charge to profit or loss (26,026) (61,704) (1,807) = (89,537)
“E-ZHFTH=F—H  Ac31 December 2013 12,569 (739,792) (13,616) - (740,839)
Eéfﬂmu 3 Charge to profi or loss 9,658 (67,895) (3,714) 2,653 (59,298)
REF—WEFZA=Z+—H At 31 December 2014 22,227 (807,687) (17,330) 2,653 (800,137)

W T H P M AT LA
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#10,610,0000C (—~F—=4F+ - H=+—
EI L) EEMLURIEQFAQ% 653,000

SRR —H E) CHRAR
Tiﬁ@ A It FI AT - ﬁﬁl]fm/ﬁ’jtﬁ%—f:ﬁlﬁﬁﬁ
HARK188,685,0000C (—F—=4F+_H
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DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Under the EIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding
income tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned in year 2008 onwards and distributed to foreign investors for
companies established in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong
Kong, a preferential rate of 5% will be applied where appropriate.
Other than the PRC withholding income tax provided in respect of
undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries as above, no deferred taxation
has been provided for the remaining retained profits of approximately
RMB258 million as at 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB159 million),
which was derived from the PRC subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 as
the Group has set aside such sum for non-distributable purpose, and is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

At the end of reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately RMB199,294,000 (31 December 2013: RMB47,892,000)
available for offset against future profits. At the end of the reporting
period, a deferred tax asset of RMB2,653,000 (31 December 2013: nil)
in respect of tax losses of RMB10,610,000 (31 December 2013: nil) has
been recognized. No deferred tax asset has been recognized in respective
of the remaining tax losses of RMB188,685,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB47,892,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE

As at 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s completed properties
for sale with a carrying amount of approximately RMB30,276,000 were
pledged to banks to secure certain banking facilities granted to the
Group. As at 31 December 2014, no completed properties for sale was

pledged.

20144 BE i i
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21. B 5 B A ME ok 21.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—%-mE E-=F

2014 2013

ANR¥Fr AR #TFr

RMB’000 RMB'000

& 5 MR IR Trade receivables 38,680 54,938
Al i 3K IH Other receivables 26,078 12,536
JRRE WS SR JRF 2T (B RE) Receivables from the government (Note) 73,270 -
# T R AL T 0 R Advances to contractors 7,955 960
oAt 78 B 16 Other taxes prepaid - 24,218
145,983 92,652

BifRE 3% 4 # A R #73,270,00000 15 2K B BUR B
R F BH % DAL G & I AL M LA K
TE 7 JE i 7 T A IR H040,000,000 70 I JE i
8 A B #533,270,0000G > A B #F 15 #0OR
fif5E8 o

B o BRSO TR L A S B e T
YAk rd<e//E I Gigiit/E i) Tleik L

o B 38 2 AURZRARBEAT B B 5 bl e s
fif o AL — G RN T T % 5 & 4%
M1 A4S T30 H S L B 5 824 -

DUR 2 ASE A2 B 3,/ SR AR B 409 (5
AR RIARER F AR ) Rt » AEHBR BT
2IRARH R0 R 5 BE SR AR ) A -

Note: The amount of RMB73,270,000 represents RMB40,000,000 receivables from
the government in respect of returning the prepayments for leasehold land
held for development for sale and RMB33,270,000 of compensation receivable,

details of which are set out in note 8.

Trade receivables mainly comprise certain consideration for sale of
properties and rental receivable in respect of self-owned investment
properties and sub-leased properties. Consideration in respect of sale
of properties is payable in accordance with the terms of related sale
and purchase agreements. Rental is usually received in advance, and
a credit period of 30 days, or more is granted to certain customers on

discretionary basis.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance
for doubtful debts presented based on the date of delivery of properties/
date of rendering of services which approximated the respective dates on

which revenue was recognized.

R4 R4
2014 2013
ARWTFT AR¥ T
RMB’000 RMB'000
0%30K 0 to 30 days 37,863 54,440
31E60K 31 to 60 days 370 =
1Dk Over 1 year 447 498
38,680 54,938

B R H0 P AT R A )

Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, included in the Group’s accounts
receivables are debtors with the following carrying amounts which
are past due for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss, as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
amounts are still considered recoverable based on historical experience
of the management. The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

e L =

2014 2013

AR FL AR ¥F

RMB’000 RMB'000

0230K 0 to 30 days 428 1,746
BIEPN 31 to 60 days 370 =
1450k Over 1 year 447 498
1,245 2,244

e AT At AE A W ] B 2 ME TR R > A SR 6
%A PR R R W A5 ) - AR R R
S ET IR O RC Sk B T 7 BUR A S
AR 305 7 7 ) At A T e ]
R IRIE ORI o R IRIEWGRIR Bf 22 B
e

In assessing the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group considers
any change in the credit quality of the customers. The Group recognizes
allowance for doubtful receivables based on estimated irrecoverable
amounts determined by reference to past default experience of the
counterparty and an analysis of the counterparty’s current financial
position. Movements in the allowance for doubtful receivables are as

follows:

B Y4 —ZE—=ts

2014 2013

A REF I NR¥TFT

RMB’000 RMB 000

—H—H 1 January 1,095 1,095

bk Write off (1,095) -

+—-H=+—H 31 December - 1,095
20144F JiE i 1
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22. fik4mEE Al

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES

e L= S

2014 2013

AR T ANR¥ T

RMB’000 RMB 000

fiE4m (aE) /gé (B 3E) Derivative financial (liabilities)/assets (note) (25,987) 24,432
ST Analysed as:

)& E Current assets 12,351 11,448
Uit 115 & Non-current (liabilities)/assets (38,338) 12,98
FnE (A EE liabil 4

(25,987) 24,432
B R — SR AN B T AT Note: In April 2013, the Company entered into RMB/US$ (United States Dollar)
= ) 8 ) i

SARY S ETBE RN AN ([ZF
—ZAEMAEY]) R ZF—NEF A
Z=t—AE=F—-=Z%#+"H=+—H>
W F—=/FWAHY HA AR,/
FELEBREHNGHZAEASELAR
#600,000,000705%97,158,128.03F 70 * FE UL
R AN EREMIE R T /A G A
M #9.989% 519.99% 3 £ [ & FI 8 » i i 4%
N2 ARS8 B AF R 311.25% 8 5
BEFE - R-F—=FNARE %

ﬁ@ﬂi%ﬁ:*XQZEMHﬁ%ET

ZA MR — K o AL (B
$~A$@H#+ﬁﬂ s RN T B B

AT B RA S - T —=AF M A
HEZE¥EBREGHZATEES AR
#30,489,00070  HEHERARE -Z—
FE+ZA=Z+—HILEEZHEZ (BHEZ
FE—ZF A=+ —HIEFEEZRA:
AR H16,896,00078) °

AR — AR\ H o AR LS T RATRT
SENRYE EE R AL
—ZENABM) R F—NE+ A
=t—ALR=FZ—-=F+ZHA=+—H
W= F—=F A HY HA AR,/
ENBEEERMAENZ A BAEE /AR
285,000,000 7T 546,638,953.59 35 JC © FE UL
TP AN TFIRERIE L TR BA SR H4F
I 25.869% J25.909% 3¢ A7 B 52 AL » 3 HL
AE%%%$iﬁ’f¢ﬂ$1%%%ﬁﬁ
EMB R FE—=ZENAREZE—A
EAH&%W::£~:$AHﬁ%ET

’7#?

46 W R Hb 2 JBE A B A W
Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

cross currency rate swap contracts (the “April 2013 Swap”) with certain banks.
The notional principal amount of the outstanding RMB/US$ cross currency
rate swap contracts unders the April 2013 Swap as at 31 December 2014 and
31 December 2013 was RMB600,000,000 or US$97,158,128.03. Through
this arrangement, the Company is able to pay a fixed interest at 9.98% and
9.99% per annum based on US$ notional principal amount and receive a fixed
interest at 11.25% per annum based on RMB notional principal amount. The
swaps under the April 2013 Swap are settled on a semi-annually basis from
April 2013 to April 2016. On the termination date of 25 April 2016, the
notional principal amount will be finally exchanged between the Company
and banks. The change in fair value of currency rate swap contracts under the
April 2013 Swap of RMB30,489,000 has been recognized as expense for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (Income for the year ended 31 December 2013:
RMB16,896,000).

In August 2013, the Company entered into RMB/US$ cross currency rate
swap contracts (the “August 2013 Swap”) with certain banks. The notional
principal amount of the outstanding RMB/US$ cross currency rate swap
contracts under the August 2013 Swap as at 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2013 was RMB285,000,000 or US$46,638,953.59. Through this
arrangement, the Company is able to pay a fixed interest at 5.86% and 5.90%
per annum based on US$ notional principal amount and receive a fixed interest
at 7.36% per annum based on RMB notional principal amount. The swaps

under the August 2013 Swap are settled on a semi-annually basis from August
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Z 3 A T R R A IR B (B
SENENR) AN TR K LR AT
LA TR —F— =F /A M HE
T2 BRI G5 Z A TAE TR 25 AR
15,207,0007C > H L HERR A i 2 — % — U 4F
ToAET—HIEFEEZEXL (HRE-%
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

2013 to August 2016. On the termination date of August 2016, the notional
principal amount will be finally exchanged between the Company and banks.
The increase in fair value of currency rate swap contracts under the August
2013 Swap of RMB15,207,000 has been recognized as expense for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (Income for the year ended 31 December 2013:
RMB7,536,000).

In December 2014, the Company entered into RMB/US$ cross currency
rate swap contracts (the “December 2014 Swap”) with certain banks. The
notional principal amount of the outstanding RMB/US$ cross currency rate
swap contracts under the December 2014 Swap as at 31 December 2014
was RMB300,000,000 or US$48,436,583.69. Through this arrangement,
the Company is able to pay a fixed interest at 9.09% and 9.10% per annum
based on US$ notional principal amount and receive a fixed interest at 10.8%
per annum based on RMB notional principal amount. The swaps under the
December 2014 Swap are settled on a semi-annually basis from December
2014 to December 2017. On the termination date of December 2017, the
notional principal amount will be finally exchanged between the Company
and banks. The change in fair value of currency rate swap contracts under the
December 2014 Swap of RMB4,723,000 has been recognized as expense for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: nil).

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

L
2014 2013
ANR¥ T ARHT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ETERE S WA TER Listed debt securities, at fair value (note),
(Bt 3E) - A R8T issued by companies
— A T — listed in Hong Kong 10,654 38,401
— Ak b — listed in Singapore - 9,296
—FEHRAARA — Unlisted private companies 13,766 -
At Total 24,420 47,697
201445 BEH
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23, R BB ) 23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued)
MizE: R-ZF—WEFA=Z+—H - FHEHE Note: At 31 December 2014, the amounts represent the Group’s investments in
EiER L o /N D S R NN listed bonds issued by listed companies and unlisted private companies. These
BAT LT 2K % A AR bonds bear coupon rates ranging from 3.60% to 6.75% (31 December 2013:
] 2 i B A F3.60%56.75% (ZF— =4 4.75% to 10.625%) per annum. Interests are payable semi-annually.
ToA=tT R 475%%10.625%)  BF
3Tt
24, BT BB & 24. BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH
(1) &M SR AT 2K Structured bank deposits
e S I E2 R =4
2014 2013
ANR¥ T ANR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
4EREMESRAT AR K Structured bank deposits 83,476 215,000
SRR TERIEAEBRERTET Structured bank deposits represent foreign currency or interest
$RA7 25 W7 H 250 H B4 ok 1] 2 45 rate linked structured bank deposits (“SBDs”) placed by the
IR AEEIESRATIE R (AP RAT A Group to a number of banks for a term of 7 days to 50 days.
K)o IR AR B h ok - A5 MR SR AT AR Pursuant to the relevant underlying agreements, the SBDs carry
FAE0.016%%0.385% (—F — =4 guaranteed interest rates from 0.016% to 0.385% (2013: from
035%%1.35%) Z RN K5t 8- H 0.35% to 1.35%) and maximum variable rates from 0.88% to
e KA EIH R £50.88% 53.8% (% 3.8% (2013: from 3.8% to 5.7%) per annum with reference
—ZAE38%%57%) (IRBFE MR to the performance of exchange rate or interest rate during the
RARAB G 2 KRB - AB AN investment period and the principal sums are denominated in
ROMEHE > 5% 55 817 e e I 2 14 RMB fixed and guaranteed by those banks. In the opinion of the
R AN ERR L ANTELERY directors of the Company, the fair value of embedded derivatives
I8 E 3 A 4 18 ) 3648 B B IR Dl does not have material impacts on the results and financial
A L R position of the Group.
i R LT BT IR W

Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited
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24. BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH (Continued)

(2) Restricted bank deposits

e i —EF-ZF
2014 2013
AR AR #T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
SR AT Rl B HE A B A7 3K Deposits pledged for banking facilities
(Bt 5Ea) (note a) - 42,575
% PR (R AL Y Deposits pledged for guarantees granted
A (feEb) to customers (note b) 1,681 3,363
HRERAT B FIEAT Y A7 3K Deposits pledged for bank loans (note c)
(BifiEc) 497,276 420,683
Al HE AR AE 5K Deposits pledged for others 4,075 -
503,302 466,621
AT Analysed as:
E Current 503,302 168,436
FE R H Non-current - 298,185
503,302 466,621
Fff 25 Notes:
- B T AR T SRAT R B A A a. The amounts represent bank deposits in RMB pledged to banks as

AR A T SRAT A HEHT A AR
W SRAT A7 o RIRERAT MO HOE > %55
SRAT A7 0 PR A AR B S5 35 B
R 2 B BE TR H A R 58 TR -

b R BRI T AT IR B A b.
% PR T4 1 S S0 G 4 8 10
N B SRAT A7 2K o 52 R 817 77 3K
TE SR AT W B % 17 ST 452 AR B 4
15 R BT A A B B o AR 4

Y HEAT o 2 0 8 R O o

o AR TRATERA A TR <
A7 A8 R0 A BN R W SR AT AF

f
L7

security for certain banking facilities granted to the Group. The use of
such bank deposits, subject to the banks” approval, is restricted to the
payments for construction works of the specified development projects

as set out in the relevant loan agreements.

The amounts represent bank deposits in RMB pledged to banks as
security for certain mortgage loans granted by the banks to the Group’s
customers. The restricted bank deposits will be released upon receiving
the building ownership certificate of the respective properties by the
banks from the customers as a pledge for security to the mortgage

loans granted.

The amounts represent bank deposits in RMB pledged to banks as

security for certain bank borrowings.
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24, BATHRRBE (#)

24.

BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH (Continued)

Q) ZREIRITER (47) (2)  Restricted bank deposits (Continued)
% S ST AR K [ AR AR The bank deposits carry fixed interest rates as follows:
e Sl E S SR -EA
2014 2013
YN AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
A 2 Range of interest rate per annum 0.35%-4.8% 0.35%-2.3%
3) WITHEBREBAE (3) Bank balances and cash
DI e (EAE o B B The Bank balances and cash that are denominated in RMB and
) o N R AN B e (4R A T A currency other than RMB, the functional currency of the relevant
BRBEANT : group entities, are as follows:
ZE A —F-=&F
2014 2013
A RWT T AR W#T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
MUNRBESHEMMRITA SR Balances denominated in RMB 196,666 756,754
MIEITCRHMEMMRITEER L RMB equivalent of US$ dominated balances
PN 51,825 28,016
DI TCEHE MR 45882 RMB equivalent of HK$ dominated balances
FHEANRY 2,106 5,865
250,597 790,635

Ba kB eF By ERmRIT S A
ST TR Bl 4 - DA R % i i 35 )
B B A BRAT A 3K o BT A A kR
B 2 =0 A BLLT o %S AT &

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and cash held
by the Group, and short-term deposits placed at banks that bear
interest at prevailing market interest rates. All deposits are with

an original maturity of three months or less. The bank balances

IR T carry interest rates as follows:
ZE YA CE A
2014 2013
ARETI AR BF
RMB’000 RMB'000
A 1] 2% 4 [ Range of interest rate per annum 0.019%-4.23% 0.01%-3.25%

g p
& R 4 B A BR A )

Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited
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B0 B 3L A ME A5k ok 25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
e L
2014 2013
ARWT X ANRBTT
RMB’000 RMB 000

B 5 e AT 30H Trade payables:

0260K 0 to 60 days 86,079 191,845
61E 180K 61 to 180 days 14 13,165
1818365k 181 to 365 days 30,861 =
14ERL | Over 1 year 17,907 69,541
134,861 274,551
& 4% & Rental deposits 32,840 19,289
Hopth e A B IR Other taxes payable 5,719 34,594
JFC Al JRE AT K B R B S Other payables and accrued expenses 29,098 28,237
202,518 356,671

— i > B 5 R AR A F EEA B
coX - MM REHEREZ FERR—2
E =

RoF—EF A=+ —H - G5
THA A5 R 25 N K #28330,00000 (=%
—=AE NR¥E41,726,0000C) - MG A AIERE )
5% 220% °

Generally, the average credit period taken for trade payables is about 60
days with a credit period of 1 to 3 years for retention money payable to

contractors.

At 31 December 2014, trade payables include retention money of
approximately RMB28,330,000 (2013: RMB41,726,000), which relates

to 5% to 20% of the contract prices.
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26. SATAEX 26. BANK BORROWINGS
e S U1K —R—ZAE
2014 2013
ARWT X ANRWTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
SEAR AR ERAT (5 3R FE R MR T {H : Carrying amount repayable of
unsecured bank borrowings:
—14E N — Within 1 year 336,711 =
— VEB 24 N — After 1 year but within 2 years 99,525 -
436,236 -
A AR ERAT 5 FK ) B R AR T (E* © Carrying amount repayable of secured
bank borrowings*:
— 14N — Within 1 year 40,000 52,908
—1FRHR2F R — After 1 year but within 2 years - 513,840
— 2R ERSER — After 2 years but within 5 years - 251,365
40,000 818,113
BR ORI Carrying amount of secured bank loans
AR SRR E contain a repayment on demand clause
(3 BB A1) (shown under current liabilities) 725,818 422,279
1,202,054 1,240,392
W 2 5 BB A Less: Amounts due within one year shown under
— 4 N E W OR current liabilities (1,102,529) (475,187)
B 5 I I B A 1 0 BROE Amounts shown under non-current liabilities 99,525 765,205
# A EIE T DS S s = e < The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
ﬁ %@ ° agreements.

154 IERLES S )i SAu]
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The ranges of annual effective interest rates (which are the contracted

interest rates) on the Group's bank borrowings are as follows:

e S LS =T =

2014 2013

ARH T ANRWT T

RMB’000 RMB’000

& B ERAT K Fixed-rate bank borrowings 4.6%  3.192% and 4.6%

B RAT K

Variable-rate bank borrowings

1.15%-7.17% 1.55%-8.64%

AR —-WEF A=t —H ALED
N B CEDAE B 42 BB B 2 T e ) A
A B W HE A 34 9 £478,600,000%
JG K 425,865,000%5 76 > 43 Al A i N B
480,954,0007C & A R #5335,953,00070 ( =%
— =4 £ 83,000,000 TG 5 155,000,0009 7T »
a3 AR N B #506,043,00000 M A B
121,866,0007C) © BT A HABSRATIE AN R
FHE -

TR R ERA T A ST S AR RS
TR EELS ~ 16 2 20 ~ 245438 ©

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's borrowings that are denominated
in currencies other than RMB (the functional currency of relevant
group entities) are US$78,600,000, and HK$425,865,000, which are
equivalent to RMB480,954,000 and RMB335,953,000 respectively
(2013: US$83,000,000, and HK$155,000,000, which are equivalent to
RMB506,043,000 and RMB121,866,000 respectively). All other bank

borrowings are denominated in RMB.

Details of the assets pledged and guarantees for the secured bank

borrowings are set out in notes 15, 16, 20, 24 and 38.
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27. BANE 27. SENIOR NOTES

S L o=t
2014 2013

ANRETFIT AR BT

RMB’000 RMB’000

B e# Amount on issuance 900,000 600,000
AT A Issuing cost (29,675) (20,000)
25 e B Accumulated interest paid (101,250) (33,750)
ZahE MR R B S Accumulated effective interest expenses 125,014 49,793
894,089 596,043

B—FENEHPEERE A BN Incerest payable within one year reclassified

JRE A5} A1) B to current liabilicy (13,707) (12,802)

R 1A (L Carrying amount 880,382 583,241

R E-ZFEWNH R H AN
¢ T {H 3547 A 4 B0\ R %7600,000,000
TR R ([ e ] -
A S ZE 8 DA R M S HE > N0 7 v i
SE T T o B A Sl B e B v A R
11.25%% 18 » B4R AT BRIEQN R 3087
a7l LB [ ol (] - 5 ) O S
TE—NENA AT H B B
TR B AR R 512.62% 34T H
e R B AR AT A BT 2E T B 1)
EARB T K — AR RN ES TR -

purposes.

i R LT BT IR W

Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

On 25 April 2013, the Company issued at par senior notes in an
aggregate principal amount of RMBG600,000,000 (the “First Senior
Notes”). The First Senior Notes are RMB denominated and listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The First Senior Notes carry interest
at a nominal rate of 11.25% per annum, payable semi-annually in
arrears, and will mature on 25 April 2016, unless earlier redeemed or
repurchased in the events as stated below. The effective interest rate
of the First Senior Notes is 12.62% per annum. The purpose of the
First Senior Notes is to satisfy funding requirements for the capital

expenditures relating to new properties projects and general corporate



ATE—PAEF A B H > AN R E
T2 4 JER N R 1300,000,0007T 9 18 50 22
%f% TR ) 56 BT
NERWETHE - WA F W AT i o 55 At
0 44 1 A ) 3R10.80% 7T, AR
s BRIEUNF ST A R s ] 5 A
L8 3y e S ot oy phn = Iy AN S
BoMEBERR BEREMNR2119% 5%
FT58 MBS AR B A AT B BB 3 TE H
) A B S B — e ) A 1 4 7 oK

A2y m) (BB 2 RME BN (RIS (G AR
[ A T O A ) ) 9 R A
BL AN TR S BA N b L5
A% A - TR S R P S R T )
B E LS (BLES BB s B AL A R
TR BEAE B g e sk Ay 4 ) T ZH A A
TR AN w) n] BRI S A S5
1009 ) B [ » 5 Ik 2 A A w) T s g el
MRS AR FLE () B e 2350 (i 9
843 ) ol T AR S SRR o T L S AR R
AT B IR AR i B S R B Y
FlE > AN RIS R A SR 10190 I E
&> A mEE R A8 RS A) ST
MARSTFLE (W) - 35 H B AR R 2 A
S [ S

HE
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SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

On 17 December 2014, the Company issued at par senior notes in an
aggregate principal amount of RMB300,000,000 (the “Second Senior
Notes”). The Second Senior Notes are RMB denominated and listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Second Senior Notes carry interest
at a nominal rate of 10.80% per annum, payable semi-annually in
arrears, and will mature on 16 December 2017, unless earlier redeemed
or repurchased in the events as stated below. The effective interest rate
of the Second Senior Notes is 12.11% per annum. The purpose of the
Second Senior Notes is to satisfy funding requirements for the capital
expenditures relating to new properties projects and general corporate

purposes.

Both Senior Notes are subject to redemption of the Company’s option,
in whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount thereof, together with accrued and unpaid interest, if
any, to the date fixed by the Company for redemption, if the Company,
a subsidiary guarantor (i.e. subsidiary other than the one organized
under the laws of PRC) would become obliged to pay certain additional
amounts as a result of certain changes in specified tax laws or any change
in the existing official position or the stating of an official position
regarding the application or interpretation of such laws, regulations or
rulings (including a holding, judgment or order by a court of competent
jurisdiction). Both Senior Notes also contain a provision for repurchase,
upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the
Company will make an offer to repurchase all outstanding Senior Notes
at a purchase price equal to 101% of their principal amount plus accrued

and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the repurchase date.
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28. M 28. SHARE CAPITAL
PN/
The Company
B 5E Jie A 8 H JBe AR
Number of Share
Notes shares capital
En
Us$
& B T {E0.01 35 J6 1Y 48 B Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each
g Authorized:
RoE—=F—H—H" At 1 January 2013,
—E—-=F+_A=+—0" 31 December 2013,
“E-NE-A—HK 1 January 2014 and
“E-NUFEF A =+—H 31 December 2014 3,000,000,000 30,000,000
ST R Issued and fully paid:
WoE—=4F—H—H As at 1 January 2013 2,000,000 20,000
HARAL BT Ay Capitalization issue of shares (a) 1,348,000,000 13,480,000
AT New issue of shares (b) 450,000,000 4,500,000
PR] 6 5 i P A 95 4 New issue of shares from partial
A7 T B 47 08 I exercise of over-allotment option (c) 2,456,000 24,560
WNoFE—-=ZF—H—H" At 31 December 2013,
“E-NE-A—HK 1 January 2014 and
—EZ—NE+—-HA=+—H at 31 December 2014 1,802,456,000 18,024,560
AR¥Fr
RMB’000
ARG BRI R 21 Shown on the consolidated statement of financial position
W% —lE+=ZH=+—H At 31 December 2014 113,099
Ro-F—=ZH+"H=+—H At 31 December 2013 113,099

46 W R Hb 2 JBE A B A W
Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited
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29):

AN (45)

(i}

o

fit Al

e

T

SE-TET AT H RN E E R
PR PRk 5 > A MEE IR RO (IR AL
13,480,0005 JC (A 1t A B 84,580,000
TR N 1 15]75: VRl i /NI g e 3 e
T HRE AR 7 ) ] 3% 5 JBE SR B 471,348,000,000
I A B T (0,01 3% 70 WO 3% 48 i ([ AL 38
1) - ERBRBR _F—=4F—H+~H
(BRI 2 ) B 03 1 R B 4 o 7 o T 58 T
B ETH ) AT

SR -ZAE-A AR (AARARBRGE
WA IR FE & s s I BB B ) (T Bl
HHL) - A2 A (R A B 5 o i I 1% 45
1.68 JCHEAT A 4£450,000,000 % 45 FiE 7R (B
0.013 7 ) 5% 78 i -

A A ) 452 Y 6B A A R A ) T
> ANFARE-=ZFE A+ HEHRE
Je g5 4T 4 342,456,000% B i T {E0.01 5 70
1 32 J -

i 1 £k
AR A 2 A TR DA A% T A ) 0 -

(@)

AR5 43 TR A B MR e ot 5 i s ot 2 o 3
AHIRAF ([FE RS E HE |) ZIER
R G BB LA 5 WERR A - B 2 TR Y
EHONCE——F—H—HW
Al et s e N R 12,113,0007C i 8%
BT ——F+ A=t —HILEE
PRS0 3R IH A R 13,183,0007T A
(B T35 8 gy A A TR A 47 3
(BB 1F s B 2 F AR B
H7) TR0 B Al A A B 4 O T B
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

29.

Notes:

On 10 December 2012, pursuant to the resolution of the then shareholders
of the Company, it was approved to issue 1,348,000,000 ordinary shares of
US$0.01 each to such shareholders by way of capitalization of US$13,480,000
(equivalent to RMB84,580,000) from the share premium account upon
listing of the Company’s shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the
“Capitalization Issue”). Such shares were issued on 16 January 2013, being the
Listing Date on which dealings in the shares of the Company first commence

on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

On 16 January 2013, being the date on which the Company’s shares are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (The “Listing Date”), the Company issued
a total of 450,000,000 ordinary shares US$0.01 each at a price of HK$1.68

per share.

Pursuant to the partial exercise of the over-allotment option granted by the
Company, a total of 2,456,000 ordinary shares US$0.01 each were allotted and

issued by the Company on 15 February 2013.

RESERVES

Special reserve

Special reserve mainly comprises amounts arising as a result of the

followings:

(a)

Deemed distribution represented the difference between the
principal amount of the amount due from Nanjing Golden Wheel
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing Golden Wheel
Real Estate”) and its fair value at initial recognition which also
represented the balance of special reserve of RMB12,113,000 as
at 1 January 2011 and the amount of RMB13,183,000 recorded
during the year ended 31 December 2011. The fair value is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows
throughout the expected life of the advance (that is, from date of

advance to expected repayment date).
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29. il (4
Kl (4)

(@)

(b)

©

(#)

i = F— AR A\ H U 5 e
BREEARAF ([SiwmEPREE]) K&
RIS 2 v e i s A > AR
W e E EHR B A
IEMETE R F -
H=+—H I FEEZ A E AR
11,597,0007GF8 F 48 £ 1A 51 B 14 JRE i
4 i 7 7 TR B 6 4 B
I A SR IR IE 2 A 8 2 TR 25 3

wEE-F—"4F+-HA=+—H1
A N R #67,032,00070 2 JE 5
P SRR R R

VB B A w I Ay 1A A s Wt 22 BT |
miE T 2 EA ([EAD) —HBa
SWERGRAA ([SwmIER]) R
e et VA= I WANE gt & e S
BEARAR ([SimEFKEE]) 2
10098 HE » 77 =X 1o 5 g 2 R A T
1,000,000/ 2/ w8 > AR 2\
HERAAEBZ BERAF - REBE
—“EF -t H=1—HIEEE
N B 105,936,000 708845 2 Hr Al it >
I T A ) A T £ 4 A B 64,000
T B 4 i I PR B TR A T (L4 N R
106,000,0007C 255 °

i R LT BT IR
Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

29. RESERVES (Continued)

Special reserve (Continued)

()

(b)

(c)

(Continued)

Subsequent to the acquisition of Golden Wheel International
Corporation Limited (“Golden Wheel International Corporation”)
and its subsidiary Nanjing Golden Wheel Real Estate on 18 June
2012, the Group waived Nanjing Golden Wheel Real Estate
from repaying the amount due from Nanjing Golden Wheel Real
Estate. Deemed contribution of RMB11,597,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2012 represented the difference between the
amount due from Nanjing Golden Wheel Real Estate carried at
amortized cost and the principal amount of the amount due to the

Group at date of waiver.

An amount of RMB67,032,000 due to the then shareholders was

waived from repayment during the year ended 31 December 2012.

As part of the reorganization for preparing for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the
“Reorganization”), Golden Wheel Jade Company Limited
(“Golden Wheel Jade”) acquired 100% equity interest in Golden
Wheel International Investment Limited (“Golden Wheel
International Investment”) on 18 June 2012 through issuance
of 1,000,000 ordinary shares in the Company to the then
shareholders, and the Company became the holding company
of the Group thereafter. The amount of RMB105,936,000
transferred to special reserve during the year ended 31 December
2012 represented the difference between the nominal value of
share capital of the Company of approximately RMB64,000
and the nominal value of the share capital of Golden Wheel

International Investment of approximately RMB106,000,000.
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29. RESERVES (Continued)

Special reserve (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Pursuant to the acquisition of Golden Wheel International
Corporation and its subsidiary, Nanjing Golden Wheel
Real Estate on 18 June 2012, an aggregate amount of
RMB395,332,000 being (i) the difference between the nominal
value of share capital issued by the Company and the fair value
of the consolidated net assets of Golden Wheel International
Corporation and Nanjing Golden Wheel Real Estate (excluding
fair value of 7.50% equity interest in Nanjing Jade Golden
Wheel Realty Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing Jade Golden Wheel”)
and 3.75% equity interest in Yangzhou Golden Wheel Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Yangzhou Golden Wheel Real
Estate”) held by Nanjing Golden Wheel Real Estate); and (ii)
the difference between the consideration paid and the carrying
amount of net assets attributable to non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries being acquired from the non-controlling shareholder,
was credited to special reserve during the year ended 31 December

2012.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, a final dividend to
shareholders of RMB0.0355 per share, approximately amounted to
RMB63,987,000, in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013
was declared out of this reserve to the owners of the Company
(2013: RMBO0.0555 per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2012, approximately amounted to RMB100,000,000).

Surplus reserve

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and the

articles of association of the PRC subsidiaries:

(a)

PRC subsidiaries registered as sino-foreign joint venture:

The PRC subsidiaries may, at the discretion of board of directors
of the PRC subsidiaries, transfer a portion of their profit after
taxation reported in their statutory financial statements prepared
under the applicable PRC accounting standards to the surplus

reserve.
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29.

30.

RESERVES (Continued)

Surplus reserve (Continued)

(b)  PRC subsidiaries registered as wholly-foreign invested
enterprise or domestic limited liability company:
The PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer at least 10% of
their profit after taxation reported in their statutory financial
statements prepared under the applicable PRC accounting

standards to the surplus reserve.

The appropriation to surplus reserve may cease if the balance of the
surplus reserve has reached 50% of the relevant PRC subsidiaties’

registered capital.

The surplus reserve can be used to make up losses or for conversion into
capital. The PRC subsidiaries may, upon the approval by a resolution of
the owners, convert their surplus reserves into capital in proportion to
their then existing capital contribution. However, when converting the
PRC subsidiaries’ surplus reserve into capital, the balance of such reserve
remaining unconverted must not be less than 25% of their registered

capital.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme approved on 10
December 2012 (the

grant options to any executive, non-executive or independent non-

“Share Option Scheme”), the Company may

executive directors or any employees (whether full-time or part-time)
of the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or associated companies
or any other person whom the directors of the Company considers,
in its sole discretion, has contributed or will contribute to the
Group (“Participants”) to subscribe for shares in the Company for a
consideration of HK$1.00 for each lot of share options granted for
the primary purpose of providing incentives to Participants. The
Share Option Scheme will remain effective for a period of ten years

commencing from 10 December 2012.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
ordinary shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the

Company'’s shareholders.

Offer of an option granted under the Share Option Scheme (“Offer”)
shall be deemed to have been accepted by any Participant who accepts
an Offer in accordance with the terms of the options (“Grantee”) and the
options to which the Offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted
and to have taken effect when the duplicate of the offer letter comprising
acceptance of the Offer duly signed by the Grantee together with a
remittance in favour of our Company of HK$1 by way of consideration
for the granting thereof is received by the Company within such period
as the directors of the Company may determine and specify in the
letter of Offer. The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the ordinary shares of the Company as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of ordinary shares of the Company.
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30.

&R
Golden

Yk JB Bt 0 ()

AR5 PR T 452 L T PO RE 2 B A A
N PERTH% AR 77 37T o R B -

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

ATAT B IR B 2 d5 R T b

25% of the options
259 M Bt

Additional 25% of the options
HIP25% Fk T b

Additional 25% of the options
HhP25% Fk e

Additional 25% of the options
HOh2> % I

BRIAZEAIZ I A RE R A R B30 A DE
Foln) 2 BB 2 TR 3 A RLE 1 > I A
BE AT NTEAT (I B HE R B2 AT -
BAR ((REAR]) 8A —HERE
AT fr I

T E—AEEH T =H o AN R AT
FEEM A B K AR B 1% 18,700,000 B 77
AR/ ) O Y e R B R T AR
(I =F—UERERE]) (ZF—=41+2"H
=t+—H:%) -

"R KB BT

o MBESFIAEBEERRKRAD
S ([ESRB ALY ) 2 1 ] i A B
i 2 S8 A% T 1 25 B 19200,000,000
TRER L b > B 5B HE U A B A 52
T E

o (MBEC AR IR AR B
2 B A R A R AR
200,000,0007C » HI| B 5 B HEUGER A 1A
ALATE N B B AR AE & T AR B B
19> B2 KRS T Ik R B E A
R #200,000,0007T °

HuFE A R 7]

Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

All holders of options granted under the Share Option Schemes may only

exercise their options in the following manner:

Vesting period

Bt g 4

Upon the first anniversary of the date of grant
i B

Upon the second anniversary of the date of grant
i H A

Upon the third anniversary of the date of grant
i =84

Upon the fourth anniversary of the date of grant

i B IR AE

Unless otherwise determined by the directors of the Company and
specified in the offer letter to be given to the Participant at the time
of the offer of the options, there is neither any performance target that
needs to be achieved by the Grantee before an option can be exercised
(the “Performance Target”) nor any minimum period for which an option

must be held before the options can be exercised.

On 23 July 2014, the Company granted 8,700,000 share options (the
“2014 Options”) (31 December 2013: Nil) to certain key management
personnel and employees with certain Performance Target determined by

the directors of the Company.

Performance Target of the 2014 Options is as below:

. If the audited net profit of the fiscal year immediately preceding
to the period when the tranche of the 2014 Options become
vested (the “Vested Tranche”) is RMB200 million or more, the

portion of the Vested Tranche will be completely exercisable.

. If the audited net profit of the fiscal year immediately preceding
to the period when the Vested Tranche is more than zero but less
than RMB200 million, the portion of the Vested Tranche will be
not exercisable, and will be automatically deferred to the next year
of vesting period and so forth until the audited net profit meets
the required RMB200 million.



30.

Yk JB Bt 0 ()

o TR L UK 2 0 B B
R A A (SR AEHF
Tt ) S C B R A U 2 S B
AL o
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Coatinued)

. If the audited net profit of the fiscal year immediately preceding
to the period when the Vested Tranche is negative (i.e. audited
net loss), the portion of the Vested Tranche will be cancelled

immediately.

The following tables disclosed movements of the Company’s options

granted under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2014:

TR YA A The 2014 Options:
REZ—4 R4
i ASVETS
ESFINE Gk frfiEd Tt WAL EuE Rt LB AR
Outstanding Grant Exercised Forfeited Outstanding
Name of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price asat 1.1.2014 during the year during the year during the year as at 31.12.2014
TEEMAR 23.7.2014 23.7.2015-22.7.2024 HK$1.00 70 - 2,800,000 = = 2,800,000
Key management
] 23.7.2014 23.7.2015-22.7.2024 HKS$1.007 7T - 5,900,000 - = 5,900,000
Employees
= 8,700,000 - - 8,700,000
RERTFA7E -

Exercisable at the end of the year

WoFE—NEF A =+—H > IR
B LA v A T ) SR RE P 0 B 2 M
R #H 58,700,000 (& — =4 F) 4§
AN AR H B BT B 0.48% ©

WEE_FE—NEF—H=+—HILEE
AR B P AR AT 0

RNA i —F—EL A T =H (=
T — U4 W R H OB 2 kTl B £30.82
HIT (KRN N R ¥0.6570) St e H #2
Z B RCHE 2 Al 5 A T EAR(E £52,032,0008 70
(A 79 N R 61,603,0000C)

At 31 December 2014, the number of shares in respect of which options
under the Share Option Schemes had been granted and remained
outstanding was 8,700,000 (2013: Nil), representing 0.48% of the total

shares of the Company in issue at that date.

No options were exercised during the year ended 31 December 2014.

The closing price of the Company’s shares on 23 July 2014, the date of
grant of the 2014 Options, was HK$0.82 (equivalent to approximately
RMBO0.65) and the total estimated fair value of the share options
granted on that date was HK$2,032,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,603,000).
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30. B A B (40) 30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
TR PUAERRIRRE 2 A TR R T H R The fair value of the 2014 Options was determined at the date of grant
F (LA L4 ) #0775 — EF IR 0T AR B A= using, among others, the Black-Scholes-Merton Option Pricing Model
$2T 5 A\ BRI AR R RN < A R B with the following inputs and based on the respective vesting period of
i E - the share options:
e Sl uiE: 2

tH=+=H

23 July, 2014
R B2 I AE Stock price as at grant date HK$0.825 IC
Frffife Exercise price HK$1.00%5 7T
TECHA I R Expected volatility 46.6%
e e P b A A0 Expected life of options 7.9%F years
41 o oy 1) 2 Risk free rate 1.945%
TR R Expected dividend yield 4.33%
AR AT E TR 2 5 2 Rk The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
i TR LERLTINY 3 s E&@%&Z%ﬁﬁ@ the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. Changes in
BHIERAE AV ESEET . variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of the

options.
RBE-ZF-NEFA=Z+—HILEE During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company recognised
Z'K/\j}j’j[ZIK/\ijﬁz,ﬂﬁﬂxTEﬁﬁpEﬁ@Eﬂj’i}\ total expenses of RMB177,000 (2013: Nil) in relation to share options
R¥177,0007C (ZF—=4:F) granted by the Company.
i R LT JBEAT IR

Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited
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OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for

future minimum lease payments under a non-cancellable operating lease

which fall due as follows:

“EomE S

2014 2013

AR EFIL ARWTFIC

RMB’000 RMB 000

N Within one year 34,026 16,484
HoBEHTE (BEEREWSE) In the second to the fifth year inclusive 142,308 170,786
HAER After the fifth year 251,115 325,386
427,449 512,656

RETE MR AR A& S A 2
R o P B AL P 7 7 2 104F 154 o

A A2 A
TSRS IR » A SR B C BRAH S AT 49 IR
FIRA S B AT 3

The operating lease payments represent fixed rentals payable by the

Group for retail spaces. The lease is negotiated for terms of 10 and 15

years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contracted with

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

S L

2014 2013

AR For AR¥TFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—4ERN Within one year 138,564 81,934
FEOREHE (BEEREME) In the second to the fifth year inclusive 254,332 142,240
HAFER After the fifth year 62,246 37,705
455,142 261,879

AREERBREHE LB ERHEY
2 (HIZEMIE) o ey AR K
1R 154 -

The Group leases out investment properties and rented properties,

being retail outlets, under operating leases. All the properties held have

committed tenants from 1 to 15 years.
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31, BEBRERE 2
AREEEL BB (#)

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The Group as lessor (Continued)

W bl AR B AT 3RO » AR IR B A Other than the abovementioned minimum lease payments, the Group
FilvuSAHER4 Hhlles AME also entered into contingent lease contracts with certain tenants,
A S AR RS 47 B B IR R O T =R which stipulate monthly lease payments to be calculated in accordance
AR EE—ZF-NEFT_A=Z+—HI with certain ratios on the tenants’ net annual sales. Contingent rents
R A P HERR M SR &4 5 AR recognized in income during the year ended 31 December 2014 was
#2,198,0007C (=% —=4F : AR 1,780,000 approximately RMB2,198,000 (2013: RMB1,780,000).

JC) °

32. HAbRWE

32. OTHER COMMITMENTS

—®-mE  —2-=F
2014 2013
ANR¥ T ANRFT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
M EHT T A Commitments contracted for but not
1H R A %5 6 85 0 3R 8 e 1) provided in the consolidated
R : financial statements in respect of:
—EREEFEYE — Construction of properties under
development for sale 36,314 20,531
a5 =Rty ES — Construction of properties for own use - 1,026
— FF AR B 38 DLB 8 6 — Leasehold land held for
L& T development for sale - 622,326
P T IEE O Commitments authorized
EE RS * but not contracted in respect of:
—FRAE B BE DLBL 8 6 — Leasehold land held
L 1 b for development for sale - 60,000
36,314 703,883
G R 7 JBE AT R T

Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

—%-mE E-=F
2014 2013
ARWT X AR ¥T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ALEE M RITREDEEF Mortgage loan guarantees provided by
By % i N 1 48 B A 1 the Group to banks in favor of
its customers 527,343 371,627

AR ST % 5 i SRAT IR AR B
S B A HEREEAF A 4 B S 4T
R BN E IRER o A A R R A > B X
HAK > BOHBIE IR & 480 1 TERR N 2 T-(E
AR -

ECMREN CPAR

AR 4 T 4 BRI T (EL R S
T

(@) WP BV R M O 2 i
GRENEMEENATEIZE N
Wi h BEAERE &

b HiteEEE ke aEN A TET)
RN EEH AR BB SR E
TATREE ©

These guarantees will be released upon receiving the building ownership
certificate of the respective properties by the banks from the customers
as a pledge for security to the mortgage loans granted. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the fair value of the financial guarantee
contracts at initial recognition is not significant as the default rate is

low.

34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

(a)  the fair value of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded in active liquid markets are determined

with reference to quoted market bid prices; and

(b)  the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models

based on discounted cash flow analysis.
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34, ST RNV @) 34.

AT 38 7 B
AT

AL WA T EMEE XA R AR
FERHE o R B ARE A T-E R Y
A\ SR ) P BRI A
FE MR P (5 TR BT PR 8 (L3 9 B A
i) > ROAFERHR IR D 2 AP E%E R
KT (1Z38R) 1Y o

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value

Some of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are measured at
fair value at the end of reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these financial assets are
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used),
as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorized (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to

which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

EMEE RO H A F NFEES T PERT IN ¢
Financial assets Fair value as at Fair value hierarchy ~ Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
ZE-NEFZAZH “Z-ZHt+-A=t-H
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
B A R B (A A ) B (FHE M) -8 BB - AR W2 TR B EER (K
- NRM12,351,0007 — N R #24,432,0007C A A TR R ) T R B S
AU (R ) it e ORI B £ B Y B -
- AR H38,338,0007E
Cross currency rate swaps Assets (not designated for hedging) Assets (not designated for hedging) Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are estimated
- RMB12,351,000 - RMB24,432,000 based on forward currency exchange rates (from

Liabilities (not designated for hedging)

observable forward exchange rates at the end of the

- RMB38,338,000 reporting period) and contracted currency exchange
rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of
various counterparties.

BEw S kL E A N BM24,420,0007¢ B 147,697,0007C E-% T8 B 1 35 o B R A
AFS investments representing RMB24,420,000 RMBA47,697,000 Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets

debt securities

AL SORTEAEIE - S — R SR 2 ]
WSS -

46 W R Hb 2 JBE A B A W
Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the current and prior

years.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair
value disclosures are required)

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors of the Company

consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities

I T B BREC - (B AR 45 - recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values:
REF-NEFZA=Z+—H REF-=ZFF2A=1—H
As at 31 December 2014 As at 31 December 2013
S B
i T A FE e {E AFE
Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of
liability liability
component Fair value component Fair value
ARETFLE ARWTZ ARETT ARKTZ
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
ey Financial liabilities
BT (BHEEAMFIE)  Senior notes (including interest payable) 894,089 910,125 596,043 608,250
1 S — B 1 level 1: based on quoted price.

3B O A it

RS AR SRR M AR SR B B A B v BT
A G R B S — HE Hl AR S
(FafEasE ) - FHEpERE ALK &
AT BHREA - M AE O 52 58 N R i e 4 o
BB S BB B 3 KR B & i
BUE b2 B A A 11,0000 70 (ZF— 4
N H—H#A1,250870) 19 BRI %1 1 1E
H K - AL IR R B M — R
AR R &5t B TRk -

35.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
specified rate and capped at HK$1,000 (HK$1,250 effective from 1 June
2012) per month per employee. The only obligation of the Group with
respect of the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the MPF Scheme.
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35.

36.

&R
Golden

A )

I A 2 ) 448 B 7 e R A B I K
R AR A B R o o B B O R R
ﬁﬁiﬁﬂ’aﬁﬁ?ﬂz%ﬁ* B RAE AR

o LU ARF 5 TEURR A B 5 1 9 o A 2 A
aZLﬁWaﬁ'JaJr%JE‘JHE*EEMW%AaJr%H’F
T LK o

BLAE 5 B I A vl

JA S B TR > A2 ] B ) A e A PR
N ([ 4w ) Bl — 4 S 56 = ([4%
B ) T R E%Ti};m [ % 13 R
) o BRIt G B B AT R e B s 19 %
RTFAEH o F I 581 ok ot BB > AR 52
T 7 4 s 3 0 1) B A 8 i A% 1009 T B 22
499 o 4 i 3 39 42 HE M 5 i [0 PR ) A PR
NE] ([ EAmAIE ) > S m A B R 2EHE
WMER SR EEARAR (THMER]) -
PN 25 SR A M B — R b L5 )
B WA E AT - R R ok
ER T —AEN A+ H 5 B A
SEE A K E SR 2 2 I HE > 1T 2w
BB A AR 2 B A W o A B 2 JBe
F11009 P 2499 Bt £ — TEARL M H 8 o A
e 4% - AWHWEE%%%%‘E%WHHEH ; ﬁ‘z\
AT A A E RS AR BN
BN SRR

HuFE A R 7]
Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

36.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government.
The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute specified rate of the
employees’ salaries to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement

benefits scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the reporting period, Wheel Coral Company Limited (“Golden
Wheel Coral”), a subsidiary of the Company, and an independent third
party (the “Investor”) entered into a share subscription agreement (the
“Share Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which Golden Wheel
Coral issued and allotted 51% of its share capital to the Investor.
On completion of the Share Subscription Agreement, the Group’s
equity interests in Golden Wheel Coral were reduced from 100% to
49%. Golden Wheel Coral holds 100% interests in Golden Wheel
International Famous Limited (“Golden Wheel Famous”), which in
turn holds 100% equity interest in Yangzhou Jade Golden Wheel
Realty Co., Led. (B M 3ER G imEEARAF) (“Yangzhou Jade”).
Yangzhou Jade owns a piece of land in Yangzhou which is planned to be
developed into commercial, office and residential properties. The Share
Subscription Agreement was completed on 14 April 2014, upon which,
the Group has lost the control over Golden Wheel Coral, which became
a joint venture of the Group. The reduction in equity interests in Golden
Wheel Coral from 100% to 49% is treated as a deemed disposal. After
the acquisition, Golden Wheel Coral changed its name to Powerlong
Golden Wheel Coral, Golden Wheel Famous changed its name to
Powerlong Golden Wheel Famous, and Yangzhou Jade changed its name

to Yangzhou Golden Wheel & Powerlong Realty.
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36 DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Consideration received

ARHT
RMB'000

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents 156,231

REVEHIEZ & ERAEN

Analysis of asset and liabilities over which control was lost

ANRHTT
RMB 000
REE R Current assets
B R BLe S EY Cash and cash equivalents 13,356
FefE B B DA 8 6 1O FHL A L3t Leasehold hand held for development for sale 300,565
WE AR Current liabilities
JREASS IR Payables (8,352)
Jir i B E Net assets disposed of (305,569)
AR 8 B A ) 2 W s Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries
ANRHT T
RMB 000
Bt Consideration received 156,231
O EEEFE Net assets disposed of 155,840
L Gain on disposal of 391

B W A AR IR R i o

The gain on disposal is included in the profit or loss for the year.

A s B A ) 2 Bl R Net cash inflow on deemed disposal of subsidiaries
ANR¥T T
RMB'000
DABE 4 B B i B O 2 AUE Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents 156,231
BT E B KBS E A Less: cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of (13,356)
142,875
20144 JE %
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37. WO — P ) 4 )
BE T+ = F IR

BE L PEF A =4 B IR
WS B g 2 ]

BE_F-=FTH=1T—HIEFE:

REF—=FE R R LB S REE R
B EAREAT /AR ([ R HHE )
F 4 0 FOE » AR 2 A R 932,656,000
T M A > i A I b NI A VS )
FEAE P BT RR A A — R b AR 4 [ 45
fE%0E i F BB IR B ([ R
fEEIE]) -

AR L R > R R o S35
[ & 0] WO I A CE RS & 1 -
> B s R S IH AR IE IR &
7o

SUZ IR 5 A BT W EL O R I A A T

37.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

Year ended 31 December 2014:

There was no acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2014.

Year ended 31 December 2013:

In July 2013, the Group acquired 100% equity interests in [ 5% 5 25 5
WEREFREMLLH (Nanjing Metro Real Estate Investment Co.,
Ltd.) (“Nanjing Metro Real Estate”), at an aggregation consideration of
RMB32,656,000. On the date of acquisition, Nanjing Metro Real Estate
does not carry out any operation and only owns a piece of land in Jiangsu
Province of PRC and the Group intended to develop property projects on

that piece of land (the “Nanjing Metro Acquisition”).

In the opinion of the managements, the Acquisition does not constitute
business combination in accordance with IFRS3 “Business Combination”
and as such, the Nanjing Metro Acquisition has been accounted for as

acquisition of assets.

Details of net assets acquires in respect of this transaction are

summarized below:

AR¥Fr

RMB’000

FEfEBREE LML B M & L FHBE  Leasehold land use rights held for development for sale 292,657
SRATEE R NI 4 Bank balances and cash 10,009
JRR R Shareholder’s loan (270,010)
o W A B VR M Net assets acquired 32,656
EffHEMRE Cash consideration paid 32,656
It B SR AT 4 o 3R 4 Bank balances and cash acquired (10,009)
OB &R Net cash paid 22,647

4 i % b P PR A PR A
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38. BB 5 38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BRBHEL7 R8T iR & A » IR AR » RS Other than as disclosed in notes 17 and 18, during the year, the Group
£ BB T R AL R 3158 - has entered into the following transactions with related parties:
. AR o Rental income:

—F g —F =5

2014 2013
A BT AR #T T
RMB’000 RMB000
MR (—HBEAR) Nanjing Pocui, an associate 5,325 5,325
P N 4 B 2K Yangzhou Golden Wheel &
(—MAEERE) Powerlong Realty, a joint venture 730 -
6,055 5,325
o AL DL BT (E Y $RAT A5 2R (BT . The bank borrowings of the Group (note 26) with the following
26) JIE AR A T4 R - carrying amounts are guaranteed by:
it S IS “ER =4
2014 2013
A BT T AR #T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
TREEAE (M) Mr. Wong Yam Yin (note) - 20,000
TSR (FEEE) Mr. Wong Kam Fai (note) - 20,000
- 40,000
BERE © SRR AR 2 AR 2 R Y B AR OR Note: Mr. Wong Yam Yin is an ultimate shareholder of the Company. Mr
EME AR EBEEZ T8 Wong Kam Fai is son of Mr. Wong Yam Yin and is also a director of
RN #H R the Company.
201445 BEHE
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38. BT R (41) 38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

. EEEHA e Compensation of key management personnel
JRARAEJE > 7 2 I HC At 3 2 T The remuneration of the directors and other members of key
BEHM T management during the year are as follow:

=2
2014 2013
ANR¥ T ANRWT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
A Directors’ remunerations 15,351 16,294

TEEMENA Members of key management:
i & M H At AR A Salaries and other benefits 4,346 2,498
FEXIN AR o L Retirement benefit scheme contributions 255 146
DA A 55 S PB4 S A5 kA Equity-settled share-based payments 57 -
20,009 18,938

i R LT BT IR W
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39. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26 April
2012. Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 includes:

BAHIR DL R A B R -
TR —F =45
2014 2013
ANRHFx AR #TFr
RMB’000 RMB'000
FE R B Non-current assets
NN NI § <98 Investments in subsidiaries and
JRE e B B8 2 ) 3 TE amounts due from subsidiaries 2,014,289 1,961,011
REEMEZRE Investments in joint ventures 177,825 -
I ER VNG Property, plant and equipment 2,207 634
T4 4 il Derivative financial assets - 12,984
2,194,321 1,974,629
& E Current assets
H Al 8 e 2KTR Other receivables 404 796
FHE 4 & Derivative financial assets 12,351 11,448
AR Available-for-sale investments 24,420 47,697
32 BR il $R 17 17 3K Restricted bank deposits 421,886 122,498
WATHE B KB Bank balances and cash 101,327 162,150
560,388 344,589
B R Current liabilities
Al A BRIH Other payables 15,370 19,600
RATM I ——F N E Bank borrowings — due within one year 807,731 117,600
823,101 137,200
FE B A Non-current liabilities
WATIE R ——FRFIM Bank borrowings — due after one year 99,525 465,205
e & Rl A Derivative financial liabilities 38,338 =
HEER Senior notes 880,382 583,241
1,018,245 1,048,446
B Net assets 913,363 1,133,572
A Share capital 113,099 113,099
Tttt Reserves 800,264 1,020,473
MR 72 Total equity 913,363 1,133,572
201445 JEE e ity
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF—MF+H =+ — H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

39. AXaMBER ) 39. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
HE 7 S ) Movement in equity
BeA Bt FERI A IR AitiBH it
Share Share Special ~ Share option  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve loss Total

ANRETFT ANRETFT ARETFT ARETFLT AREFLT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
(Fik29) (Ff3E29) (FrE30)

(note 29) (note 29) (note 30)
R_F—=F—-H—H At 1 January 2013 128 = 698,202 = (5,321) 693,009
B 53 1 ¥ A AL B A Capitalization Issue of shares
(HtE28) (note 28) 84,580 (84,580) - - - -
S (HtsE14) Dividends (note 14) - - (100,000) - - (100,000)
JA b H New issue of shares on
BT H K the Listing Date 28,237 583,625 = = = 611,862
I 68 A New issue of shares from
FRAAT BT partial exercise of
BT M over-allotment option
(i sk28) (note 28) 154 3,195 - - - 224
4 8 47 AR Share issue costs - (26,095) - - - (26,095)
FEREHE Loss for the year = = = = (48,551) (48,551)
ZZ-=FtZHA=t—H At 31 December 2013 113,099 476,143 598,202 - (53,8720 1,133,572
TR B (W aE14) Dividends (note 14) - - (63,987) - - (63,987)
HERR LA A 4 B M Recognition of
B¢ equity-settled share
(Ht&E30) based payments (note 30) - - - 177 - 177
N R Loss for the year - - - = (156,399) (156,399)
“E-EEFZA=F—H At 31 December 2014 113,099 476,143 534,215 177 (210,271) 913,363
Wif &F - Note:
AR )RR G A A AR 8 ) B 34T 0 A R T (1 B Special reserve of the Company represents the difference between par value of ordinary
TR ) R B 1 7 [ R A R A R BT A shares issued by the Company and the equity of subsidiaries recognized, in respect
) P £ o R R 50 B 4 i [ 5 B 1 R of the acquisitions of Golden Wheel International Investment and Golden Wheel
P EF J 2 ) O HEE i 2 TR R 22 o International Corporation by two directly owned subsidiaries of the Company through
the issuance of the Company’s shares.
RAFE B E —F—=4F+"A=+—H During the current year, a final dividend to shareholders of RMB0.0355 per share,
IR ATEN/NEE ¥ DN S R ) R TN approximately amounted to RMB63,987,000, in respect of the year ended 31
R #0.035570 > A A H A\ R %563,987,0007TC ( — December 2013 was distributed to the owners of the Company (2013: RMB0.0555
FoZH PR —F-HF+-H=+—HIE per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012, approximately amounted to
AR 2 R Sl B4 Beo.05 55 7T - MR A 2 N R RMB100,000,000).

100,000,0007T) °
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40.

A2 i) W O 4w A

TR IR BB 2 =] AR IR RS A0 T

kA

Name of company

ERERARAT!

Golden Wheel Jade'
(RRERERAT)

SROKFARA R

Golden Wheel Pearl Company Limited"

(ERIHARAR)

ERENARAT!

Golden Wheel Diamond
Company Limited'
(ERFAAARAR)

ERERARAT!

Golden Wheel Jewel
Company Limited'
(EWEAARAR)

SHKRARA !

Golden Wheel Crystal Company
Limited'
(ERARERAR)

ERIHARA !

Golden Wheel Amber Company
Limited'
(ERFEIARAR)

AR RMBARAT

Powerlong Golden Wheel Coral

Company Limited'*®

(AR RMAARAR)

RHEREX

Form of business structure

AREEATA

Limited liability company

FRELAR

i

Limited liability company

AREEAA

Limited liability company

AREEAA

Limited liability company

AREEAA

Limited liability company

AREEAA

Limited liability company

AREEAA

Limited liability company

40. PARTICULARS OF

COMPANY

7 A 3R P RE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MEZE A+ = H =+ —H IL4FFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

Details of the subsidiaries at end of the reporting period are as follows:

LRI R
aEMARL /L BRBA/
1S EYEE RIS

Issued and paid

Place and date of incorporation/
establishment/operation

share capital/
registered capital

RBELHR ESH
“E-CERANR

BVI Us$1
§ May 2012

ERELHE I
“Z-CHERANA

BVI Us$1
§ May 2012

RBELHR IESH
“E-CERAZHANR

BVI Us$1
26 June 2012

RRBELHR IESH
ZE-ZE"HA—H

BVI Us$1
1 February 2013

RBE LR IESH
ZE-SEZAZTAH

BVI Us$1
28 February 2013

RBE LR IESH
ZE-ZFELATER

BVI Us$1
13 May 2013

RBELHR IESH
“E-ZELA=TH

BVI Us$1
30 May 2013

55 1 1 e
Attributable equity
interest of the Group
“g-WE g2k
+ZAZ+—0  +ZA=T-H
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
49 100
49 100

FERH

Principal activities

8 sl

Investment holding

H B R

Investment holding

8 sl

Investment holding

8 sl

Investment holding

8 sl

Investment holding

8 sl

Investment holding

8 sl

Investment holding

201445 BEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEZF—MF+H =1 — H L4 For the year ended 31 December 2014

40. A2 vi) BB 2 vl RS () 40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
Rk
RE AL/ HERA/
Ak ES Ed T2 BEDEHR I i g A A4 M1 P FEEH
Issued and paid
Place and date of incorporation/ share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of company Form of business structure establishment/operation registered capital interest of the Group Principal activities
“gmE o2k
FIAEF-H FTHETH
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
% %
EHETARAR! Ll S=CiRA| FRELHE ESH 100 100 fEER
ZE-=FAAZtTWA
Golden Wheel Tourmaline Company Limited liability company ~ BVI Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited" 24 June 2013
(EHBETARAR)
SREEHRA Ll St FRELHE ESH 100 100 fEER
“E-=ZFAANR
Golden Wheel Opal Company Limited' ~ Limited liability company ~ BVI Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
(SHMATHRAR) 8 August 2013
& e B PR B A R AREIEAA i 100,000,000 7C 100 100 HEER
“ELTEIRTLA
Golden Wheel International Investment ~ Limited liability company ~ Hong Kong HK$100,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
(SREBREARAR) 17 May 2002
SREBREEARAT ARREAT i 48,000,000 7C 100 00 BEER
“E-ZELALN
Golden Wheel International Corporation ~ Limited liability company ~ Hong Kong HK$48,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
(EREBEEARAR) 7 July 2010
&8 B PR A A A AREIEAA Eik 30,000,000 1T 100 100 BEEHER
“F-ZHEAAZT-H
Golden Wheel International Limited liability company ~ Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Creation Company Limited 21 August 2012
(EHEBARFRAR)
<2 B R ) A R AREIEAA Eik 30,000,000% ¢ 100 100 HHEER
“Z-ZEZATEA
Golden Wheel International Limited liability company ~ Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Capital Company Limited 15 February 2013
(EHABAEHERAR)
<5 B R L R AREIEAA i 10,000,0004 ¢ 100 100 HEER
ZF-ZEZAHAH
Golden Wheel International Limited liability company ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Billion Limited 18 March 2013

(SREBAEFRAR)

46 W R Hb 2 JBE A B A W
Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited



40.

Ak

Name of company

SHERAEERA A
Golden Wheel International
Wealth Limited
(SRERAEARAR
HESHARABERA R
Powerlong Golden Wheel
International Famous Limited’
(HESHEBAEERAH)
SHEBAEERA A
Golden Wheel International
Trend Limited
(SREBAEARAR)
SHEBASERLA
Golden Wheel International
Success Limited
(SRR SARA R
MEERERELEARARA

HAERCRELERAH
Nanjing Jade Golden Wheel*

W SRR E R EARA A

PR R A TR B
Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Real Estate
Development Co., Led?

BN SRR ER R R A

BB MEREARAR
Yangzhou Golden Wheel Real Estate’

AR ) BB A ) 34 )

EHEREX

Form of business structure

AREEAA

Limited liability company

AREEAA

Limited liability company

AREEAA

Limited liability company

AREEAA

Limited liability company

GilINE e

Sino-foreign joint venture

SEBERE

Wholly-foreign
invested enterprise

LISy e s

Sino-foreign joint venture

#r o B 3R P RE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MEZE 4+ = H =+ —H IL4FFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
SRk
AL AR/ B/ BRMAK/
BEMERAH GAREEN
Issued and paid

Place and date of incorporation/

establishment/operation

Eik
SE-CERAZTRE
Hong Kong
29 May 2013

Eik
“E-=HEEREA
Hong Kong
5 July 2013

Eik
“E-=FLATAR
Hong Kong
18 July 2013

i

SB-ZEAR TN
Hong Kong

16 September 2013

HE
“EEAAA -
PRC
21 June 2002

il
ZEZENELAZTH
PRC
30 July 2004

e
ZEENEFZATLE
PRC
15 December 2006

share capital/
registered capital

10,000,000 7

HK$10,000,000

10,000,000 7

HK$10,000,000

10,000,000 7

HK$10,000,000

10,000,000 7

HK$10,000,000

14,950,000 7T

US$14,950,000

13,200,000% 1

US$$13,200,000

13,000,000% JG

US$13,000,000

A4 M1 P
Attributable equity
interest of the Group
e T ==t
FIZAZt-H FZAZtH
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
% %
100 100
100 100
49 100
49 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

FERH

Principal activities

fEER

Investment holding

fEER

Investment holding

fEER

Investment holding

fEER

Investment holding

I 0 A 5 L O

Property development and
property leasing

JF 0 8 SR R

Property development and
property leasing

A %

Property development

201445 FEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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40. A2 i) BB 2 vl wEAS () 40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
Rk
RE AL/ HERA/
Ak B3 Ed T2 BEBEHR N g A A3 M1 P FEEH
Issued and paid
Place and date of incorporation/ share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of company Form of business structure establishment/operation registered capital interest of the Group Principal activities
ZENE “F-ZF
FIAEF—H FTHETH
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
% %
TR RA Bl AR il AR H500,0007C 100 00 FHEREER
“E-ZEZA-H
Hl AR RA A Domestic limited PRC RMB500,000 100 100 Property operation
Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Business liability company 1 February 2010 management
Management Co., Led ?
[hEA Tzt gl SEBEME T 6,130,000% T 100 100 5 HUE B 3 LR
~RARENAZF—H
TR0 O A A IR A A Wholly-foreign invested ~ PRC U$$6,130,000 100 100 Property development and
Nanjing Golden Wheel Real Estate’ enterprise 21 April 1994 property leasing
AR 1K A R SEBERE HE 28,000,000 7C 100 100 L B
ZF-ZE-A=1H
MEAKEREEARAR Wholly-foreign invested PRC U8$28,000,000 100 100 Property development
Nanjing Pearl Golden Wheel enterprise 30 January 2013
Realty Co., Ltd.?
AR AR R E B A A il R #100,000,0007C 100 100 L B
LUS=CiRA —“F-"#tAZ+LH
MAEER M ERE Domestic limited PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100 Property development
AREAAR liability company 25 July 2012
Nanjing Metro Real Estate’
K i A R SEBERE HE R #100,000,0007C 100 100 L B
“E-ZEARTAR
MRS EREEARAT Wholly-foreign invested PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100 Property development
Nanjing Crystal Golden Wheel enterprise 19 August 2013
Realty Co., Ltd.?
A A R SEBERE il B H30,000,0007 100 100 HEEH
“F-ZEAAZTEE
HREREEERARAR Wholly-foreign invested ~ PRC RMB30,000,000 100 100 Property management
Nanjing Golden Wheel Business enterprise 27 September 2013
Management Co., Ltd.?
R o B RA R SEBERE HE R #155,000,0007C 100 100 L B
“F-ZEAAZTHA
MR SR EEARAT Wholly-foreign invested PRC RMB155,000,000 100 100 Property development
Zhuzhou Jade Golden Wheel Realty enterprise 24 September 2013

Co., Ltd.

46 W R Hb 2 JBE A B A W
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MEZE A+ = H =+ —H IL4FFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
Rk
ab ML /s BEA/
Ak B3 Ed T2 BEBHR N g A ARG M A I TR
Issued and paid
Place and date of incorporation/ share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of company Form of business structure establishment/operation registered capital interest of the Group Principal activities
ZENE St
FIAEF-H FTHETH
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
% %
RUSREWMBEAMAA SEBEME il 85,500,0003 1C 100 100 5 HuE B
ZE-ZF+ZATZH
ROERGREEARARA Wholly-foreign invested ~ PRC U$$85,500,000 100 100 Property development
Changsha Jade Golden Wheel Realty enterprise 12 December 2013
Co., Ltd.?
BHERHRERARAT: SEBERE il 61,000,0003 1C 49 100 MR
I . A
FHEREREEARA D Wholly-foreign invested ~ PRC U8$61,000,000 49 100 Property development
Yangzhou Golden Wheel Powerlong enterprise 15 November 2013
Realty Co., Led. 2
BHERELEREHRAA SEBEME il 42,000,000% ¢ 100 AER R %
ZE-NE=ALA
EHRRFOEREARAR Wholly-foreign invested ~ PRC US$42,000,000 100 N/A Property development
Wuxi Golden Wheel Real Estate enterprise 5 March 2014
Co., Led?
! AN A AR - ! Directly held by the Company.
: ESCL S 30 2 English name for identification only.
2 %S I N T WO A R AR R e A ’ These subsidiaries have been deemed disposed during the current year. Details
A1 O B 536 are set out in note 36.
TR AR - BRI A R B AT A Ao 5 o8 None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
Fo reporting period.

20 144F- i $it i
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Summary of Financial Information

BRETZA=Z+—HILEE

For the year ended 31 December

ZR-NgE ZF—SF ZF-2fF ZF——8F ZF-%F
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
AREFLT ARBFTL AREFT ARFEFL ARETFL
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ES RESULTS
A Revenue 831,116 871,275 963,717 524,495 483,524
W Bt i A1 R Profit before taxation 416,594 419,879 498,432 733,240 408,443
BIE Taxation (182,199) (103,738) (213,639) (220,047) (115,067)
A 71 Profit for the year 234,395 316,141 284,793 513,193 293,376
PR AL 4G Attributable to:
YNGR 2SN Owners of the Company 234,395 316,141 276,877 498,488 280,744
JE e 42 Non-controlling interests - = 7,916 14,705 12,632
234,395 316,141 284,793 513,193 293,376
BREM AR Earnings per share RMB
2% Basic 0.130 0.177 0205  NANEH  NARNER
e Diluted 0.130 0.177 0205  NAANER  NARER
BERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Bk Total assets 7,155,349 7,086,285 4,679,943 4,254,543 3,800,116
HMAE Total liabilities (3,460,431) (3,561,952) (1,960,865) (2,177,209) (2,164,222)
3,694,918 3,524,333 2,719,078 2,077,334 1,635,894
EN/NGIE 2N A Equity attributable to owners of
s the Company 3,694,918 3,524,333 2,719,078 1,968,176 1,536,979
I ¥ I 45 Non-controlling interests - - - 109,158 98,915
3,694,918 3,524,333 2,719,078 2,077,334 1,635,894
Gy o IR AT R )

Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited



TP ER
Schedule of Principal Properties

BH Yk
ok THREW %

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Completed Investment Properties

WEA 2
ET AN e Hu ik iR gt T AP 05 ok HHLAY]
Approximate Lease
No.  Name of Property Location Use Type GFA sq.m. term
1 <& 0 1 B o VR T M [ R e BE M 31,672 ik
Golden Wheel No.8, Hanzhong Road, Gulou District, Commercial medium
International Plaza Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
2 <o W 4 8 24 LR A R T S R B AR R 2,444 it
Golden Wheel Waltz No.7, Shengjuren Lane, Gulou District, Commercial medium
Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
3 6L PN/] W VR e A T S R P B 1085t mE € 1,454 1 4
Golden Wheel Building ~ No.108, Hanzhong Road, Gulou District, =~ Commercial medium
Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
4 X TN o I 988 A A I R [ i EVE < 45,105 ik
Golden Wheel Time Chezhan Road, Lusong District, Commercial/ medium
Square Zhuzhou City, Hunan Province, the PRC Residential
5 4 i 20 JE [ R VT A K L AR e 28 % [HES 1,021 it
Golden Wheel Green No. 28, Wei Gang, Xuanwu District, Commercial medium
Garden Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
6 <6 i 4 B SHC RN SNRRIRIR 4L 3PN [ES 18,437 1 4
Golden Wheel New Shuanglong Avenue, Jiangning District, Commercial medium
Metro Nanjing City, Jiangsu province, the PRC
7 & 2 =M o I TR 45 T 5 56 B [ EVE < 1,760 Gl
Golden Wheel Star City 5T 1L H B§228%% Commercial/ medium
Phase III No.228, Yangtze River Middle Road, Residential
Yangzhou New Development District,
Yangzhou City,Jiangsu Province, the PRC
201448 BEHE
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LY R
Schedule of Principal Properties

Il 5 3 v B ¥y K

WY WEATE

7*

Name of Property

ShWETEEY
Golden Wheel Binary Star

Plaza

EA ke 4R
Golden Wheel JinQiao
Huafu

SR T

Golden Wheel Star-cube

T 4 i 35 2% 4 [
Zhuzhou Golden Wheel
Jade Garden

R & E L4 R
Changsha Golden Wheel

Star Plaza

45 4 i 26 4 PE
Wuxi Golden Wheel Star

Plaza

BN EE R EY
Yangzhou Powerlong
Golden Wheel Plaza

i R LT BT IR
Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

Investment Properties under Development

ik

Location

v BT 4 A T VL [ B A
Shuanglong Avenue, Jiangning District,

Nanjing City, Jiangsu province, the PRC

B Tk 8 e T T B L RE R K
Longmain Road, Jiangning District, Nanjing

City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

o BV BR R T AL B [

P % e AL 3 R (AR

No.4, Station East Area, North Square,
Nanjing South Station, Yuhuatai District,

Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

e T R T R O
Gao Tie, Wu Quang New Town,
Zhuzhou City, Hunan Province, the PRC

v B 38 e R T 7
RATHRIE v ]

Lituo Xiang Township, Wuguang Area,
Yuhua District, Changsha City, Hunan
Province, the PRC

v T 8 6 4 5 T T [

New District, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC

TR 4 M i 4 T B
AE B SR ~ A8 00 B e ) B 3 G B )

West Yangzi River Road, East Weiyang Road,

South Weisi Road, and North Kaifa Xi Road,
Yangzhou City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

WA 2
i RS g TR T 5 Ok
Approximate
Use Type GFA sq.m.
[HES 41,168
Commercial
e 2,500
Residential
EVEA: 9,000
Commercial/
Financial
w¥/ e 4,000
Commercial/
Residential
¥/ fE 12,000
Commercial/
Residential
¥/ E 12,000
Commercial/
Residential
¥/ HE 65,400
Commercial/
Residential

#441
Lease

term

13

medium

G

medium

]

medium

]

medium

13

medium

13

medium

G

medium



7% 98 T A 1 8 5 Al T 0 2

L

No.

EXA

Name of Property

iz W ) % 8 355
Golden Wheel

International Plaza

455 i 1 R I By
Golden Wheel

International Plaza

& 0 S
Golden Wheel Star City
Phase I & II

4t IRe 1 R 35
Golden Wheel Times

Square

MR E R A
Nanjing Jade Garden

& w64
Golden Wheel Star Plaza

& 2 M =1
Golden Wheel Star City
Phase III

o ik

Location

Schedule of Principal Properties

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE OR OCCUPATION BY

THE GROUP

o I8 VLR A P T SO [ U Bk e 3 0
Level 30, No.8, Hanzhong Road, Gulou District,

Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

o B VL R R T R [ e B R 3 0
Level 30, No.8, Hanzhong Road, Gulou District,

Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

B VLR A B M T 45 0 BT B 3 18 45 L o B 228 5%
No.228, Yangtze River Middle Road,

Yangzhou New Development District,

Yangzhou City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

B 8 Rk A T R R [
Chezhan Road, Lusong District, Zhuzhou City, Hunan

Province, the PRC

P TR T A T R e AT A
Yewei Village Jianye District, Nanjing City,

VA6 e A T R e DA R

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

CAEPNEDE

South of Chengxin Avenue, east of Pugang Street,

the PRC

Jiangning District, Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province,

I TR 45 M i 5 OB B R 145 T o B 22858
No.228, Yangtze River Middle Road, Yangzhou New

Development District, Yangzhou City, Jiangsu Province,

the PRC

liikes Bt

Use Type

AR
Office

[EES

Commercial

[HE V&=t
Commercial/

Residential

[HE V&
Commercial/

Residential

[HE V&=t
Commercial/

Residential

w¥/MEE
Commercial/

Residential

[HE V&t
Commercial/

Residential

WA
T A °F- J5

Approximate
GFA sq.m.

2,535

3,547

16,034

3,588

6,541

14,660

23,139

20144 B i i
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FEYEE
Schedule of Principal Properties

P ¢ v 3%

Wy WEAE

No.  Name of Property

1 <8 W R A 2 O
Golden Wheel JinQiao Huafu

f

2 E4

Golden Wheel Star-cube

3 ST EES
Golden Wheel Binary Star Plaza

4% GNEESREY

Yangzhou Powerlong Golden
Wheel Plaza

s MR RERSY
Zhuzhou Golden Wheel Jade
Garden

6 R &bt 4
Changsha Golden Wheel Star
Plaza

7 I 85 4 W B2 G 44 e
Wuxi Golden Wheel Star Plaza

* ZHHBAEEEA9%EG 2 BB R 3
] 4% o
i My K Hb 1 IR A WA

Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings Company Limited

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Ho ik

Location

I VLR 4 e i U R R K
Longmain Road, Jiangning District,

Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

H B VLA R AT R AE B I R R L
J5 45 96 R 4R

No.4, Station East Area, North Square,
Nanjing South Station, Yuhuatai District,

Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

Hh B TR A e T L [ B E K
Shuanglong Avenue, Jiangning District,

Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

I VL A 45 T 45 T AR

A Bt SRR ~ A U B 0 B B B L
West Yangzi River Road, East Weiyang Road,
South Weisi Road, and North Kaifa Xi Road,
Yangzhou City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

R T8 R T R O

Gao Tie, Wu Quang New Town, Zhuzhou City,

Hunan Province, the PRC

o I R 0 i A R FE A R [

Lituo Xiang Township, Wuguang Area,

Yuhua District, Changsha City, Hunan Province,

the PRC

B VT 7 555 i R L

New District, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC

iipe gl

Use Type

£

Residential

LEYEA:!

Commercial/

Financial

[HE S

Commercial

CE V&L

Commercial/

Residential

[E V&
Commercial/

Residential

[HE V&t
Commercial/

Residential

[E V&
Commercial/

Residential

WA R 2
T BT J7 K

Approximate
GFA sq.m.

133,857

35,650

22,640

163,001

145,927

185,520

72,379

The project is developed by a JV Company which the Group has 49% interest.
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